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RACHEL ESTTTER J. GUMTANG-REMALANTE
Director
Corporate Govemance and Finance Departrnent
Securities and Exchange Commission
7907 Makati Avenue. Bel-Air
Makati City 1209

Dear Director Gumtang-Remalante:

The Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) required the registered corporationE including
select govemment-owned and-controlled corporations, to submit the Audited Financial
Statement (AFS) within ten (10) days from the receipt of the Annual Audit Report from the
Commission on Audit (COA).

In this regard, the Social Housing Finance Corporation (SHFC) is respectfully submitting the
COA Annual Audit Report for CY 2022 which was received on 28 April 2023 by the Office of
the Board Secretary, as evidenced by herein attached copy.

Should you have any question and/or clarification, please contact us through this number 02-
77506338locaI 601.

Thank you very much.

Sincerely,

I

ATTY.
Acting cre

NXJ PLz., an7 PM A AoDt" nttm W ttfi Hdn natu, tl,twoa
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REPI]BLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES

COMMISSION ON AUDIT
Corffnoowealth Avenue, Quezon City

CORPORATE GOVERNMENT AUDIT SECTOR
CLUSTER 2 - SOCIAL SECURITY

April2T,2023

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Social Housing Finance Corporation
BDO Plaza, 8737 Paseo de Roxas
Makati City

SHFI;
UFFIGT OT THT BtlARl} STERETAT.

Rt8 E VEI}
?.0rt

Gentlemen:

Pursuant to Section 2, Article lX-D of the Philippine constitution and section 43 of
Presidential Decree No. 1445, otheMise known as the Government Auditing Code of the
Philippines, we transmit herewith our report on the results of the audit of the accounts and

transactions of the social Housing Finance corporation (sHFC) for the years ended

December 31 , 2022 and 2021 .

The report consists of the tndependent Auditor's Report, Audited Financial statements,

observations and Recommendations, and the status of lmplementation of Prior Years'

Audit Recommendations.

The Auditor expressed an adverse opinion on the fairness of the presentation of the

financial statements of the sHFC for the years ended December 31,2022 and 2021 due
to the following:

a. undistributed collections (UC) totaling P353.807 million remained unposted to the

Mortgage Contract Receivable (MCR), despite the policy implemented and efforts
exertld by Management to lower the same, thus, overstating both the Other
Payables and the MCR accounts by the same amount as at December 31 ' 2022:

b The requirements of the Philippine Financial Reporting Standard (PFRS) 9 on
Financial lnstruments were not complied with, thus, the balances of various financial

asset accounts totaling P23.188 billion as at December 31, 2022 are misstated by
undetermined amounts; and

The accounts Right-of-Use of Assets (ROUA) and Lease Payable are not
recognized in the books of SHFC, contrary to the requirements of PFRS 16 on
Leases, thus, the assets and liabilities are both understated, and the balances of the
related accounts are all misstated by undetermined amounts as at December 31,
2022.

For the above observations, we recommended that Management:

For undi stributed collection s

a Ensure posting at the end of the calendar year the current year's collections lodged
in UC;



b. Requirb the ICTD to facilitate the enhancement of the database of HDH MBs under
- 

.-'r1l-,"tion and all other accounts not yet in the database;

c. lmplement measures to prevent or correct the causes of the non-posting of

collections; and

d. Revisit the timeline in Office Order No 21-1178' the Policy lmplementing the

Distribution/PostingotAmortizationcollections,consideringthevolumeof
transactions.

For noncomptiance with the requirements of PFRS I on Financial lnstruments

a. Resubmit and make a representation to the BODS to prioritize the approval of the

SHFC Accounting Manual; n'
''i

b. Accordingly, apply the policy embedded in irre SnfC Accounting Manual which

should be pfns conipflarit on the proper classification' measurement' and

irp"ii."nt of all financial instruments of SHFC; and

c. Provide the disclosures required under PFRS 7 in the Financial Statements

For noncompliance with PFRS 76 on Leases

Facilitate the approval of the accounting policy by the Board of Directors and its

subsequent implementation tn-"t '"*.orpii;"t to ttre provlsions of PFRS 16, including its

disclosure requirements on SHFC's leases'

The other audit observations together with the recommended courses of action' which

were discussed by the Auait il1"ri'*iin 
"on""rn"o 

Management officials and staff during

the exit conference conducted-Jn 
'Ni;;;[ 

9, 2023 
^r" 

disiussed in detail in Part ll of the

report.

We respectfully request that the recommendations contained in Parts ll and lll of the

iJi"'rt 
-o[-i.pr"'.enieo 

anO tn"iiii" C"rr[sion be informed of the actions taken thereon

by accomplishing the Agenc; nJion ptan and Status of lmplementation Form (copy

attached) and returning tn. ..in"'io ,. *tthin 60 days from the date of receipt hereof.

WeacknowledgetheSUpportandcooperationthattheManagementextendedtotheAudit
Team, thus facilitating the completion of the report'

Very truly yours,

COMMISSION ON AUDIT

By:

)x,a-, J,fu- ('

MA. L]SA P. INGUILLO
Director lV

Lfr;lla



Copy furnished:

The President ofthe Republic of the Philippines
The Vice President
The Speaker of the House of Representatives
The Chairpe6on - Senate Finance Committee
The Chairperson - Appropriations Committee
The Secretary ofthe Depadment of Budget and Management
The Govemance Commission Ior Govemment-Owned and Controlled Corporations
The Prssidential Management Staff, Office ofthe President
The UP Law Center
The National Library
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EXECUTIVE SUi'MARY

!ITRODUCTION

The Social Housing Finance Corporation (SHFC) was oganized and established on June

21 , 2005, by virtue of Executive 
.Order 

(EO) No. 272 whidt was signed and approved by

the President of the Republic of the Philippines on January 20' 20(X'

The creation of the sHFc, a wholly-orned subsidiary of the National Horne Mortgage

Finance corporation (NHMFC), was in accordance with the corporation code, nour

RepublicActito. 1123i orthe Revised Corporation Code of the Philippines. ltr as created
primarily as the lead agency in undertaking social housing programs that will cater to the
iormal Lnd informal s-ec.to'rs in the low-income bracke( and in taking charge of the

development and administration of social housing program schemes, particularly the
community Mortgage Program (CMP) and the Amortization support and Devefopmental

Financing 
-programs 

ot tnl Abot-Kaya Pabahay Fund (AKPF) as well as other social

housing programs of the NHMFC.

Presently, SHFC is merely a trustee of the transferred CMP funds and asseb The

NHMFC'remains in control of the affairs of sHFC, and it did not abandon its obligation to
use its otnership under a trust relationship having retained its full control over the subjecl

funds.

The goveming board of SHFC, which exercises its corporate porrers and determines its
policiis, is dmposed of the following: (a) th9 Chairperson of Department of Human

bettlement and Urban Development-(DHsuD); (b) the Prcsident of SHFC; (c) the

secretary of Department of Budget and Management (DBM); (d) the undersecretary of
Departmlnt of Finance (DOD; G) the President of NHMFC; (0 the Undersecretary.of
Department of the lntedor and Local ciovemment (DILG); and (g) three private seclor

representatives.

The President is assisted in the management of sHFc by the Executive Vice-Prcsident,
two vics,Presidents, two officer-in-chaEe (olc) senior vice-Presidents, 18 olc Mce.
Presidents and one Acting ViePresident. The peEonnel complement for calendar year

2022 is 635, with 215 regular, five probationary and 415 agency-hired emdoy€es. To date,

the sHFC has 27 satellite/Regional offces located in Legaspi Albay, Bacolod city, Bifian
Laguna, Cagayan de Oro City, Calamba City, Cauayan lsabela, Cebu City, Dael, Davao
Citi, oipotog City, General Santos Cily, lligan City, lloilo City, Lucena City, Naga City'
Paiawan, Pimpanga, Roxas Cily, Tubigon City Bohol, Zamboanga City, Bacoor City'
Caraga Butuan City, lmus Cavite, Tadoban City, Tuguegarao, North Cotabato and
Dapitan.

The DBM-approved CorpoEte Operating Budget (COB) of the SHFC for CYs 2022 and
2021 amounted to: P4.560 billion and P5.652 billion, respectively, which were utilized as
follows:

2022 2021
Particulars Budget Utilization' Budget

(ln Thousand Pesos)
Utilization

Personnel services
Maintenance and other operating expenses

369,437
a34-,719

278,363
445,457

340,585
702,776

282,929
338,5s2



2022 2021

Budget utilization' Budget UtilizationParliculars

Capital outley
Loan outlay
North-South Luzon Railway Proied
Marewi Recovery, Rehabililation and

Reconslruction Program
AKPF

n Thou3and Pe3oa
,242 ,155 ,066

1,735,046 4,5',19,084
00
00

3,300,685
0
0

51,647
1,530,675

142,139
5r,963

I 3720 0 0

117 2 t 5,651 t1 2,&7 277

'The amounts d utilization prasented are on a cash basis.

The registered office of SHFC is at Banco de oro Plaza, 8737 Paseo de Roxas, Makati

City.

FINAIICIAL HIGHLIGHTS (ln Philippine Peso)

l. Comparative Financial Position

Particulara 2022 2021 lncreaae

Assets
Liabilities
Equity

ll. Comparative Results of Operations

31,819,388,851
22,150,497,ilO

9,668,89'1,257

29,291 ,356,092
21,523,724,493
7,767,631,599

2,528,O32,759
626,773,107

1,901,259,658

2022 2021 lncreaseParticulars
Total income
Total expenses
Profit before tax
lncome tax expense
Profit after tax
Subsidy from National Govornment
Net income

734,078,100
629,344,509

88,588,201
23,047,144
81,586,447

1,881,131,630
1,%2,814,077

643,344,483
601,161,324

18,550,251
5,873,883

36,309,275
985,958,563

1,022,267 ,A39

90,733,6'17
28,183,185
70,037,950
17,173,261
45,377,171

89s,173,067
940,550,238

SCOPE OF AUDIT

our audits covered the examination, on a test b$is, of the accounts and ftnancial

transactions of the sHFc for the period January 1 to Dscembar 31,2022, in accordance
with the lntemational Standards of Supreme Audit lnstilutions to enable us to express an
opinion on the faimess of presentation of the financial statements for the y.ars ended

D'ecember g1 , 2022, and 2021 - Also, we conducied our audit lo assess compliance with
pertinent laws, rules and reguldions, as well as adherence to presoibed policies and
procedures.

AUDITOR'S OPINION

We rendered an adverse opinion on the fairness of the presentation of the financial
statements of the SFHC for the year ended December 31, 2022 due to the Undistributed
Collections (UC) under Other Payables account pertaining to payments ol member-

lt



borrorvers lhd are un-posted to the Mottgage Contrac{s Receivable (MCR) under
Receivables a@ount

Moreover, the account balances of the lnvestrnent; Receivables, curet(; Other Cunent
Assets: Receivables, non-current; and Other Non-Cunent Assets, are misstated by
undetermined antounts due to non-compliance to the provisions of PFRS 9 Financial
tnstruments requiring classification, measurement and imPairment of the above'
enumerated fi nancial assets.

Further, the requirements of PFRS 16 Leases have not yet been applied on the leasesof
SHFC as at Dicember 31,2022, thus, the assets and liabilities are both understated by

undetermined amounts as at December 31, 20,22tor lhe non'recognition of Rights-of-Use
of Assets and lease liabilities in the books. ln addition, the account balances of the related
Retained Eamings; Accumulated Depreciation; RenuLease Expenses; Depreciation
Expenses; and ln[erest Expenses are all misstated also by undetermined amounts thereby
affecling the faimess of presentation of the accounts in the financial statements.

For the above ob6eNations, we recommended thd Management:

F or undistri buted collec,tions

a. Ensure posting al the end of the calendar year the cunent yea/s collections lodged
in UC;

b. Require the lcTD to facilitate the enhancement of the database of HDH MBs under
migration and all other accounts not yet in the database;

c. lmplement measures to prevent or conect the causes of the non-posting of
collec{ions; and

d. Revisit the timeline in Ofiice Order No. 21-1178, the Policy lmplernenting the
Distribution/Posting of Amortization Collections, considering the volume of
transactions.

For noncompliance with the rcquircments of PFRS 9 on Financial lnstruments

a. Resubmit and make a representation to the BODs to prioritize the approval of the
SHFC Accounting Manual;

Accordingly, apply the policy embedded in the SHFC Accounting Manual which
should be PFRS compliant on lhe proper clagsification, measurement, and
impairment of all financial instruments of SHFC; and

Facilitate the approval of the acoounting policy by the Board of Dir€dors and its
subsequent implementration that is compliant to the provisions of PFRS 16, including its
disclosure requirements on SHFC'8 leases.

b

t

c. Provide the disclosures required under PFRS 7 in the Financial StatenEnts.

For noncompliance with PFRS ,6 orl Leases



suillMARY OF AUDTT SUSPENSIONS, DISALLOTVANCES' At{D CHARGES

The balance of disallo rances alnounting to P78,950,312 consisls of the balances of (a)

ND No. 2022-02 (2022) amounting to Pl,526,000, (b) ND No. 2022-01 (2920) aTgyitqng
to P955,soo, (c) i{D Na. 2019-01i2018) amounting to P5,280,000, (9lI? N9 291]:91.
Cra-fO'amouhiing to P71,030,479, and (e) ND 2016-0'l (2014) and ND 2015-04 (2014)

amounting to p1S6,333 as at December 31,2022. There were no Notices of Suspension

and Charge issued during the Year.

STAruS OF IilIPLEiIEI{TATIOI{ OF PRIOR YEARS'AUDIT RECOTTIEiIDATIO]{S

out of 51 audit recommendations for both sHFC and AKPF embodied in the cY 2021

Annual Audit Report, 18 were implemented, 21 were not implemented six of which w.ere

reiterated, nine were reconsidere'd, and three with notice of disallorvance in Part ll of this

Report.
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REPTIBI"IC OF T1IE PHII,IPPINES

COMMISSION ON AUDIT
Commonwcalth Aventrc, Quez-oll City

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

THE BOARD OF OIRECTORS
Social Housing Finance Corporation
Banco de Oro Plaza
8737 Paseo de Roxas
Makati City

Report on the Audit of the Flnancial Statements

AdhlerseOpinion

We have audited the financial statements of the Sociat Housing Finance Corporation
(SHFCl, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the National Home Mortgage Finanoe Corporation,
which comprise the statements of financial position as at December 31, 2022 and 2021,
and the statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity,
statements of cash flows for the years then ended, and notes to financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

ln our opinion, because of the significance of the matters discussed in lhe Bases for
Adverse Opinrbn sec'tion of our report, the accompanying financial stalements do not
presenl fairly the financial position of SHFC as at December 31 , 2022 and 2021 , and its
financial performance and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs).

Basas forAdyerce Opinion

The Undistributed Collections (UC) under Other Payables account pertaining to payments
of member-borrowers remained un-posted to the Mortgage Contrac,ts Receivable (MCR)
under Receivables account. This overstated both the Other payables and Recoivables
ac@unts by P353.807 million and P413.693 million as at December 31 , 2022 and 2021 ,

respec{ively. Moreover, the account balances of the lnvestment - Held to Maturity of
P50.000 million in 2022 and 2021; Receivables, cunent ot p1.2O2 billion in 2022 and
P2.239 billion in 2i2'li O(her Cunent Assets of P6.963 billion in 2022 and p1 .396 billion
in 2021; Receivables, non-cunent ol P14.302 billion in 2022 aadpl7.4SS billion in 2021;
and Other Non-Cunenl Assets of P670.552 million in 2022 and p672.59,1 million in 2021,
or a total of P23.188 billion and P21.813 billion as at December 31,2022 and 2021,
respec{ively, are misstated by undetermined amounts due to non-compliance to the
provisions of PFRS g Financial lnstruments requiring dassilication, measurement and
impairment of the above-enumerated financial assets.

Furth^er, the requirements of PFRS 16 Leases have not yet been applied on the leases of
sHFC as at December 31,2022, thus, the assets and liabilities aie uottr understated by
undetermined amounts as at Decembet 31,2022 and 2021 for the non-recognition of
Rights-of-Use of Assets and lease liabilities in the books. ln addition, thJ account
balances of the relaled Retained Eamings of p9.659 billion in 2022 and p7.758 billion in
202'l; Accumulated Depreciation of plBB.473 million in 2022 and p200.599 million in
2021; RenULease Expenses of P16.44S million in 2022 and p1g.O22 miflion in 2021;

::!



Depreciarion Expenses of p18.671 mi[ion in 2022 and p2o.ogo miilion in 2021; andlnlerest Expenses of p0.337 miilion in zozz ani eo.loii ,imon in zozr aie al-missta;aalso by undetermined amounts thereby afiec{ing tha iaimess or pro.nGiion-J it"ac@unts in the financial statemenls.

we conduc{ed our audits in accordance with rntemationar standards of supreme Auditlnstitutions (lsSAls). our responsibilities under ilioJ-stanoaros are further described inrhe Auditor's Responsrbi/itres p1 @ Audit ot ine-iiiinaa, sfaterrenfs section of our
!ip9i: w9 are independent of the sHFC in accoraanoe witn the coal or conarJ"noEthical standards for commission on Audit om.l"G 

"ro 
Emproyees (code of Ethics)together with the ethicar requirements that "[ i"iir"nt to our audit of the financiarstatemenrs in.the phirippines, and we have fumfled our other ethicar ,""ponrioiiiii". inaccordance with these requirements and the code or ntri".. we oerieve'ttrat fliJ 

"rinevidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropri"t" to provide a basis for our adverseopinion.

o{lher Matter

ln our reporr dated March 10,2022, we modified in part our opinion on the fairness ofpresentation of sHFC's financiar statements for the'yiar ended Decembe t 3,r,2021,because the present varue of expected p"yr"nt" io-"iJJ, tn. t trre retirement beneftsof sHFC's employees were,. not measurea, ."ogni-d- 
"nd 

disclosod in the books asbenefit cost and benefit obrigation, coltqry to t-n. reqrirerent oi pa6' i; ;;-i;y*Eenelits, resulting in the undeistatement of b,oth rnJnetirement expense and RetircmentGratuity Payable accounts by undetermined 
"rorni. ". 

a December 31, 2021. rn ourcurrent audit, due to the auth^orization to imprement Executive oraer rub. 150 ;J;
9.*ory1 1, 

_2021 approving rh_e Compensation ino Fosition Ctassification SvJ", iCFidtissued by the covernance Commiision^for COCCs teCel on D;;b;i;;',,'zYizl"*
disclosed in Note 31 to the Financiat statemlnti, inFc'i" nor-"nio'.r" LrJtri Ev
[:n:!l: l{N9...7o4-1 (gs.amended), orhenivise'Xno,,m as rhe Labor Code of rhern*pplnes, provrding for Retirement pay to eualified private sedor emproyies in iiieAbsence of any Retirement pran in the g'sraurisn;;nt sin"e under the approved cpcS,employees are not enlifled to r.lirement gratuity equivilent to th"i, y""o of ;;;;t";separation from rhe corporation. nence, ttr6 reing;ition of benefit cost ana-ueriJtobligation in the financiar statements is no ionger appiic"bre. eccoruingri, ou, Jpi,iiJ. 

-.ii.l

lhe cY 2022 financiar starements with respect-of ttri's'matter is no rongir;oJifi*. 
-- -'

Responsllilrtres of anaqenenr and rhd', charg.d with Governance for rheFinanclat Sfutemf,/rb

Management is responsibre 
.for_thg preparation and fair presentation of the financiarstatements in accordance with pFRss, and for sucn inieinar contror ai ,"."gdl.tdelermines is necessary to enabre the preparation oi nnanoar starements ttat 

"-re 
tr""from material misstatement, whe{her due to'fraua or inoi.

ln preparing the financiar statements, management is responsibre for assessing sHFc,s
:!1ry L" 

continue as.a going concem, oisaising 
"" "ppiiLur", 

,"16;hd;';;i";
rnrrn. and using the going concem rasis oiaccoirnting unress ."n"g"rr.ni Eiih"?intends to liguidate sHFC orio cease operation", iir,"",,o rearistic artemative but to doso.

Those charged with govemance are responsibre for overseeing sHFc,s financiar reportingprocess.



Auditor's Responstblttflas for the Audlt of the Flnanciat Stalemenb
The objectives of our audit are to obtain reasonable assuran@ about whetherthe financial
statements as a whore are free from mderiar missratement, whether due to fraro or inoi
and to issue an auditor's-report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a hiotirever or assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conduc{ed in accodance wiihlssAls will atways detec{ a material misstatemenl whin it exists. uisstaen enri &n a,i""from fraud or enor and are considered materiar il inJiviauary - h tn" 

"gg-gd., 
th"icould reasonably be expecied to influenc the economic decilions of use;-ta[d;; ih;Dasts ol these flnancial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with lssAls, we exercise professionar judgnrent andmaintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We atso:

' ldgntfy and assess the ,isks of materiar missiatemenr of the financiar statements,
whether due to fraud or enor, design and perform audii il*;r*;;;;p;;ili;those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient ani appropriate-tJp.;id;-;
basisforouropinion. The riskof not detec{ing a materiar missi€iter;;iAr'rtildf;;;
fraud is higher than for one resuning from-error, as fraud ,"v inrorr" *rri"ion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the ovenidi ot inr"rii-niioi.

' obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstrances, but not for the purooi,
of expressing an opinion on the efiec{iveness of SHFC'S internat controi

' Evaluate the appropriateness of accounring poricies used and the reasonabreness
of accounting eslimates and related disclosuies made by managemenl. 

-

' c-onclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basisof accounting and, based on the audit lvidence obtained, 
-*ni[n"r 

" ,ni"ri"r
lltEltainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
SHFC's abirity to continue as a going @ncem. rf we 

-condud6 
that a materiar

uncertainty exists, we are requircd to draw attention in our auditor,s report to tne
related disclosures in the financial staternents or, if such disclosures 

"r" 
i,ilt"irji",

f9 mgdifv our opinion. our concrusions arc based on the audit evioence ootaiiio-to
the date of our audito/s report. However, future events or conditions ilt ca,;
SHFC to cease to continue as a going concem.

' Evaluate the overall presentation, struc*ure, and content of the financial statements,
induding the discrosures, and whether the financiar statements r"p'"s"ni ind
undedying transactions and events in s manner that achieves fair pres"r,t"tion. 

- -

we communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other mafters,the planned gcope and timing oJ ihe auditlnd signiricani auailnnaingi, incruoing ani
significant deficiencies in intemal control thd we idEntify during our audii.

.y,.""1T^.p:11?ll9se--charged with go\remanca with a statemenr thd we have comptiedyI1 repvrl. erhicar requirements regarding independence, and to communicate'witn
rnem arr rerationships and other maue* thal may reasonabry be thought to bear on ourindependence, and where applicable, retatea sd6juarOi. -
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requiroments
our audits wer6 conducied for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financiarstatements tak6n as a whore. The supirementary inroHaion in Note 33 to tn" nn"n"r"i



statements is presented for the purpose of filing with the Bureau of lntemal Revenue and
is not a required part of the basic financial statements. such supplernentary information is
the responsibility of the management of SHFC. The supplementary informition has b€en
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit ofthe basic financial statements.
Because of the significance of the matters described in lhe Bases for A6ter* Opinion
section of our reporl, it is inappropriate to, and we do not express an opinion dn the
supplementary information refered to above.

COMMISSIOI{ ON AUDIT

A/-: {a**,
GELIA L. NAZcREil6
Supervising Auditor

March 27,2023



Soa{ r*r6.ra? rf arLE Cdpffafi*} Kuyfig ng K*,*nid*L u llqialunng F.H..ruluil

STATEI\! EI{T OF I\{AN AGEM ENT'S RESPONS I B I LITY
FOR FINANCIAL ST.A,TEM ENTS

'l'hc managcmcnt of soclAl- tlouslNc FINANCIj coRpoRATtoN is responsihte t'or rhe
prcparation and fair presentation of the financial statcments, including the schedules attached
therein, for the yeam ended December 31,?O22 and f)ecember 31, 2021 in accordance rvitlr the
prescribed financial reporting framework indicated therein, and for such internal control as
nlanagement detettnines is necessary to enable the preparation of financiat statements that arc
tiee lrom material misstatcmcnt, whether due to fraud or enor.

lrr preparing the financial statcments, managenlcnt is responsible for assessing the SOCIr\[.
IIoUSII{C FINANCE CORPORATION's atrilitl to continue as a going 

"o,l""ri 
disclosirrg, as

applicable. matters rclated to going concern and using the going concen: basis of accounling
unless managemcnt either intends to liquiclate the SOCtal [{OUSINC I.'INAN(.8
('ORPORATION or to cease operations, or lras no realistic altenrative to do so.

Thc Board of I)irectors is resporrsible for overseeing thc SOCIAL HOUSINC FINAN('E
({)RPORATION's financiat rcporting process.

Thc Board of Directors reviet's and approves the tirrancial statements, including the schctlulcs
attached therein, and suhrnits the sanre to the stockholders or rnembers

The Commissittn '.rn Audit, through its authorizcd reprcscntative, has exaurincd the financial
statements of the company pursuant to Section 3, Article lX-D of the Philippine Constitution
and Section 28 of the Presidential Decree No. 1445, otherrvise known as the Govcmment
Attditing Code ol'the Plrilippines. The audit rvas conducted in accordance u.ith International
Standards of Suprerne A
members. has
audit.

.rosE A

udit lnstitutions and the auditor, in its report to the stockholders or
its opinion on the faimess of presentation upon completion of such

{-hairRerson

DA]\'T ANABE
ot('- v Prcsidcnt
Fittance and Comptrollership Croup

dtfcphoe0
*rd ,26ttroJ,|tJ,,Ftry,/r-

March 27-2023

(.@77tt{B7r
et
,9 rff,*.H.rorri



SOGIAL HOUSING FINANCE CORPORAT]ON
(A tluholly-Own€d Subsldlery of the l{tton.l Home Mortg.gD Fln.nce Corporrflonl
STATETIENTS OF FINANCI,AL POSITION
Decemb€r 31 , 2022 and 2021

(ln Philippine Peso)

Nolo 2022 2021
ASSETS

Cun€nt Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
lnvestments
Receivables
lnventories
Other cunont assets

4
5
6
7
I

5,916,658,209
110,000,000

1 ,202,?66,20E
9,44{,E28

6,963,387,558

4,859,964,897
159,990,000

2,239 ,245,51 1

9,113.793
1,31gE,422,426

't4,201,E53,803 8,664,736,627

Non-CunDnt A3rets
Receivables, ngt
hvestment prop€rty
Property and equipment, net
lntangible asset8, net
DsfBned tax as8ets
Other non-cunent assets

6
I
10
11

25.2
't2

11lga,l$,201
2,'[55,563,{55

191,279,876
10,312,218
93,297,8G8

670,3{3,90E

17,3*,215,480
2,275,37?,328

201,8&1,466
11,409,518

109,165,683
672,590,990

17,617,535,05'r 20,626,619,465

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Cuncnt Llabllltler
Financial liabilites
lntor-agency payablss
lncome tax psyable
Trust liabilities
Deferred crBditYuneamed income
Other payables

31 857 29 91 356 0921

13
14

25.3
15
16
17

I ,211,602,C15
37,870,t92

2,596,230
4,763,066

199,907,70{
1,628,086,525

1.083,856.593
51,4e6,116

2,535.731
4,791 ,167

217] 1,932
1,405,962,950

3,086,627,364 2,766,554,489

Noncurent U.bltltle3
Financial liabilities
Trust liabilities

13
15

lo0,766
19,063,469,'170

2,O0/.,452
18,755,165,552

r9,083,870.236 18,757170,OU

TOTAL LIABILITIES 22,r50,497,600 21 523,724,493

Capital stock
Retain6d eami ngs

18.1

18.2
10,000,000

9,65E,891,257
10,000,000

7,757,631,599
TOTAL EQUITY 9,66E,E91 ,267 7,767,631,599

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EOUITY 3t,819

6

The Notog on pages 10 to 51 form part of these fnancial statemonts

29.29'l ,356,092



Note 2022 202'l

INCOME
Service and business incomo 19 717,932,710 619,7 t'1,575

7'.t7,932,710 619,7'11,575

EXPENSES
Personnel services
Mainlenance and other operating expenses
Non-cash expenses
Financial expenses

20
21

22
23

276,768,383
323,633,0'15

28,558,779
384,302

268,685,517
297,120,452
34,561,7't6

793,639
629,344.509 601,161,324

INCOME FROM OPERATIONS
Other non-operating income 24

88,588,201
'16,1.l!i,390

18,550,25'l
23,632,908

PROFIT BEFORE TAX 104,733,591 42,183,159

INCOME TAX EXPENSE'(BENEFIT)
Cunent
Defened

25.1
25.2

7,175,327
15,E07,617

6,197,1'16
(323,233)

23,U7,14 5,873,883

PROFIT AFTER TAX
Net assistanc€/subsidy income from National

Govemment 26

81,686,447

1,881,131,630

36,309,276

985,958,563
NET INCOME/COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 1.962.818.077 1.02.267 .AS9

The Notes on pages 10 to 51 form part of the6e financial statements.
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SOCIAL HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION
(A Wholly-Owned Subidiuy of tt€ National Home t{ortg.go Finan6 Corporation)
STATEMENTS OF COTI PREHENSTVE INCOME
For the Years End€d Decemb€r 31, 2022 and 2021
(ln Philippine Peso)



SOCIAL HOUSING FINANGE CORPORATION
(A Whollyorvn6d Subsldlrry ol the Ndlon.l Home ortgago Flnance Corpor!0on)
STATEIIENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the Years Ended December 3'1, 2022 and 2021
(ln Philippine Peso)

Capltal Slock

18.1

Retalned
Eamingt

18.2

Total
Equtty

Balancs as at January 1,2022
Prior period adiustments

10,000,000
0

7.757,63'l,599
(7. 795.188)

7,767,631,599
0.795.188\

Restated balance as at January 1, 2022
Net income for the year
Oividends for CY2022

10,000,000
0
0

7,749,9fi,411
1,962,818,077

7,759,836,411
1,962,818,077

(53.763.231)(53,763.231)
Balance a3 at Oecember 31 2022 10.000.000 9.658,891 287 9.088.891.257

Balance as at January 1,2021
Prior period adiustrnents

10,0m,000
0

6,753,369,634 6,763,369,534
1,816,7821,816,782

Restated balance as at January 1, 2021
Net income for the year
Dividends for CY2021

10,000,000
0
0

6.755.186,416
't,022,267 ,839

6,765,186,416
1,022,267,839

(19,822,656)(1e,822,656)
Balance as at December 31,2021 1 000.000 7.757.631.599 7 767.631,599

Appropriated as at December 31, 2022
Funds appropriated for HDH Project
Retained Eamings for transfer to NHMFC

6,384,479,898
60,505,380

3.213.905,979Un-appropriated as at December 31, 2022
9,658,891,267

The Notes on pages 10 to 51 form part of these financial statements.



SOCIAL HOUSING FINAIICE CORPORATION
(A Whollyown€d Subsidlary ol lhe National tiomo Morqag€ Flnance Corporatonl
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended De.embet 31 , 2022 and 2021
(ln Philippine Peso)

m22 2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash lrfloua
Collection of income/revenue
Receipt of assBtanoe/subeidy
Trust receipts
Collection of receivables
Receipt ot inter-agency fund transteG
Other receipb

1,2{l3m371
2,191,25,13i1

2E8,5fl'
2,666,6S5

300,3r7
3,625,r70

997,779,846
1,@5,245,424

75,459
7,914,692

116,343,598
593,711

Total cash inllows 3A14,155,23;f 2,127,992,7fi

Cash outrloI!
Release of funds lor moigage contracts
Payment of expgnses
Refund of deposit3
Remittance oI peFonnel benefit contributiong and mandatory deduc{ione
Payment ,or prepaid exp€rces
Purchase of inventories
Grant of cash advancE
Release ol inter-agency fund trarclers
Other disbursemenb

Total cash oumows Q.2A2.661.227t (2.698.420.695)

Net ca8h provided by/(ug€d in) opsIatng activities 1.16t.7S1.0t0 (570,427. 5\

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Ca3h lnflowt
Proceeda from matured investments,/redemption of long-term

invostments/retum on investmenta
Reoeipt of interest oarned

918,266,676
14,422,145

I ,712,334,@A
32,7AA,947

Total cash inflo\.\€ 933,088,86t 1,745,123,7s5

Caah osulowa
Purchase of inveslmenE
Purchags ot land as invsetment property
Purchase/clnstruc'tion of property and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets
Grant of loans

(86t ,fio,8:B)
(52,6n,*71

(9,950,22())
(2so,0m)

0

(817,092,000)

1242,134,96A1
(10,884,550)

\2,437,480)
(4,315)

Total ca6h outflov'E fi,023,973,70) (1.072,553,313)

lE! ca8h p.ovlded by(us€d inl lnv€lting actlvili€r (9O,884,E79) 672,570,442

CASH FLOIVS FROM FINANCING ACTIVTTIES
Cash outflouB

Payment of financia! expenses fortechnical asgistance
Payment of long-term liabilities
Payment ot interest on loans and other tinancial chargG
Payment oI cash dividends

(355J5r)
(3,E39,4651

(323,587)

(20,373,s06)
(13,466,798)

(886,159)
0(9,694,0r6)

Total cash outllouE 114,212,4191 |u,7x,463',)
Nel cash used in linancino activities 14.2't2.819t (34.726.463)

NET INCREAIiE IN CASH AND CASH EOUIVALENTS t ,056,693,31 2 67,416,014
4,792.548,883Cash and cash equivalenb at beginning of the year

CASH ANO CASH 4.859.964.897

9

EOUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR (NOTE 4I

(r,639,97r,7r0) (1,867,021,584)
(450,575,7E9) (658,556,759)

12,176,11t1 (3,615,593)
(3o,r14,32r) (27,656,356)
(9t,r52,E0O) (116,138,212)
(17,290,16r) (17,466,106)
(11,132,485) (4,370,966)
(3r,365,52E) (2,339,785)

1475,1s21 (1,255,334)

The Notres on pages l0 to 51 form Frt of these linancial statiemenb.



SOCI,AL HOUSING FII{AI{CE CORPORATIOT{
(A WhollyOwnd Subidiary of National Home llotu'g/e Finance @rponlion)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEilIENTS
(Amoun's in Phttipplne tuso)

On January 20,2004, Executive Order (EO) No.272 was signed and approved by the
President of the Republic of the Philippines authorizing the National Home Mortgage
Finance Gorporation (NHMFC) lo organize and establish the Social Housing Finance
Corporalion (SHFC), as a wholly-owned subsidiary, in accordance wilh the Corporation
Code and pertinent rules and regulations issued by the Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC). SHFC has been formally organized and established on June 21,
2005 with the issuance of the Certificate of lncorporation under SEC No. CS 200510702.

As a whollyowned subsidiary of NHMFC, SHFC was creat€d primarily to be the lead
agency to undertake social housing programs that will cater to the formal and informal
sec{ors in the low-income bracket and shall take charge of developing and administering
social housing progr€lm schemes, particularly the Community Mortgage Program (CMP)
and the Amortization Supporl and Developmental Financing Programs of the Abot-Kaya
Pabahay Fund (AKPF) as well as other social housing programs of the NHMFC, to allow
the NHMFC to focus on its primary mandate that is, developing the secondary maket for
home morlgages.

Presently, SHFC is merely a trustee of the transfened CMP funds and assets. The
NHMFC remains in control of the afiairs of SHFC and did not abandon its obligation to
use ils ownerchip under a trust relationship having retained its full control over the
subjec{ funds.

Aside from the CMP and AKPF, SHFC has been implementing the Localized Community
Mortgage Program (LCMP) since July 2010. LCMP is a derivative of CMP that would
assist and empower the local governrnent units (LGUs) in achieving their housing
programs for the informal sector in their respeclive areas.

ln 2010, the President of the Philippines issued a directive in line with the Ten-Point
covenant with the Urban Poor, to ensure a safe and a flood resilient permanent housing
solution for lnformal Settler Families (lSFs) residing in danger areas in the National
Capital Region (NCR). The directive falls squarely within the mandate of SHFC, thus, in
furtherance to its mandate and primary purpo6e, the High Density Housing (HDH)
Program was created and promulgated to extend financing assistance to organized
communities for the construction of HDH projec{s and for acquisition of lots for near-sit6,
in city and near city relocalions.

On December 7,2017 a Trust Agreement was entercd by and between the Department
of Transportaiion (DOTr) and SHFC for the construc{ion of Micro Medium Rise Building
(MMRByCMP Verlical, regular CMP, and other @mmunity driven housing programs and
shelter solutions that will primarily benefit the lSFs living along the Tutuban-Los Bafios
segment and Calamba-Batangas Branchline (Philippine National Railways South
Commuter Project). An initial amount of P3 bitlion pesos (First Tranche) was transfened
to SHFC on February 20, 2018 to finance the resettlement program for the said PNR
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Project. For the entircry of the North-Sotrth Railway Project Phase ll, SHFC will receive
the total amount of P14 billion pesos.

A Memorandum of Underctanding (MOU) was executed between the United Nations
Human Settlernents Programme (UN-Habitd), and the SHFC, where the parties agreed
lo collaborate in the shelter and community recovery programme in response to the
Marawi Siege ot 2017 under the "Projecl for Rebuilding Marawi through Community-
Driven Shelter and Livelihood supporf which is being supported by People of Japan.
The Rebuilding Marawi Shelter Livelihood Recovery Projec{ supports people displaced
by Marawi conflict in the rebuilding of rosilient and peace-promotive shelter, livelihood
and community infrastructure. One thousand five hundrcd (1 ,500) core shelters will be
built for identified home partners organized under the project of the United Nations
Human Settlements Programme (UN Habitat) and the SHFC.

On March 27,2019 a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) was executed between the
lntramuros Administration (lA), the Housing and Urban Development Coordinating
Council (HUDCC), and the SHFC, where the parties agreed to finally operationalize the
Strategy for the lnclusive Mainstreaming of Peoples Living Entitlements (SIMPLE
Program). lA to transfer initial amount of P410 million for the resettlement of the families
that is enrolled to the SIMPLE Program. The amount transfefied shall provide for the
construc{ion of Micro Medium Rise Buildings (MMRBS) or CMP Vertical, regular CMP
and olher communitydriven housing programs and shelter solutions that will primarily
benefit lntramuros' lSFs.

SHFC's registercd office, which is also its principal place of business, is located at No.
8737 Paseo de Roxas, Makati City. The registercd oftce of NHMFC i3 located at
Filomena Building lll, 104 Amorsolo Street, Legaspi Village, Makati City.

The financial statemenls as at and for the year ended December 3'l,2022, including the
comparative financial statements as at and for the year ended December 31 , 2021 werc
approved and authorized for issue by the SHFC Board of Direc{ors (BOD) on March 27,
2023.

The significanl accounting policies that have been used in the preparation of these
financial statements are summarized beloir. These policies have been crnsistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otheMise stated.

2.1 Basis of Preoaration of Financial Statements

Sfafernent of Compliance with Philippine Financial Reporting
Sfandards

The financial statements of SHFC have been prepared in accordance with
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS) applicable to Commercial
Public Sector Entity (CPSE), issued by the Philippine Financial Repofiing
Standards Council, pursuant lo the requirement under Commission on
Audit Circular No. 2015-003. PFRSs are adopted by lhe Financial
Reporting Standards Council (FRSC) from the pronouncements issued by

a
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the lnternational Accounting Standards Board (IASB), and approved by the
Philippine Board of Accountancy.

SHFC has formulated policies/guidelines for the classification,
measurement and recognition of various financial assets, and 'Right-of-
Use" Asset (ROUA) and a lease liability on the adoption of PFRS 9 on
Financial lnstrurnents and PFRS 16 on Leases, respedively, but is pending
approval by the Board of Directors.

SHFC's accounting frameurork is designed to proMde dear and reliable
information regarding the achievement of its operalional objec{ives,
compiiant with the applicable PFRSS.

The accompanying financial stdements have been prepared using the
measurernent bases specified by PFRS for each type of asset, liability,
income and expense. The measurement bases are more fully described in
the accounting policies that follows.

ln compliance with COA Circular No. 2O2O-OO2 dated January 28, 2O2O,
SHFC adopted the RCA in its trial balance for CYs 2022 and 2021 . General
Ledger and Subsidiary Ledger accounts were diligently analyzed and
manually mapped to the RCA.

The financial slatements are present€d in accordance with Philippine
Acoounling Standard (PAS) f , Presentation of Financial Statements. SHFC
has not yet adopted PFRS 9 to its financial instruments, and PFRS 16 to its
leases, thus, cannot disclose the impac't on the non-doption to its financial
statements.

d. Functional and Prcsentation Cunency

The financial statements are presented in Philippine Peso, SHFC's
functional and presentation cunency, and all values represent absolute
amounts except when otheMise indicated.

Items included in the financial statements of SHFC are measurcd using its
func:tional currency. Func{ional cunency is the cunency of the primary
economic environment in which SHFC operates.

2.2 AdoDtion of New a d Amended PFRSs

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous
financial year, except for the adoption of new standards effective as at
January 1, 2022. SHFC has not early adopted any standard, interpretation
or amendment that has been issued but is not yet efiec{ive.
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a. Efiectve In 2022 that are retevant to SHFC:

(i) Amedments fo PAS 16, Prcpefty, Ptant and Eqtipment:
P|oceeds before lntended Use

The amendments prohibit Corporation deducting from the cost of an
item of property, plant and equipment, any ptoceeds from selling items
produced while bringing that asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. lnstead, the Corporation recognizes the proceeds from
selling such items, and the costs of producing those items, in profit or
loss.

(ii) Amendmen|s to PFRS 9, Financial ,nstrumerfs, Fees in the '10
per cenf b$ fur derecognition of financial liabililies

The anendment clariftes the fees that the Corporation indudes when
assessing whether the terms of a na^, or modified ftnancial liability are
substantially different from the terms of the original financial liability.
These fees indude only those paid or rcceived between the bonower
and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the bonower
or lender on the othe/s behalf.

(0 Effeclive beginning on or after January 1, 2023
. Amendmenls to PAS 12, Defened Ta)( lelated to Assets and

Liabilities arising from a Single Transaclion
. Amendments to PAS I, Definition of A6ounting Estimdes
. Amendments to PAS 1 and PFRS Prac{ice Staternent 2,

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

(ii) Effeclive beginning on or afrer January 1, 2024
o Amendments to PAS 1, Classifiation of Liabilities as Currcnt

or Non-cunent

(iii) Etrec,tive beginning on or afrer Januaty 1, 2O2S
o PFRS 17,lnsunn@ Cqtracls

c. Defened efiBctylty

PFRS 10 (Amendments), Consolidatecl Financial Statemenlg and pAS
28 (Amendments), ,nvestments in Associates and Joint Venfurcs -
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b. New Accoun$ng Standalds, lnterpmtafons and Amendments
Efiective Subcequent to December 31,2022

Pronouncements issued but not yet effeclive are listed belov. Unless
otheMise indicated, SHFC does not expect that the future adoption of
the said pronouncements will have a significant impac{ on its financial
statements. SHFC intends to adopt the following pronouncements
when they become effective.



Sale or ContibuUon of Assefs between an lnvestot and its Associafes
or Joint Ventue (eff*'tive date defened indefinitew. The amendments
addr$s the conflict between PFRS 10 and PAS 28 in dealing with the
loss of control of a subsidiary that is sold or e,ontributed to an associate
or joint venture. The amendments clarify that a full gain or loss is
recognized when a transfer to an associate or joint venture involves a
business as defined in the PFRS 3. Any gain or loss resuhing from the
sale or contdbulion of assets that does not constitule a business
however, is recognized only to the extent of unrelated investors'
interests in the associate or joint venture.

On January 13, 2016, the Financial Reporting Standards Council
defened the original effective date of January 1, 2016 of the said
amendments until the IASB completes its boader review of the
research project on equity accounting that may result in the
simplification of accounting tor such transac'tions and of other aspec{s
of accounting for associates and joint ventures.

Under the prevailing circumstan@s, the adoption of the foregoing neur and
amended PFRSs is not expec{ed to have any material efrec{ on the
financial statements of the Coryomtion.

2.3 Financial Assets

A financial asset is any assel that is:

a. Cash;
b. An equity instrum€nt of another agency;
c. A contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset;
d. A contractual right to exchange financial ass€ts or liabilities with

another entity on potentially favorable terms; or
e. A contract that will or may be setlled in the Corporation's own equity

instruments and is a nonderi\rative for which the Corporation is or may
be obliged to receive a variable number of the Corporation's own
equity instrumenti a derivalive thd will or may be settled other than by
the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a
fixed number of the Corporation's oirn equity instruments. For this
purpose, the Corporation's oryn equity instruments do not include
puttable ftnancial instruments classified as equity instruments.

Rec g nition and Me asu reme nt

Financial assets are recognized in the Statement of Financial Position
when, and only when, SHFC becomes a party to the contrac{ual provisions
of th6 instrument. At initial recognition, the Corpordion measures its
financial assets at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not at fair
value lhrough profit or loss, lransac{ion costs that are directly attdbutable to
the acquisition of the financial assets. After initial recognition, the
Corporation measures its tinancial asseG at fair value or amortized cost in
accordance with PFRS rules on financial instruments.
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Classification

A more detailed description of the categories of financial assets Elevant to
the authority are as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents are canied in the Statement of Financial
Position at cost. Cash includes cash on hand and in bank. Cash
equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to cash and or at a very near maturity that they present
insignificant risk of changes in value because of changes in interest rates.
Cash is measured at face value.

Accounts receivables are open accounts arising from the sale of service in
the ordinary course of business and not suppoiled by promissory notes.

Non-trade receivables, i.e. loans receivable, represent claims arising from
sources other than the sale of seMce in the ordinary course of business.

Loans and receivables are none derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and maturities that are not quoted in an active
market. They are not entered into with the intention of immediate or short-
term resale and are not designated as or financial assels d Fair Value
Through Olher Comprehensive lncome (FVOCI) or financial assets at Fair
Value Through Profit and Loss (FVPL).

Subsequent to initial measurement, loans and receivables are carried at
amortized cost using the efiedive interest rate method, less impairnent in
value, if any. Any interesl eamed on loans and recaivables shall be
recognized as part of 'lnterest income" in the Statement of Comprehensive
lncorne. Amodized @st is calculated by taking ir o account any disoount or
premium on acquisition and fees that are integral part of the effeclive
interest rate. The periodic amortizalion is also included as part of interest
income. Gains or losses are recognized in profit or loss when loans and
receivables are derecognized or impaired, as well as through the
amortization process.

Allowance for impairment is maintained at a level considered adequate for
potentially uncollectible receivables. The level of allowance is based on
histodcal collec{ion, cunent economic trends, and changes in the customer
payment terms, age stalus of receivables and other fac{ors that may affec{
collectability. The allowanc is established by charges to income in the
form of provision for doubtful accounts (now refened to as impairment).

SHFC derecognizes a financial asset only when: a) the contrac{ual rights to
the cash flows from the financial asset expire or are settled, or b) the
Corporation transfers to another party subslantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, or c) the Corporation, despite
having retained some significant dsks and rewards of ownership, has
transfened control of the asset to another party and the other party has the
practical ability to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party and
is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and without needing to impose
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additional restrictions on the transfer. ln this case, the Corporation
derecognizes the asset and recognizes its rights and obligations retained or
created in lhe lransfer.

2.4 lnventories

b. Semi-expendable P@petv

These are tangible items below the capitalization threshold of P50,000 as
prescribed under COA Circular No. 2022-004 implementing Sec{ion 23 of
the General Provisions of RA No. 11639 also knofln as the General
Appropriations Act (GAA) for fiscal yeat 2022 relativs to the increase in the
capitalization threshold from Pl5,000 to P50,000.

The said COA Circular supersedes Paragraph 5.4 of COA Circular No.
2016-006 on Conversion from the Philippine Govemment Chart of
Accounts under the New Govemment Accounting System per COA Circular
No. 20()4-008, as amended, to the RCA for GCs under COA Circular No.
201&010, neuv, revised and deleted a@ounts, and relevant accounting
policies and guidelines in the implementation lhereof. Semi expendable
properties are recognized as expense upon issuance thereof.

2.5 Prepavments and r Current Assels

Prepayments and other cunent assets pertain to other resources controlled
by SHFC as a result of past events. They are recognized in the financial
statements when it is prcbsble that the futur€ e@nomic benefits will flow to
SHFC and the asset has a cost or value that can be measured reliably.

Other recognized assets of similar naturc, where future economic benefits
are expec{ed to flow to SHFC beyond one year after the end of the
reporting period or in the normal operating cycle of the business, if longor,
are classified as non-cunent assets.

2.6 Prooertv and Equioment

An item of Property and Equipment (PE) is initially recognized at cost. The
cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and costs direcily attributable
to bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use. Expenditures
for additions, major improvements and renewals are capitalized while
expenditures for repairc and maintenance are charged to expense as
incurred.
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a. lnvenbry Held for Cu,$mption

Supplies and materials purchased for inventory purposes are recorded
using the Perpetual lnventory System. ln compliance wilh PAS 2, SHFC's
inventory held for consumplion is valued al lorver of cos{ or net realizable
value. lnventories are reclassifted to expense upon issuance thereof and
recorded based on the Report of Supplies and Materials lssued.



Afrer initial recognition, PE are caried d acquisition cosit or construction
cost less subsequent depreciation and amortization and impainnent in
value, if any.

Depreciation is computed on a s[raighl-line basis over the estimated usEful
lives of the assets as follorvs:

Years
30 to 50
5 to 't5
5 to 15
5 to 15
2lo 15

Over the useful life of the improvement
or the lease term whichever is shorter

An investment property is a property held to eam rental income and/or for
capital appreciation potential, but not for sale in the odinary course of
business, use in the production or supply of goods or seMces or for
administrative purposes. lnvestment property is initially carried at
acquisition cost plus cosls incuned for sile development and home building.
Subsequent to initial rccognition, investment property is consistently
measured using the cost model which is cosit less accumulated
deprecidion and impairment, if any, in accordance with PAS 16's
requirements. However, SHFC's inves{ment property only represents land
which is valued eil cost with no accumulated depreciation.

lnvestment property is derecognized upon disposal or when permanently
withdrawn from use and no future e@nomic benefit is expec{ed from its
disposal.

2.8 lntanoible Assets

lntangible assets are accounted for under the cost model. The cost of the
asset is the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of the
other considerations given up to acquire an asset at the time of its
acquisition or prcduc{ion. Capitalized costs are amorlized on a straight-line
basis over the estimated useful lives ranging from three to five years as the
lives of these intangible assets are considered finite.

Building and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Office fumiture and equipment
Transportation equipment
Fumiture, fiXures and books
Leased assets improvements

An item of property and equipment, including the related accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, is derecognized upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expec{ed to arise frcm the continued
use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising from derecognition of the assel
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal prcceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in the year the item
is derecognized.

2.7 lnvestmentPropertv
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Acquired computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of the
costs incuned to acquire and install the specific software. Costs associated
with maintaining computer softvyare are recognized as expense in profit or
loss as incuned.

\Mren an intangible asset is disposed of, the gain or loss on disposal is
determined as the difierence between the proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognized in profit or loss.

2.9 FinancialLiabilities

Financial liabilities are contrdual obligations to deliver c€ish or andher
financial asset or to exchange financial instruments with another agency on
potentially untavorable terms. Financial liabilities are recognized when the
Corporation becomes a party to the contrac{ual terms of the instrument. All
interost related charges are recognized as an expense in piofit or loss
under the caption Financial Expenses in the Slatement of Comprehensive
lncome.

Trade and other payables, due to related parties and other non-cunent
liabilities are recognized initially at their fair values and subsequently
measured at amortized cost, using effective interest method for maturities
beyond one year, less settlement payments.

Financial liabilities are classified as cunent liabilities if payment is due to be
settled within one year or less after the end of the reporting period (or in the
normal operating cyde of the business, if longer), or SHFC does not have
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months afrer the end of th€ repo.ting pedod. Othenrise, lh€se are
presented as non-cunent liabilities.

Financial liabilities are derecognized trom the Statement of Financial
Position only when the obligations are extinguished either through
discharge, cancallation or expiralion. The difference botween the canying
amount of the financial liability derecognized and the consideration paid or
payable is recognized in profit or loss.

2.1O Provisions and Continoencies

Provisions are recognized when present obligdions will probably lead to an
outflow of economic resources and they can be estimated reliably even if
the timing or amount of the outflow may still be uncertain. A present
obligation arises from the presence ot a legal or construc{ive obligation as a
result of a past event.
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Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the present obligation, based on the most reliable evidence available
at the end of the reporting period, including the risks and uncertainties
associated with the present obligation. Wlere there are a number of
similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by consldering the class of obligations as a whole.



Vvhen time value of money is material, long-term provisions are discounted
lo their prcsent values using a pre-tax rate that reflects maftet
assessments and the risks specific to the obligation. The insease in th6
provision due to the passage of time is recognized as interest €xpense.
Provisions are revialed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to
reflec{ the cunent besl estimate.

ln those cases where the possible outflow of economic resource as a result
of present obligations is considered improbable or remote, orlhe amount to
be provided for cannot be measured reliably, no liability is recognized in the
financial statements. Similarly, possible inflors of economic benefits to
SHFC that do not yet meet the recognition criteria of an asset ale
considered contingent assets, hence, are not recognized in the financial
statements. On the other hand, any reimbursement that SHFC can be
virtually certain to collec, from a third party with respect to the obligation is
recognized as a separale asset not exceeding the amount of the related
provision.

2.11 Revenue and Expense Recoqnition

Revenue comprises revenue from rendering of services measured by
reference to the fair value of oonsideration received or receivable by SHFC
for services rendered.

Revenue is recognized to the extent that the revenue can be measured
reliably; it is probable that future e@nomic benefils will flotr to SHFC: and
the costs incuned or to be incuned can be measured reliably. ln efiecl, the
recognition of an income ocanrs simultaneously wilh the recognition of a
decrease in liabilities or an increase in assets. ln addition, the specific
recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

(i) lnterest income on loan receivables is recognized using the effective
interest method that is the rate that exaclly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expecled life of the financial
instrument to the net carrying amounl of the financial asset; and

(ii) lnterest incomo on regular and time deposits is accrued on a time
proportion basis, by reference to the principal amount outstanding and
at the interest rates applicable.
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Cost and expenses ale recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive
lncorne when decrease in future economic benefits related to a deseas€ in
an asset or an indease in a liability has arisen that can be measured
reliably. This means, in erfiact, that recognition of expenses occurs
simultaneously with the recognition of an increase in liabilities or a
decrease in assets.

When economic benefts ate expected to arise over several accounting
periods and lhe association with income can only be indirec{ly determined,
expenses are recognized in the income slatement on the basis of rational
allocation prccedures. This is oflen necessary in recognizing the expenses
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associated with the using up of assets. These allocalion procedures areintended to. recognize expenses in the accounting periodi in which theaccounting benefits associated with these items are consumed.

An expense is recognized immediately in the Statement of Comprehensive
lncome when expenditure produces no future economic benefiis or whenfuture economic benefits do not quatify or cease to quafify for recog;it;n inthe Statement of Financial position asan asset.

Cost .and expenses are also recognized upon utilization of services or atthe date they are incuned. Ail 6$s ara reportia in the Statement oi
Comprehensirae lncome on an accrual basis.

2.12 Emolovee Benefits

The employees of SHFC are members of the Social Security System (SSS)
which provides life and retiremenl insurance *rJrag".

The corporation recognizes the undiscounted amount of short-term
employee benefits, like salaries, wages, bonuses, alloirance, etc., asexpense unless capitalized, and as a liability afrer deducting th; ;;;untpaid.

The Corporation recognizes expenses for accumulating eamed leaves.
Non-accumulating compensated absences, liie ipecial-leave pririi6;a;
are not recognized.

2.13 Leases

SHFC as Lessee..

a. Finance Lease

Leases which transfer to sHFc substantially all risks and benefits incidentalto ownership of the reased item are crassified as finance teases inJ aie
recognized as assets and riabirities at arnounts equar to the fair varue of theleased property at the inception of the lease oi, it to*"r, at th;p;;;ivalue of minimum lease payments. Lease payments ar" apportioniJ
between the finance costs and reduction ot ttrd ease fiaUifity so as to
achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining barance of the riabiriiy. 

-

Finance costs are recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive lncome.
capitalized reased assets are depreciated or"itt 

" "non", 
of the eslimared

useful life of the asset or the lease term.

b. Operating tease

Leases which do not transfer to SHFC substantially all the risks andbenefits of ownershiD of the asset ar. cfassii,eJ as operating leases.operating lease payments lnet ot any inceniire"rllivea from the ressor,rare recognized as expense in profit oiloss on a straight_tine b".il;;;il;



lease term. A$ociated costs, such as repairs and maintenance and
insurance, are expensed as incurred.

SHFC determines whether an anangement is, or contains, a lease based
on the substance of the anangement. lt makes an assessment of whether
the fulfillment of the anangement is dependent on the use of a specific
asset or assets and the anangement @nveys a right to use the asset.

2.14 Related Parties

Related party transac{ions are transErs of resources, seMces or
obligations between SHFC and its related parties, regardless whether a
pdce is charged.

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control
the other party or exercise significant infiuence orrer the other party in
making financial and operating decisions. For SHFC, these are individuals
owning, direclly or indirectly, an interesl in the v.oting power of SHFC that
gives them significant influence over SHFC and close members d the
family of any such individual.

ln considerirrg each possible related party relationship, attention is direc{ed
to the substancn of the reldionship and not merely on lhe legal form.

2.15 lncome Taxes

Tax expense rccognized in profit or loss comprises the sum of debned tax
and cunenl tax not recognized in other comprehensive income or direcily in
equity, if any.

Current tax assets or liabilities comprise those claims from, or obligations
to, fiscal authorities relating to the cunent or prior reporting period, that are
uncollected or unpaid at the end of the reporting period. They are
calculated using the tax rates and tax laurs applicable to the fiscal periods
to which they relate, bas€d on the taxable prcfit for the year. All changes to
curent tax assets or liabilities are recognized as a componenl of tax
expense in profit or loss.
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Deferred tax is recognized for the future tax consequences and is provided
or accounted for using the liability method, providing for temporary
difierences betrreen the carrying amount d ass€*s and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the aflx,unt used for taxation purposes.
The arnount of defened tax provided is based on the expected manner of
realization or settlement of the canying amount of assets and liabilities,
using tax rates enac'ted or substantially enac.ted at the reporting date.

A defened tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the assel can be
utilized. Defened tax assets are rduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.



Deferred tax assels and defened tax liabililies are ofiset if SHFC has a
legally enforceable right to set ofi current tax assets against otrrent tax
liabilities and the defened taxes relate to the same entity and the same
taxation authodty.

SHFC's deferred tax asset is computed based on the temporary difierence
on the provisioning at the end of the reporting period.

2.16 Events A the End of the no Period

SHFC has entered into various lease agreements. Critical judgment was
exercised by Management to distinguish each lease agreement as either an
operating or a finance lease by looking at the transfer or retention of
significant risks and reurards of ownership of the properties covered by the
agreements. Failure to make the right judgment will rcsult in either
overstatement or understatement of assets and liabilities.

3-2 Recognition of Provisions and Contingencies

Judgment is exercised by Management to distinguish between provisions
and contingencies.

3.3 Key Sources of Estimation lJncedainty

The following are the key assumplions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a matedal adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next reporting period:
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The carrying amount of deterred tax asse{s is reviewed d the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is probable that sufiicient
taxable potit will be available to allot , all or pafl of the defened tax ass6,t to
be utilized.

Any post-year-end event that provides additional information about SHFC's
financial position at the end of the reporling period (adjusting event) is
reflec{ed in the financial stdernents. Post-year-end e\rents that are not
adjusting events, if any, are disclosed when material lo the financial
statements.

3. SIGNIFICAilTACCOUI{TINGJUDGTTENTSANDESTIiIATES

The preparation of SHFC's financial statements in accordance with pFRS requires
Managemenl to make judgments and eslimates that afiect the amounts reported in the
financial statements and related noles. Judgments and estimates arc continually
evaluated and ale based on his{orical experience and other fadors, induding
expecitalions of future events that are belie\rod to be reasonable under the
circumstances. Ac{ual results may ullimately difier from these estimates.

3.1 Distinction Between Operating and Finance Leases



a. lmpairment of Trade and Other Receivables

An adequate amount of allowance for impairment is provided for specific and
groups of accounts, where objective evidence of impairment exists. SHFC
evaluates the amount of allowance for impairment based on available facts
and circumstances affecting the collectability of the accounts, induding, but
not limited to, the length of SHFC's relationship with the customers, the
customers' cunent credit status, the average age of amounts, collection
experience and historical loss experience. At present, the Corporation
submitted to the Board of Directors a revised policy on the Loan Loss
Provisioning forthe Board's approval before its implementation.

b. Estimation of Useful Lives of Prcpefi and Equipment and lntangible
Assefs

SHFC estimates the useful lives of property and equipnrent and intangible
assets based on the period over which the assets are expec,ted to be
available for use. The estimated useful lives of property and equipment and
intangible assets are reviewed periodically and are updated if expectations
differ from previous estimates due to physical wear and tear, technical or
commercial obsolescence and legal or other limits on the use of the assets.

Thb carrying amounts of property and equipment and intangible assets are
analyzed in Notes 10 and 11, respectively. Based on Man4ement's
assessment as at December 31,2022 and 2021, there is no change in the
estimated useful lives of those assets during those years.

c. Determination of Realizable Amount of Defened Iax Assefs

SHFC reviews its defened tax assets at the end of each reporting period and
reduces the carrying amount to the extent that ]t is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be utilized. Management assessed that the defened tax assets
recognized as at December 31,2022 and 2021 will be fully utilized in the
coming years. The carrying value of defened tax assets as of those dates is
disclosed in Note 25.2.

4. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

This account consists of:

2022 2021
Cash on hand

Cash - collecting officers and supeMsing tellers
Petty cash
Change Fund

Cash in bank
Short-term placements

Treasury bills

{3,436,235
1,660,{54

3,000
5,701,572,954

3,082,829
1,516,776

0
4,765,355,293

99,995,966
100.000.000

0
90.010.000

4,859,964,897

Time - localcurencv
5,9{6,659.209
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4.1

4.2

Cash allecting officerclsuperuising telte/s pertains to cash collections by the
collecling ofEcers and supeMsing tellers on the lasl working day of the year
which are deposited only on the lirst working day ofthe succeeding year.-

PeW cash pertains to fund established to defray immediate or emergency
petty expenses at the Head and Regionausatellite Ofiices.

Change furd pertains to the money advanced to each cashier of Main and
Regional dfice for purposes of facilitating change to collec{ions received
from customers in the couEe of business transaclions.

Cash in bank @nsists of funds deposited with govemment banks for payroll,

lrporate operding funds, TakeOut Funds, High Density Housing (liDH)
Program, PNR South Commuter project (DOTr projecl), Naionat biiastei
Risk Reduc{ion and Management (NDRRM) Funds ior Marawi Shelter
Projects and lntramuros resettlemer project. Cash in bank eams interest al
prevailing interest rates of t.40 to 1.85 per cent per annum for lhe time
deposit and 0.10 per cent for the cunent account.

lfort-term plaencnts consist of: (a) treasury bifis whictr are short term,
highly liquid investments that are readily convedible to known amounts of
cash with original maturities of three (3) months or less from dates of
placement and that are suDlecf to an insignificant risk of change in value; and
(b) time deposits - local cunency \rhich represent investment in time deposits
classified as highly liquid investments maturing from 60 days up to 91 diys or
not more than three months from dale of placements.

4.3

4.4

4.5

5. INVESTTIENTTI

This account consists of:

2022 2021
lnvestment in treasury bills 50,000,000

60,000,000
50,000,000

lnvestment in time deposits 109,990 ,000
110,000,000 159,990 ,000

5.1

5.2

lnvestment in tteasury bilts consists longterm highly liquid investments with
?verage prevailing interest rales of 1.gS per cent p€r annum maturing from
91 days up frcm the date of placements.

lnveslm7€,nt in time deposrfs represents time deposits in rocal cunency which
are highly liquid investrEnts with maturity of milre than 91 days from date of
plaoements.
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6. RECEIVABLES, NET

This account onsists of:

2022 2021
Current:
Mortgage contract receivable
Due from parent corporation
Due from other funds - AKPF
lnterest receivable
Due from govemment corporations
Due from NGAs
Loans receivable
Due from officers and employees
Receivables - disallowances/charges
Due from provident fund
Qther receivables - suppliers

1,093,594,925
59,447,575
8,177,258
3,236,514

15,009,990
17,94/J,125
2,6{7,553

553,349
{49,093

0
1,749,936

2,138,976,719
59,447,575
3,775,139
2,340,834

14,797,880
16,343,779
2,903,200

303,156
159,334
1gg,g96

0
1.202.366.208 2,239,245,511

Non-current:
Mortgage contract receivable
Assets held in trust (AHT) - insurance receivables
Unamortized mortgage origination cost
Loans receivable
Aesets held in trust (AHT) - interest receivables

13,788,960,327
484,403,193

17,609,560
10,121,966

433,096

16,979,139,973
442,838,607

'19,728,357
12,492,4U

433,095

Less: Allowance for impairment
14,301,527,042

104.788.941
17,4il,632,496

98,417,016
14,196,739,201 17,356,215,490

6.1 Moftqaqe contract receivable (MCR)

2022 2021
Current 1.093.584.925 2,138,976,718
Non-cunent

Past due - High Density Housing (HDH)
Past due - Community Mortgage Program (CMp)
Restructured interest - bearing principal
Restructured - noninterest - bearing principal

4,805,027,961
8,450,947,660

530,755,483
151,303,966
50.925.357

4,516,793,044
11,ffi,7u,167

573,299,309
169,338,097
50,925,357Items in

13,788,960,327 16,979,139,973
Less: Allowance for

net
1 17 016

880 722
14,777,756,411 19,019,699,675

a. Cunent - This account amounting to P1.094 billion and P2.139 billion as
at December 31,2022 and 2021, respectively, includes cMp and HDH
taken-out projec{s from the time of transfer up to the end of each year,
and the cunent portion of restructured interest and non-interest Oearing
principal.

b. Past due - HDH - The amount of p4.60s billion and p4.s17 billion as at
December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively, represents loan granted to

1 171 1
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c.

d.

e.

the beneficiaries of High Density Housing program (HDHP) payable in
30 years. This arcount also represents draw down releases to various
projecls intended for HDHP beneficiaries.

Past due - cMP - The account amounting to p9.451 billion and p11.669
billion as at December 31 ,2022 and 2021, respectively, represents the
past due portion of the loan at the time of transfer up to December 31,
2022. This also includes cMp projec{s taken-out from 19g9 to 1993,
which were retained by NHMFC but eventually transfened to sHFC with
a monetary value of P621 million representing outstanding principal loan
balances as at December 31, 2009. The transferred loan balances were
based on the community Association's (cAs) ledgers subject to
adjustments upon the determination of the actual outsianding principal
balance that should be based on the Member Beneficiaries' (Mbs) ban
ledgers.

Restructured interest - bearing principal - This account amounting to
P530.755 million and P573.299 million as at December 31,20224nd
2021, respectively, refers to the aocounts of derinquent bonorrers who
availed of the Restructuring Program offered by sHFC, in accordance
with Republic Act (RA) No. 9507, othenrise known as the 2008
socialized and Low cost Housing Loan Restructuring Act of 2009, a
rescue package for housing loan bonowers.

Restructured - noninterest - bearing principal- This aocount amounting
to P151.304 million and P169.338 million as at December 31 , ?OZ2 and
2021, respectively, refers to loans with unpaid interests availed by
delinquent borrowers who also availed the Restructuring program
offered by SHFC. (See Note 16.1)

Items in litigation - This account amounting to ps0.92s million as at
December 31, 2022 and 2021 represents the outstanding balance of
receivables from delinquent CAs transferred to the Legal Department for
foreclosure and with petitions already filed in court. Said outstanding
balance is the original amounttransfened from NHMFC.

f

6.2 Allowance for imoairment

Movements in the allowance for impairment of mortgage contract receivabte
are as follows:

Balance,
January 1, Additional

Provision

Balance,
Recovery/ December3l,

Mortgage contracls
Cunent accounts
Past due accounts

Over 3 months - 12 months
Over 12 months - 3 years
Over 3 years

Items in litigation

5,U7,42 4,295,014 0 9,642,41i6

6,t180,065
20,260,201
63,710,955

9,274,857
22,579,439
56,s20,115
4,695.164

0
0

7,190,840
0

(2,794,792)
(2,31e,237)

0
0 164

104,78E,84198,4't7,016 11 (s,114,029)
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6.3 Due from parent corwration

This account includes CMP amortization payments and other colledions
amounting to P16.432 million received from the borrowers who still pay at
NHMFC for account of SHFC.

Also, this account comprises among others, man4ernent fee and collection
servicing fee amounting to P43.015 million computed pursuant to the
provision under Sedion Vl of the Trust Agreement entered by and between
NHMFC and SHFC.

6.4 Due from othertuNs (A|(PF)

This account refers to accumulated Personnel Services (PS) and other
Administrativo Expenses of the Fund paid in advance by SHFC during the
year.

6.5 lnterest rcceivable

This refers to the interest accrued on vadous money plaoements at end of
the year with various dates of mdurity.

6.6 Due ftom oovemment comorations

Housing and Urban Development Coordinating Council (HUDCC) - This
account represents the total advances made by SHFC for the account of
HUDCC, now Department of Human Settlements and Urban De\relopment
(DHSUD), pertaining to office building special assessments and other
adminislrative expenses.

Social Security System - This represents lhe total advance payments made
by SHFC on account of sickness and matemity benefit claims of employees.

6.7 Due from national oovemment aoencies (NGAs)

Depa,tnent of Buqet and Management- Ptocurcment SeNice (DBM-PS) -
This account represents purchases of supplies from DBM-PS which are not
yet delivered.

Depaftment of Tansporlation (DOII, - This account pertains to all expenses
incuned for the DOTr projects charged against SHFC corporde funds.

6.8 Re@ivables- disallowances/chaqes

This account consisls of recaivables from Officers and Employees se{ up in
compliance to the Notice of Finality of Decision dated June 29, 2016 and
October26,2016 issued by COA, for the disallowed P5,000 cash gift as part
ofthe 13th month pay and the P20,000 additional Grocery Subsidy granted
to SHFC employees in CY 2014, respectively.
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6.9 Due from orcident fund

6.10 Other receivables - suoo/iers

This refers to advance payment made to suppliers regarding Project No.
2020-03 on the design, supply, installation, configuration, commissioning,
and testing of lP Technology and Unified Communications for SHFC.

6.11 Assets held in hust (AHT) - lnsurane reeivables

This consists of the general ledger account balances transfened from
NHMFC as at September 30, 2005. The balance of this account increases
whenever there is a renewal of the Mortgage Redemption lnsurance (MRl)
coverage advanced by SHFC for qualified CAs. The balance reduces upon
collection of insurance repayrnents from MBs which can be de{ermined only
upon proper posting of amortization payments to the MBs' ledgers.

6.12 Unamoiized moftoaoe oioination cost

This stands for the unamortized portion of the Origination and Appraisal Cost
which is treated as outright expense.

6.13 Loans receivaDle

This represents the car and calamity loans availed by SHFC ofiicers and
employees in the amounts of P12.106 million and P0.633 million as at
December 31, 2022 and P14.762 million and P0.633 million as at December
31 , 2021, respec{ively, which are payable in 10 years.

2022
Current

Car loan
Calamity loan

1,984,168
633,385

2,269,B'.t5
633,385

Non-cunent
Car loan

2,6'17,553

,r 0,,t 2t,866

2,903,200

12,492,464
12,739,419 15,395,664

6:14 Assets held in trust (AHn - intercst,e@ivables

This consists of interest receivable earned from AHT
receivables.

2A

This refers to the receivables from resigned/retired employees due to their
negative last pay that will be deducted from the proceeds of their provident
fund contributions.

2021

insurance



7. INVENTORIES

This acoount consists of:

2022 2021lnventory held for consumption
Accountable forms, plates and stickers
Office supplies inventory
Drugs and medicines inventory
Other supplies and materials inventory

Semi-expendable fumitu re and fixtures
Semi-expendable
Semi-expendable
Semi-expendable
Semi-expendable

332,547
92,913

0
7g,g59

3,559,146
1,769,717
1,634,549
1,797,775

168,741

491,175
1,551,694

18,279
124,173

2,616,539
1,612,203

884,412
1,639,997

169,741

office equipment
lT equipment
other machinery and equipment
communication equipment
books

8. OTHER CURRENTASSETS

The account consists of:

582
I 113,793

2022 2021
Advances to Commu nity Associations 6,304,107,752

fi4,4/,,5,773
191,700,925

4,371,74
g3g,3g2

1,759,147
6,124,935

752,949,993
597,599,033

5,000,000
3,829,125
1,699,192
2,209,615

Advances to contractors
Restricted fund
Guaranty deposits
Advances to Special Disbursing Ofiicer
Prepayments
Oher deposits

33,136 ,579
6 1 396
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8.1 Adrancesto CAs

This refers to the paynrents of Heirc Bond, Estate Taxes and Transfer taxesto the BlR, and registration fees with the Registry of Deeds.

8.2 Advances to antnctors

This refers to amount paid in advance as mobilization fee to contractors forHDH projeds which shafl be deducred from rhe il;;"*-b,rtiil;;;in p,"
percentage of completion of the project

8.3 Restricted Fund

Jfrig represents contingency trust fund opened with Land Bank of thePhilippines as trustee, io answer for the ,ir"rtg.g; redemption insurance(MRl) daims arising from death or permanentlncapacity of the member-bonower.



8.4 Guannfu deoosits

This account represents guaranty fees for SHFC's rental of Regional Ofiices
and warehouse.

8.5 Advances to Soecial Disbursino Oficer

This account is used to recognize the amount granled to SHFC's
accountable officers and employees for special purpose^ime-bound
undertakings to be liquidated within a specified period.

8.6 Preoavments

This indudes paymenb in ad\rance consisting of rent and insurance to be
amortized o\rer one year.

8.7 Ofher deoosrts

This account consists of amount paid in advance or 20 per cent dorn
payment for the properties lo be acquired from the Bangko Sentral ng
Pilipinas (BSP) amounting to n7 and P14.392 million as at December 31,
2022 and 2021, respec{ively, and amount paid in advance to suppliers for
acquisitions with cash on delivery terms of payment amounting to P6.125
million and P18.74 million as at December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

9. INVESII'ENTPROPERTY

The account balances amounting to P2.456 billion and P2.275 billion as at December
31, 2022 and 2021, respectively, represent land aoquired for building cons(rudion and
site development for the lSFs under usufruc{ arrangement with HDHP beneficiaries.
These are canied at acquisition cost plus costs incuned for site development and home
building. Disclosure for the fair value of the investment property is not possible due to
lack of appraiser to date. Hoirever, SHFC is intending to engage the seMces of external
appraisers for fair value measurements in lhe following year.

SHFC Corporate Circular No. 13-026 on HDH guidelines provides for the implementation
framanvork of SHFC's participation in the priority P50 billion lSFs Housing Program for
the relocation of lSFs residing in danger areas and watemays in Metro Manila. To
further strengthen said corporate objec{ive, Corporate Circular HDH No.14-005, Series
ot 2014, was made pertaining to the acquisition of property by SHFC and usufrud under
the HDH Program. Through these circulars, as affirmed in Board Resolution No. 39.1,
Series of 2014, and under its Artides of lncorpoEtion and by-laws, SHFC is fully
empoirered to pursue the acquisition of property in ils own name and for the eventual
disposition to the CAs, or entering into a usufruc,t anangement, for the implementation of
the HDHP.
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10. PROPERW AND EQUIPMENT, NET

The details of the acount are shoryn below:

Bualdang! LeasedAssets
and Otfrer lmprovernents,
Structrre3 Buildings

Consiruction
Machinery in Progre:s-

and BuiHings and
Equiprnent Odter

Strucfures

Transportation
Equiprnent

Fumituru,
Fixtures &

Books
Total

Cost
January 1,2022

Additions
201,330,000

727,695
0

34,724,580
36,16,+,660

3,965,491
97,777

93,8,t0,701
2,420,588

28,130,027
0

10,172,5,EE
6.710,560

0

,1(I2,,163,387

$,121,2E0

Accumulated
Depreciation

January 1,20n.
Depreciaton

(100,368,687)
(6,781,868)

(18,612,643) e,%,14) (5/1,770,595)
(1,756,810) (125,2731 (6,617,13't)

(21,622,5521 (200, 5s8,92 1 )
(3,385,8O2) (18,670,887)

0
0
01 11 30

December 3
Net Book Value
December 31, 2022 94.907.'l'O 49.825.703 14.i188,703 t2.133.EE3 19,171,791 191,279,07e

Buildings
and Olher
Strucfures

Fumiture,
Fixtures &

Books

Leaeed Assets
Corutrucitbn

llachinary in Prograrr-
and Buildlngs and

Equipnent Other
Structurei

fransportation
Equiprnent

Total

Cost
January 1,2021 201,330,000 28,561,859 3,929,991 78,529,663 21,866,71E 1A,172,588 374,690,819
Additions 0 6,'162.721 35,500 1 5.31 I ,03E 6,263,309 0 27,772,568

December 3l , 2021 201 ,330,000 34,72,1,580 3,965,491 93.8,+0,701 2E,130.027 40,,t72,5EE 402,,+63.3E7
Accumulated

Depreciation
January 1,2021 (93,586,E1s) (16,922,938) (/+6,236,591 0 (21 (1

Net
December 31. 2021 100.961.313 6.111-937 39.070.106 2E.130.027 15.850.036 201.864.'166

11. INTANGIBLE ASSETS, NET

The details of this account are shoiln below:

2022 2021
Cost
Balances at beginning of year
Additions

21,119,977 18,682,497
37

Balances at end of year 21,418,977 21,119,977

Accumulated amortization
Balances at beginning of year
Amortization

(9,710,t1591 (8,156,955)
1

Balances at end of year 111. 06.729) (9,710,459)
Net book value at end ofyear 10,312,28 1 1,409,518

This includes capitalized cost of operating systems, anti-varus programs, etc., recorded
as computer softlrrare programs for use in the SHFC operations.
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12. OTHER NON.CURRENT ASSETS

The acount consists of:

2022 2021
Trust asset - AKPF
Govemment qrant - Marawi Shelter Proqram

546,047,315
124,296,593

548,294,397
124,296,593

670,343,908 672,590,990

12.1 lrusf asset - AKPF refers to assets held in trust on AKPF. The AKPF was
previously under the administration of the NHMFC. Due to the passage of
EO No. 272, the management of the Amortization Support and
Developmental Financing Programs of AKPF was transferred to SHFC in
2005.

This account is treated in the books of SHFC in the same manner and
procedure it was previously treated in the books of NHMFC wherein periodic
increment and reduction of said account, as a result of its operations, are
taken up as credit and debit to lrusf Liabilities account. (See Note 15)

The details of the Fund balance amounting to P546.047 million and
P548.294 million as at December 31,2022 and 2021, respectively are as
follows:

2022 2021
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivable - cunent
Receivable - non - cunent
Property and equipment, net
Other non-curent assets
lntra-agency payables
lnter-agency payables
Other payables

292,670,723
2,895,663

67,4/!,1?4
84,453

196,845,866
15,213,2281
(8,117,9731

(559,3{31

291,236,938
2;508,360

67,441,124
105,085

197,635,7s1
(3,775,139)
(6,339,327)

(518,395)
546,M7,315 548,294,397

12.2 Govemment grant - Maruwi Shelter Prognm refers to fund sourced from the
National Disaster Risk Reduction Management (Calamity Fund) for the
Marawi Recovery, Rehabilitation and Reconstruction Program (MRRRP) that
was bestowed to coverthe nationalsubsidy of the SHFC in acquiring land for
the Marawi Shelter Projec't (Phases I & ll), site development and construcfion
of retaining wall for the purpose of relocating 1,500 families.

13. FINANCIALLIABILITIES

This account consists of:

2022 2021
Current:
Accounts payable
lnsurance/reinsurance premium payable
Forward

1,130,320,469
81,510,784

1,017,509,203
61,366,301
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2022 2021
Loans payable - domestic
Due to officers and employees

1,629,292
1,042,310

3,865,062
1,117,O27

Non-cunent:
Loans payable - domestic

1,214,*2,U5

400,760

1,083,856,593

2,004,452
1,2{4,903,61{ 1,085,861,045

13.1 Accounts oavable

This refers mainly to the remaining 50 per cent of CMP loan proceeds and
origination fees retained by SHFC pending compliance with other
requirements amounting to P953.752 million and P987.762 million as at
December 31,2022 and 2021, respectively. The 50 per cent partial release
of loan proeeds is implemented based on NHMFC Board Approved
Resolution No. 3149, series of 2001. This account also indudes perfected
contrac{s with suppliers amounting to P176.568 million and P29.745 million
as at December 31 ,2022and2021, respec{ively.

13.2 lnsurance/Reinsurcnce oremium pavable

This account refers to one-year insurance premium paid in advance to
SHFC by MBs through the CAs and aoordingly remitted upon enrollment
to MRI Pool.

13.3 Loans oavable - domestic

This account amounting to P2.030 million and P5.870 million for the years
2022 and 2021, respectively, represents the costs of the office building,
parking space and other structures acquired from BSP. (See Note 16.2)

14. INTER.AGENCY PAYABLES

This account consists of:

2022 2021
Due to parent corporation (NHMFC)
Due to BIR
Due to Treasurer of the Philippines
Due to Pag-lBlG
Due to SSS
Due to PhilHealth

20,428,525
15,64{i.,474

999,5:!7
342,629
226,566

40,58/.,547
8,859,322
1,293,230

357,532
221,216
150

37 51 't16

14.1 Due to oarcnt corwntion (NHMFC)

This account includes expense for personal seMces, administrative and
operating expenses, retirement benefits, and renewal/enrollment of CMP
accounts at Pag-lBlG MRI Pml advanced by NHMFC as provided for in the
Trust Agreement.
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14.2 Due BIR

This account represents the taxes withheld from payment of employees'
compensation and allorances, and frcm go\remment money payments to be
remitted to BIR on or before 15h day and 'l0t day of the follorving month,
respectively.

14.3 Due to Tleasu/",r of the Philiooines

This account represents the interest income on deposits (net of tax) eamed
from the DOTr and DILG Funds to be remitted to the Bureau of the Treasury
afler the dosing of the year-end financial statements as proMded in the
Memorandum of Agreement between SHFC and DOTr/DILG.

2022 2021
Cunent:
Performance warranty
Bidders' bonds

4,259,669
503,396

4,287,771
503,396

4,763,065 4,791,167

Non{urent:
NHMFC
DOTr
AKPF (See Nofe ,2)
Other trust liabilities

14,7fi,822,155
3,000,000,000

546,(N7,315
760,600,000

14,756,822,155
3,000,000,000

548,294,397
450,049,000

19,063,469,470 18,755,165,552

15.1 National Hone Mortoaoe Finana Corwration (NHMFC)

The transfer of the CMP accounts to SHFC was initially implemented through
the transfer of the cash balance as at September 30, 2005 of PSg2 million on
No\rember 10, 2005 and the tumover of the outstanding principal loan
balance of the mortgages taken-out from 1994 onwards. Said conveyance
correspondingly required the transfer of the General Ledger (GL) balances of
certain accounts related to the program. ln addition, the transfer also
considered the portion of the GL balances pertaining to mortgages tumed
over to SHFC and to those retained by NHMFC.

The CMP Mortgages from 1989 to 1993 with a total outstanding principal
loan balance of P621 million as at December 31, 2009, which were retained
by NHMFC, were eventually transfeflGd to SHFC. This amount is temporarily
lodged under the Loans lnstallment Receivable (LlR) - cunent account but
vyas later reclassified to MCR - pest due ac@unt. Delails of this ac@unt as
at December 31, 2022 are as follows:

u

15. TRUSTLIABILMES

The account consisls of:



Particulars Amount
Cash
Loans installment receivable
Past due loan installment receivables
Retained eamings balance for transfer to NHMFC
Land
Notes receivable - National Housing Authority
lnterest income
Advanees to contractors
Advances to community association
Origination and appraisal cost
lnsurance receivable
lnterest receivables
Items in litigation
Unamortized mortgage origination cost
Origination fee payable
Service fee incentives
Technical subsidy
Real estate taxes
Other professional fees
Accounts payable - MCR
Undistributed collections
Guaranty deposits payable
lnsurance payable
Due to BIR (Wthholding tax payable)
Advances from borrowers
O(her deposits
Other payables
Performance wananty payable

(3,341,919,552)
11,282,851,44;2
2,750,U2,775

427,96r,999
638,298,293
200,000,000
r65,470,563
385,975,032

9,730,219
167,389,1,f8
119,672,45
72,873,957
51,345,059
50,'179,961
18,252,211
5,648,600
2,846,676

'18,682
3,500

(818,066,,191)
(200'012"182)
(165,830,829)

(5,189,361)
(2,r50,368)
(1,598,646)

(r9,286,988)
(26,961,1411

(r,092,5691
14,756,822,'155

The corresponding fund sourced from the Comprehensive and lntegrated
Shelter Financing Act (CISFA) of '1994 for the implementdion of CMP
amounting lo P12.775 billion was fully released by the DBM througrh NHMFC
in 20'17. Afier the exhaustion of the CISFA fund in 2019, the trust liability
account started to sustain negatiw cash balance, which amounted to P3.342
billion as at December 31, 2022. The subsequent CMP loan take.outs were
sourced from the SHFC's corporate fund. On December 31,2021, the DBM
released an amount of P325 million directly to SHFC as budgetary support to
cover the implementation of the CMP and recoded as subsidy income from
the National Govemment in the SHFC's books. (See Nofe 26)

15.2 Deoaftment of Transooftation (DOTr)

The Trust Agreement was entered into by and between the DOTr and SHFC
with an initial amount of P3 billion pesos (First Tranche) transfened to SHFC
on February 20,2018 to finance the resettlement program for the Philippine
National Railways South Commuter Projec't. Managernent had already
acquired BSP Property located in Carissa Homes, Tanza, Cavite as one
resettlement area for MBs afiecied by the project.

I
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15.3 Othertrustliabitities

This account pertains to the funds received by SHFC from the following
govemment agencies:

cr. Trust fund - Departrnent of the lnteior and Lcr;at Govemment (DILG)
amounting to P350 million refers to the fund held in trust per Trust
Agreement entered into by and between the D|LG and sHFi on June
27, 2016 intended for HDHP projects which was deposited and
maintained in a separate fund account (HDHP ll) in ord6r not to co-
mingle with other funds. The construction of ALpAS 2 project is still
ongoing, while the Jess Robredo Housing project is still under
negotiation between the HoA and the contractor on the contract
amount.

c.

d.

16. DEFERREDCREDITS'UNEARNEDINCOiIE

This account consists of:

Trust fund - lntrcmurcs Adminisfiation amounting to p410 million
refers to fund held in trust in 2021tor the relocation and resetflement of
five hundred (500) duly identified and qualified dwelter-families in
lntramuros.

lrugt luna - Depafiment of the Social Wetfare and Devetopment
(DswD) amounting to Pl0.360 million refers to the fund received on
JuJy 01 , 2016, from the Emeryenry Shelter Assistance program of
DS\ /D earmarked for the 148 ISF viciims of typhoon Sendong in
cagayan de oro city to be used solely for the purchase of houiing
materials. The P7.7 million portion of the fund was already utilized as
payment to loan amortization of beneficiaries while th6 remaining
unused balance of P2.660 million was returned/ refunded to the DSvlrD
under fficial Receipt No. 9334585 dated June 1, ZOZ1.

Trust fund Department of Human sefflemenfs and lJrban
Development (DHSUD) amounting to p600,000 refers to the fund
received on June 14,2022 from DHSUD to cover the cosuexpenses of
!!g!o_ad Right of Way (RROW) Acguisition project of Hadiya Viilage,
MSP Phase I and Darussalam village, MSp phase ll bAth in the
amount of P300,000.

b.

2022 2021
Deferred income
Deferred credits

151,162,316 169,196,547

1

48 385
932

7
701 217 1
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16.'l Defered in@me

This account pertains to the interest as of date of application for restruciured
loans which are payable within a period of 30 years. (See Note 6.1e)

16.2 Defened cBdits

This account pertains to the principal portion of amortization payments of
SHFC for the ofiice spaces occupied and already paid by HUDCC in
advance. Upon full payment of the loan the account will be closed, and
conesponding asset will be transfened to HUDCC. (See Nofe ,3)

17, OTHERPAYABLES

This account consists of:

2022 2021
Undistributed collec{ions
Other payables
Contingency fund payable
Leave benefits payable
Retirement gratuity payable

353,806,866
973,397,416
'183,936,769
47,468,087
14,6t4,156
53,763,231

413,693,000
905,394,359

0
46,776,159
20,276,776
19,822,656Dividends payable (See Note 78. 2)

1,626,986,525'r,40s,962,950

17 .1 U ndistibuted ollections

This account refers lo amortizdion paymenG not yet applied/posted to
individual borrowe/s a@ount as of stdement date due to timing differences
and other relaled concerns. lt consists of accounls for clearing under the
following categories:

2022 2021
Un-posted amortization payments from remedial

accounts
Un-posted amortization payments from HDH projects
Un-categorized amortization payments
No abstract of collections
Not in the database
Non-transmittal of collec{ion documents by NHMFC
Collections from MBs who availed of the 1-year

updating scheme
Not in the master list
Un-posted amortization payments from r€slructured

accounts
Others

125,77 1,221 1 1 4,532,2ffi
2A,623,611 33,693,7S
75,742,181 75,742,141
63,192,129 92,960,56'l
22,620,81 62,208,319
14,878,6.15 14,878,645

2,302,395 7,379,964
3,188,219 3,444,477

58,109 58,398
17,4?n,.,49 8,794,379

353,806,866 413,693,000

The approval of in-house restructuring program will serve as guidelines for
remedial accounts to begin the process of documentation up to posting and
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reversal of amortization payments. payments categorized under lvo abstact
of @llections and Nof in the master lisf need compliances of the
discrepancies noted in the payments of substitutes before collec{ions can be
cleared and posfled.

17.2 Other pavables

2022 2021
Guaranty Deposils Payable
Advances from Bonowers
Origination Fee Payable
Unreleased Chec*s
Due to Provident Fund

410,766,291
433,038,52,1

34,765,76,t
60,256,844

3,247,011
31,322,988

315.249.769
419,224,817
34,019,098
6,489,565
2,323,757

't26,087,353Other Payables

973,397 ,416 905,394,359

This account consists of:

a. Guaranty Deposits Payable

Said dvance payment shall be regularly credited as monthly
amortization payment in cases of deficient or no payrnents for lhe
month.

b. Advances from Bonowers

This account refers to three rnonths and six months cash deposits
required f9r old and ne\i, originators, respectively, pursuant lo Corporate
Circular CMP No. 003, which is calculated based on the total rylonthly
amortization payment plus one.year MRI premiums.

\Mthout prejudice to the ftrst amortization to be peid by the CAs/MBs a
month after the date of tak€ out, this deposit shall be treated as a
regular advance payment on the same date.

c.

This account pertains to the amortizdion payments in excess of the
amount due for the curent period but is not deducted from the principal
balance upon distribution of amorlization collections.

Origination Fee Payable

This account refers to the 50 per cent origination fee etained by SHFC
pending originators' full compliance with requircments.

d. Due to Provident Fund

This account refers to deduciions made from the salaries of the
employees epresenting 3 per cenl of their basic salaries as part of the
contributory plan. Upon remittance, the SHFC contributes 15 per cent of
the basic salary of each employee.
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17.3 Continqencv fund oavable

This represents the set-up of contingent liability for the amount of MRI
premiums received from the annual enrollment or renewal of insurance
policy of member-benefi ciaries.

17.4 Leave benefits pavable

This account pertains to accrual of money value of the earned leave credits
of regular employees.

17.5 Retirement qrctuitv pavable

This account pertains to retirement gratuity benefits due to employees.
sHFc is using RA No. 7641lor the computation of retirement gratuity.

18. EQUITY

18.1 Caoital Stoc,k

SHFC has an authorized capital stock of PIOO million divided into 100,000
shares with a par value of P1,000 each. A total of 2s,oo0 shares were
subscribed by the NHMFC, of which, 10,000 shares were paid for P10 million
and the balance of P15 million remains unpaid for the 15,000 subscribed
shares.

The paid-in portion of authorized capital stock is P10 million and transferable
pursuant to the distribution mandated by Eo No. 212. of this amount,
P9.989 million was paid up by the NHMFC and the remaining amount by
various stockholders for and in behalf of the Govemrnent of the Philippines.

18.2 Retained Eaminss

The appropriated retained earnings include (a) retained eamings due for
transfer to NHMFC as addition to Trust Liabitity pursuant to the amended
Trust Agreement and (b) Funds appropriated for HDH project.

Dividends declared were P53.763 million and P19.823 million tor years 2022
and 2021, respectively, that were due for remittance to Bureau of Treasury
on or before May 15 of the following year.

The prior period adjustments at the beginning of CY2022 amounting to
P7.795 million refers to the net amount of the following:

Particulals Amount
Adjustment on over set up of CY2021 dividends
Redassification of tangible items below PS0,00O

threshold as semi-expendable property
Adjustment on retirement gratuity payable
Other adiustments

10,128,640

(20,581,550)
3,078,051
(420,329)

(7,795,199)
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19. SERV|CE Al{D BUSI}|ESS ttitcofE

This account consists of:

2022 2021
Service income

lnterest income - loans and r€ceivables
Fines and penalties - seMce income

424,592,083
280,629,496

429,994,223
178,076,s98

Business income
Other business income

Service fee
Miscellaneous income

12,297,64
413,47

11,339,327
30't,627

717,932,710 619,711,s7s

19.1 Other business incorDe accourf mnsists of:

b. Miscellaneous income account includes:

a. Se/vr'ce /be which represents 20 per cent service fee eamed by SHFC
from enrollmenl of the MBs to the MRI pool particulady interesi income
from loans and recei\rables, other business income and its fines and
penalties.

o incore from penalty on late amortizalion payments of the MBs;. other miscellaneous income derived frcm processing fee of the
application for penatty condonation and substitution;

o photocopy fee and recovery of VAT payments;
. interes{ from calamity loans granted to officers and employees

affected by typhoon Ondoy;
. surcharges from suppliers on late deliveries; and
! recognition of refund of excess payments arnounting to PSOO and

belovy as miscellaneous income per Office Oder No. 07-0075,
series of 2007, dated May 10,2OO7 .

20. PERSOI{NELSERVICES

This account consists of:

2022 2021
Salaries and wages - regular
Other compensation

Year-end bonus
Personnel economic relief allowance
Transportation allowance
Representation allowance
Overtime and night pay
Clothing/uniform allowance
Fotward

132,732,735 132,@3,449

11,078,289
5,205,770
4,435,620
4,292,500
3,252,624
1,281,780

11,17't,612
5,305,'t95
4,221,326
3,990,000

714,862
1,301,220
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2022 2021
Cash gift
Hazard pay
Honoraria

750
0
0

,0871 1,109,000
1,415,000

170,000
65,233,147Other bonuses and allowances 70,376,997

10{,0{ 1.330 94,631 ,362Personnel benefit contributions
ProvidenUwelfare fund contributions
Retirement and life insurance premiums
PhilHealth contributions
Pag-lBlG contributions

19,590,133
5,447,793
2,409,299

263,000

19,668,429
5,509,617
1,707,201

266,000
insurance MS 7 30

27.,778 27. 230,977
Other personnel benefits

Terminal leave benefits
Retirement gratuity
Other personnel benefits

1 5,245,654 12,704,970
1,849,959

205,000
0
0

15,245,654 14,759 ,829
276,769,393 268,685,517

21. iIAINTENANCE AND OTHER OPERANNG EXPENSES

This acount oonsists of:

2022 2021
Trraveling expenses

Traveling expenses - local 11,339,020
216,469

6,730,409
0Traveling expenses - foreiqn

11 6,730,409
Train ing and scholarship expenses

Training expenses 2,'732,135 766,699
2: 135 766,699

Su pplies and materials expenses
Office supplies expenses
Fuel, oil and lubricants expenses
Semi-Expendable Machinery and Equipment

Expenses
Accountable forms expenses
Semi-expendable fumiture, fixtures and books

expenses
Medical, dental, and laboratory supplies

expenses
Drugs and medicines expenses

8,029,102
5,482,671

1,469,523
581,369

6,275,053
3,390,151

56,159
216,299

Other

302,299 62,416

183,472
143,ggl

770
19,524

1

732
Fonward

and materials
1 71 152 11
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2022 2021
Utility expenses

Electricity expenses
Water expenses

9,857,336
719,O47

8,130,753
662,403

10,576,393 8,793 ,156
Comm unication expenses

Postage and courier services
I nternet subscri ption expenses
Telephone expenses

3,423,726
3,216,910
1,893,799

58,662

4,347,5s6
2,640,691
1,881,667

43,000Ca satellite. ph and radio
8.593.086 8.9',12.914

Confidential , intelligence and extraordinary
expenses

Extraordinary and miscellaneous expenses 909.804 874,761
909,804 874,761

Professional services
Consultancy services
LegalseMces
Other professiona! services

1,239,62
115,000
820,217

2,778,U1
1,516,490
3,876,959

2,173,679 8,172,190
General services

Clerical services
Security services
Janitorial services
Other general services

141,997,550
42,633,990

3,541,392
12,963,510

127,253,94A
53,697,715
4,069,811
1,431,491

201,126,322 186,452,U7
Repairs and maintenanoe

Repairs and maintenan@ - transportation
equipment

Repairs and maintenance - machinery and
equipment

Repairs and maintenance - leased assets
improvements

Repairs and maintenance - buildings and other
structures

Repairs and maintenance - fumiture and
fixtures

Repairc and maintenance - semi-expendable
fumiture and fixtures

3,341,723

256,5{8

96,533

95,600

2,500

0

2,517,796

196,003

357,451

23,927

530

2,104
3,782.874 3,097,811

T€xes, insurance premiums and other fees
Taxes, duties and licenses
lnsurance expenses
Fidelity bond premiums

14,093,41
667,7{g
326,O77

14,927,396
766,530
239,161

I ,197 15.933,077
Other maintenance and operating expenses

RenUlease expenses
Representation expenses
Association dues
Forward

16,444,757
6,223,919
5,960,520

13,021,627
2,152,193
5,641,690
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2022 2021
Major events and conventions expenses
Collection seMcing fee
Origination and appraisal cost
Litigation/acquired assets expenses
Financia! assistance/subsidy/contribution
Directors and committee members' fees
Printing and publication expenses
Miscellaneous expense
Advertising, promotional and marketing

expenses
Subscription expenses
Transportation and delivery expenses
Donations
Membership dues and contributions to

organizations
Others

5,121,530
4,021,906
3,388,459
2,450,592
1,472,il7
1,431,000

881,517
739,{95

559,924
578,788
193,416

0

4,166,233
4,572,794
5,583,269

0
2,526,645
1,860,000

540,979
1,816,085

2,119,335
203,348

62,280
't,075,000

0
911.096

5,975
212,615

50,378,925 45,559,858
323,633,045 297,120152

22. NON.CASH EXPENSES

This account consists of:

2022 2021
Depreciation

Depreciation - buildings and other structures
Depreciation - machinery and equipment
Depreciation - transportation equipment
Depreciation - leased assets improvements

6,781,868
6,617,{34
3,385,802
1,756,910

6,781,868
8,534,004
2,862,964
1,689,705

221,898Depreciation - furniture, fixtures and books 1

18,670,887 20,090,439
Amortization

Origination and appraisal cost
Amortization - intangible assets

lmpairment loss

2,119,797
1,396,270

1,421,948
1,553,504

lmpairment loss - loans and receivables 6.371.825 11,495,825

28,558,779 34,561,7'16

23. FINANCIAL EXPENSES

This account consists of:

2022 2021
lnterest expenses
Bank charges

337,374
46.928

700,404
93,235

793,639384,302

43



24, OTHER ]{OiIOPERATII{G INCOTE

This account consists of:

2022 2021
lnterest income - notes
lnterest income - bank deposits

1,114,931
15.030.459

6,165,106
17.467.802

16,1'15,390 23,632,908

24.1 lntercst in - nofes

This account represents interest eamed at an average prevailing interest
rates of 3.340 per cent per annum for lnvestments in Treasury Bills.

24.2 lnterest income - bank deposits

This account represents interest eamed at prevailing interest Etes of 1.40 to
1.85 per cent per annum for the time deposit and 0.10 per cent for the
current account.

25. INCOME TAXES

The major components of prorisions for income tax for the yeaIs ended December 31,
2022and 202'l follows:

2022 2021
Cunent
Deferred

7,179,327
15,867,817

6,'t97,',t16
(323,233)

23,047,14 5,873,883

SHFC applied the minimum corporde incorne tax (MCIT) rate on taxable gross income
lot CY2O22 and CY2021 since its taxable net income resulted in breakeven. Also, SHFC
claimed itemized deduc{ions in computing for its incone tax due for both CYs 2022 and
2021.

2022 2021
Net income before incorne tax
Nondedudible seense
lnterest inoome on investment/bank de

104,733,591
3,600,374

(16.145.390)

42,183,159
4,945,280

(23,632,908)
Forward

44

Moreover, regular corporale income ta( (RCIT) rate was reduc€d from 30 to 25 per cent
while MCIT rate was reduced from 2 to 1 per cent upon effec{ivity of RA No. 1,1534,
othenrise known as Corporate Recovery and Tax lncentives for Enterprises (CREATE)
Act, on April 12,2021.

25.1 Cunent Tax Expense

The components of RCIT are as follols:



2022 2021
Accounting income subject to tax
Loan loss provision
Applied NOLCO

92,188,575
6,371,925

(98,560,400)

23,495,531
11,495,825

(34,991,356)
Net taxable inome (loss)
Tax rate 25o/o

0
25o/o

0

RCIT 0 0

Excess (MCIT) over RCIT:

2022 2021
Gross income
Tax rate

717,932,710
1olo

619,71 1,575
1o/o

MCIT 7,179,327 6,197,116
RCIT 0 0
Cunent tax expellse 7,179,327 6,197,116

25.2 Defened Tax Assef and Exrynse

The components of SHFC's deferred tax assets follows

2022 2021
Defened tax asset - beginning
Temporary differences:

Loan Ioss provision
NOLCO applied
Tax rate

109,165,683 1O9,U2,450

6,371,825
(98,560,'O0)

25%

11,495,825
(34,991,356)

25o/o

Excess MCIT over RCIT
123,047,14/.1

7,179,327
(5,873,883)

6,197,116
Deferred tax benefiU(expense) (1q867r817) 323,233
Defened tax asset - ending 93,297,866 109,165,693

The following are the details of the SHFC's Net Operating Loss Carry Over
(NOLCO) and Minimum Corporate lncome Tax (MCIT), which is available for
offsetting against the future income:

NOLCO:

lnceotion Year Amount Applied Balance Expiry Year
2020 142,454,220 (98,560,400) 4q,99q,920 2025

142,4il.220 43,893,820

MCIT:

lnception Year Amount Applied Balance Expiry Year
2022
2021
2020

7,179,327
6,197,116
8,333,194

0 7,179,327
0 6,197,116
0 8.333.194

2025
2024
2023

21,709,637 021
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25.3 lname tax payable

This account represents income tax still due after deducting previous quarter
income tax payments and tax credits, if any, for the years ended December
31,2022 and 2021 as follows:

2022 2021
lncome tax due
Less: Tax payments from previous quarters

7,179,327
4,583,091

6,197,116
3,661,385

lncome tax payable 2,596,236 2,535,731

26. NET ASSISTANCE'SUBSIDY INCOME FROM NATIONAL GOVERNMENT

The total approved funding allocation and release from DBM as the National
Government's support for the housing projecis, including the NDRRM Fund sourced
from GAA for the implementation of Marawi Shelter Projecls, amounted to
P1,881 ,297,132 and P1,005,285,424 lor the years 2022 and 2021, respectively. The
subsidy inome received in CY 2021 includes the P325 million budgetary support to
cover the implementation of CMP. (See Note 15.1)

On the other hand, the financial assistance to Non-Govemment Organizations (NGOs)
and technical assistance and service to People's Organizations (POs) amounted to
P0.166 million and P19.326 million for the years 2022 and 2021, respectively.

27. LEASES

The related rent expense recognized in profit or loss amounted to P16.445 million and
P13.022 million for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, respedively.
(See Note 21)

Operating Lease

SHFC is a lessee of office spaoes for its Regional Extension Units staff. The lease term
is for a period of three years and renewable thereafter.

The minimum rentals payable under these non-cancellable operating lease as at
December 31,2022 are as follows:

2022
\Mthin one year 6,348,'102

4,003,138Beyond one year but not laterthan five years
10,351,240

Finance Lease

SHFC is a lessee with lease term of 15 years. The leased assets and the conesponding
lease liabilities (net of finance charges) under finance leases are recognized in the
Statement of Financial Position as property and equipment and borrowings, respectively,
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at the inception of the leases based on the lower of the fair value of the leased assets
and the present value of the minimum lease payments. Each lease payment is
apportioned between the finance expense and the reduction of the outstanding lease
liability. The finance expense is recognized in profit or loss on a basis that reflects a
constant periodic rate of interest on the finance lease liability.

The minimum rental payable under these non-cancellable finance lease as at December
31,2022 are as follows:

2022
Within one year 1,629,282

400,766Beyond one year but not later than five years
2,030,048

28. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

As of December 31,2022, the composition of the Board of Directors of SHFC is as
follows:

Board Position Name Position ftom Other Agencies
1. Chairman Jose Rizalino L. Acuzar Chairman, Department of Human

Settlement and Ur.ban Development
President & CEO, SHFC
Under Secretary, DILG
Under Secretary, Departrnent of
Finance
President & CEO, NHMFC
Direc;tor, DBM
Private Sector
Private Sector
Private Sector

2. Vice-Chairman
3. Member
4. Member

5. Member
6. Member
7. Member
8. Member
9. Member

Federico A. Laxa
Benjamin D. Abalos, Jr.
Usec. Catherine L. Fong

Renato De Leon Tobias
Usec. Leo Angelo M. Larcia
Lyndon B. Catulong, Sr.
Atty. Emiliano C. Reyes
Ronald R. Barcena

Key Management Perconnel Remuneration and Componsation

The key Management personnel of SHFC are the President, Executive Vice-President,
five Vic+Presidents, and Managers and Division Chiefs of operating and support
groups.

Meanwhile, the total remuneration (per diem) received by the members of the Board of
Directors amounted to P1.431 million and P1.860 million for CY 2O2Z and CY 2021,
respectively.

29. COilITUIITilIENTS AND CONNNGENCIES

Legal Claims

SHFC is a respondent to a labor case doct<eted as AC-973-RCMB-NCR-LVA-024-01-09-
2014 titled SOHEAI vs. SHFC in CY 2015 wherein the CIfice of the Panel Votuntary
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Arbitrator ruled in favor of SOHEAI directing the gamishment of time deposit at DBp
amounting to P70.931 million for the release of discontinued benefils under the
Collective Bargaining AgreerEnt and State of the Nation Bonus to its member.

On Oclober 14, 2O2O, the Supreme Court promulgated its decision where the Court
denied the petition and upheld the CA ruling that the benelits under CBA and SONA
bonus are not allowed. SHFC ftled a Motion for Reconsideration to the Court and
awailing for its final resolution.

30. RISK MANAGETI'ENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

SHFC's principal financial instrumenls comprise cash, receivables, due from a related
party, invesiment in securities, a@ounts payable and accrued expenses, and due to
related parties. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise wofting
capital for SHFC's operations.

Financial Risk Management

Credit Risk

Moftgage Contracts Receivable -CMP Loans

CMP loans receivable are 2$y@t, six per cent interest loans securcd by mortgage on
the land subject of the loan. The loans are given to qualified CAs rnade up mosfly of
poor and underprivileged families to assist them in purchasing the private land where
lhey are informally settled or buying a relocation site.

The property, subjec{ of loan and mofigage, is registered under the narne of the CA. The
property is covered by a subdivision plan and eeh lot in the subdMsion plan is assigned
to a member under a lease purchase agreement (LPA) with the association. The LpAs
of the associations are asslgned to SHFC as additional security for the community loan.

C'€dit Policy for MCRs -CMP Loans

The CMP Loan Program follours the legal mandate of the Urban Development and
Housing Ac{ and is thercfore not in conformity with the credit standads prescribed by
the BSP for finandal institutions under its supervision. ln lieu of the normal credit
standards, lhe program requires cA members to deposit in advance savings equivalent
to three months amortization as prod of capacity and willingness to pay.

The exposure to credit risk on sHFC's receivables relates primarily to the inability of
customers to fully seule the unpaid balance of accounts receivables and other daims
owed to SHFC.

SHFC generally ascertains credit standing of counte.parties before entering into a
business transaction. The examination of credit standing includes the folloiing: (1)
financial resour@s (2) ownership struc{ure; and (3) quality & Managernent.

sHFC.does not have any significant concentration of credit risk. lts maximum exposure
to credit risk is equivalent to the carrying value of its financial assets.
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lnsurance

For the duration of the loan, there shall be a mortgage insurance on the lives of the
principal bonowers as identified in the maslorlist of members on a yearly renewable term
basis. The insurance premiums shall be included in the monthly amortizations of the
members. An equivalent of one-year mortgage insurance premium shall b€ required
from the CAs in lhe form of cash deposit prior to the release of the loan proceeds.

Secudty

SHFC follows an appraisal procedure and policy tha{ is marke{-based and allortls a
maximum loan to value ratio of 100 per cent.

Collection

The Mortgage Contract Receivable - CMP Loans are covered by a collection agreement
with the CAs. The CAs collect the monthly amortizations from its members and remit
them to SHFC.

The crcdit quality by class of MCR based on SHFC's aging of provisions are detailed in
the following table:

Balance,
Januery 1.2022

Additional
Provision

Recovery/
Rev6rsal

Balance,
D.ccmber 31, 2022

Mortgage contrac'ts receivable
Cunenl accouds
Past dus accounts

Over 3 months - 12 months
Ovar 12 months - 3 years
Over 3 years

Items in litioation

5,347,442 4,295,014 0 9,6/12,456

9,274,A57
22,579,458
56,520,11s
4,695,164

0
0

7,190,840
0

(2,7 ,792)
(2,315,2371

o
0

6,4E0,065
20,260,201
63,710,955
4,695,16/t

9E,417,016 11,485,854 (5, r 14,029) 10/t,7EE,E/l1

Liquiditv Risk

Liquidity risk pertains to the risk thal SHFC will encounter difiicuhy in meeting obligations
associated with maturing obligations that are settled by delivering cash or another
financial assel.

The total financial liabilitios of sHFc excluding the statutory obligations such as tax
liabilities as at December 31 . 2022 and 2021 are as follours:

2022 2021
Financial liabilitieS
Defened creditsi/uneamed income

1,212,873,fi3
199,q)7,701

1,079,991 ,531
217,541,932

Other ables 2.030 ,048 5,869 ,514
1,414,81'l ,312 1,303,802,977
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sHFc monitors its risk to a shortage of fund by analyzing the maturity date of its
financial assels, including financial investments and ambuni of cash flow provided or
used in operations.



31. EVENTSAFTERREPORTING PERIOD

32. ]MPACTOF COVTD-i9

Continued efiorts from the previous year wena und€rtaken by the SHFC in response to
the impac{ of the COVIO-1g pandemic. These include the folloring:

Efrorts made to sustain project take out:
r Continued use of eleclronic/online plat orms (e.9., messeng€r, email, text messaging,

Zoom, Facebook, SHFC website, among others) to communicate and coordinate with
the HOA/CAs, LGUs and other stakeholders;

e Conduct of site visits and other aciivities which need physical interaciion while
adhering to the DOH Minimum Health Standards and Sabty Protocols, in accordance
with the alert level status of the area;

. lncreased pnesenoe on the ground through tumover ceremonies and groundbreaking
evenb to enoourage int6rest6d CAs to apply for SHFC's progEms, while adhering to
the minimum public heahh standards; and

r Virlual orientation, MOA signing and other collaborations with the LGU and other
stakeholders.

Efforts made to maintain the loan anbftization collections:
. Use of online communication channels;
. Assistance to HOA"/CAs through giving of directions on where to conduct collections

of housing loan amortizations;
. Promotion of digital payment options lo all stakeholders to assist the pa(ner

homeowners in paying thei[ amortization;
. Additional online payment channels (PayMaya and GCash); and
. Corporate-wide collection campaign in the form of a collection text brigade

participated by all SHFC employees.

Opentional Efforts:
. operated at a minimum worKorce capacity to accommodate collections from cAs

and MBs;
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Regulatory Framework

The operation of SHFC is also subjec-t to the regulatory requirements of the Securities
and Exchange Commission (SEC). Such regulations nol only prescribe approval and
monitoring of ac{ivities but also impose certain restrictive provisions.

EO No. 150 dated Oc'tober 1, 2021 on Compensation and Posilion Classification
System's impact on SHFC's financial position is yet to be determined. SHFC received
the Authorization to lmplement dated Decembet 15, 2022 from the Govemance
Commission for GOCCs (GCG) under Category 2, GOCC Grade '17, Tier 4 and
Category 2 Salary Structure. This will be subjec{ for Board's approval, then will be
indorsed by the SupeMsing Agency and will be implemonted ffier receiMng the final
letterfrom GCG.



' Continued ,t .oj. Pfograqg (Online Appointment System, Community Needs
Assessment, and Electronic Signature System); ando Continued adherence to the guidelines on occupational safety and health standards
to ensure the safety of all the stakeholdens.

33. COMPLIANCE WTH TAX LAWS

SuDolementarv lnformation Required Under Revenue Reoulations (RR) No. 15-2010

On November 25, 2010, the BIR issued RR No. 15-2OlO amending certain provisions of
RR No. 21-2002, as amended and implementing Section 6(H) of iire Tax ioae of 1997
which authorize the Commissioner of lnternal Revenue to prescribe additional
procedural and/or documentary requirements in conneslion with ihe preparation and
submission of financial statements acoompanying the tax returns. fdesi regulations
require that additional disclosures in the notes totnancial statements shall be made to
include information on taxes and licenses fees paid or accrued during the taxable year.

ln_compliane with the requirements set forth in RR No. 15-2010, hereunder are the
information on taxes, licenses and fees paid or accrued during the taxable years.

2022 2021
Finaltax paid on income
Percentage tax
Real property tax
Business permits

3,263,000
6,626,661
2,925,304
1,277,936

500

4,244,976
7,022,753
1,977,823
1,681,434

s00BIR

14,093,401 14,927,386

The amount of withholding taxes paid/acoued forthe taxable years amounted to:

2022 2021
lncome taxes withheld on compensation and final

withholding taxes (1604-C)
Creditable income taxes withheld (expanded)fincome

from tax 604- 19 91
44 919 222

Tax Continqencies

SHFC did not receive any final tax assessments in CY 2022, and has no tax cases
under preliminary investigation, litigation andlor prosecution in courts or bodies outside
the administration of the BlR.

20,732,877 25,427,229

7
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PART II

OBSERVATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS



1

OBSERVATIONS AND RECOMTTIENDATIONS

A. FINANCIAL AUDIT

Undistributed Collections (UC) totaling P35:i.807 mllllon temained
unposted to the Uortgage Contract Receivablo (MCRI, despite the policy
lmplemented and efiorts exetted by Uanagement to lower the same, thus,
oveEtating both the Other Payabl$ and the CR accounts by the same
amount as at December 31, 2022.

1 .1 Paragraph 15 of the Philippine Accounting Standard (PAS) 'l on
Presentation of Financial Statements states that:

Financial sfafemenfs shall prcsent laiily the financial position,
financial performance and cash flows of an entity. Fair
prcsentation rcquircs the faithful rcp@sentation of the etrecls of
tnnsaclions, other events, and conditions in aeordance with
definition and recognition lbr assefg liabilities, income aN
experses set out in the fnnework. The application of /FRS'S,
with a&itional disc/osure when neessary is p/esumed to rcsl;llt
in financial statements that acf,ieve a fair presentation.

1.2 O,fficc Order No. 21-'1178, Series of 2020, Policy on lmplementing the
distribution/posting of amortization collections, provides that:

A. IN-HOUSECOLLECTIONS

Daily amortization collections from head office and regional/satellite
ofiices shall be posted/credited to borrowefs account within one (1)
day after payrnent is made. This is in line with the Community
Association lnformation System (CAIS) Kiosk and Cash Management
lmplementation System.

Regional/satellite ofiices having intemet and/or conneclivity problems
with ZEUS are required to transmit their weekly colledions on the
firsl day of the folloYving week. VVfth this circumstan@, the Data
Managerrcnt Division (DMD) shall ensure posting of weekly
collec{ions of the concemed ofiices within three to five (3-5) days
from actual receipt of the collec{ion documents.
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B. LANDBANK OF THE PHTL|PP|NES (LBp) COLLECTTONS

Semi-monthly collec,tions from LBP shall be posted wilhin three to
five (3-5) days from actual receipt of the collec.tion documents frcm
Cash Management Department (CMD).



Daily colledion from payment centers (e.9., ECPay, LinkBiz e{c.)
shall be posted wilhin one ('t) day after receipt of collection
reporUdaily transaclions from CMD.

DMD shall conduct a reconciliation behreen booked and posted
collections on the third week of each succeeding reporting period to
ensure accuracy of balances and shall make a "go" signal for
lnformalion Communicalion Technology Division (ICTD) to prooeed
with the batch processing of transactions. ICTD shall provide within
three to five (3-5) days the raw data of processed transac{ions to the
DMD as basis in the preparation of summary ol actual distdbution of
colleclions, ageing of accounts, cumulative CER, and other reports.

The UC mcount refers to amortization payments not yet applied/posiled to
the individual borrowe/s account as of stalement date due to timing
differences and other related conems euch as:

C. OTHERPAYMENTCHANNELS

Payments categorized under no abstraci of collections should be verified
first in the CAIS Kiosk in order to ascertain the conec{ amount of
amortization to be paid by MBs, while those not in the master list need to
comply with the substitution process before collections can be cleared
and posted.

Offce Order No. 21-1178, Series of 2020, Policy on lmplementing the
distribution/posting of amortization coll€ctions, was issued by SHFC in
order to pre\rent the accumulation of UC.

't.3

1.4

't.5

1.6 Review of the UC under the Other Payables account as at December 31,
2022 disdosed a total decrease of P59,886,134 o l4 per cent of the total
UC balance as at December 31, 2021.

C.tegory UC Balanc.
12131t20X2

UG Balance
12t31t2021

lncroa3e,
(Dccrcarel Percentage (%)

Abskact Related
One Year Updating
Restructuri ng
Not in Database
HDH
Remedlal

63,192,129
2,W2,395

58,109
2.,620,81
28,623,61,r

125,771,24

t0r,857,539
16,29,1,2E8

58,109
?9,866,599
35,8An,825

118,215,111

(38,665,,r'r o)
(1 3,99 r ,E93)

0
(7,245,738)
(8,211 211)
(7,526,083)

(3E)
(66)

0
(21\
(221

6

A2

. Payrnerds with no abstract of collec:tions;
o Payments not in the master list;
. Payments from Member Beneficiaries (MBs) who availed of the One

Year Updaung;
. Payments frcm MBs who availed of the Restructuring Program;
. Unposted collec.tions from Remedial accounts;
. Payrnentrs of MBs not in database;
. Paymenls of High Density Housing (HDH) accounts in the proce$ of

migrdion; and
o Collec{ions of NHMFC for the account of SHFC.



Gategory UC Balance UC Bahnce
12t31t2021

lncrease/ Percentage (%)

Not in Maeter list
Wth Site Development
NHMFC
Unaccounted

3,188,219
10,058

1/1,878,645
75,712,182

3,188,219
10,058

14,878,645
75,712,182

0
0
0
0
1

0
0
0

1.7

17
Total

Management was able to post and allocate to the individual ledger
balances of MBs in the amount of P119,412,418 ot 28.87 per cent of the
accumulated UC balances tor QY 2021 and earlier and a total of
P1,190,269,026 or 95.24 per oent were posted and allocated for the CY
2022 lransactio ns. Detai ls are s ho\,vn belovv :

Particulars Amount Percentage
of Posting

UC Balance as at December3l ,2021
Less: 2021 UC distributed/allocated in 2022 119,41 l_418 28.87*

413,693,000

Balance
Add: Undistributed Collections tor CY 2022

294,290,592
1.249.795.310

Adjusted Balance
Less: 2022 UC distributed/allocatedin 2022

1,544,075,892
1,190,269,026 95.24*

UC balance as at December 31 ,2022 353,E06,E66

1.8

1.9

* Percentage of allocated/distibuted UC pertaining to prior years
*Percentage of allocateildistibuted UC prtaining to cunent year

The decrease in the UC can be associated to the various programs and
ac{ivities that Management has implemented viz:

a. lnstallation of CAIS Kiosk in the Head ffice and Regional Offices;
b. Sending of notices to various CAs on the submission of photocopies

of Community Mortgage Receipts;
c. Providing all HUBS/Branches copies of UC for their validdion;
d. On site visits to CAs upon request of the CA ofiicers;
e. lmmediate reversal of accounts received thru +mail, walk in CAs;

and
f. Reconciliation of Landbank payments with CA officers.

Review of the aging of UCs as at December 31, 2022, disclosed that
Management has already identified the categories of the
u n posted/u ndistri buted loan amortization collections, as follows:

3t
Crbgoryof t C 03Od.F tl{odrtlr {21 to t50 lrl .trt ottrlr Totrl

One Year Updating
ReBtuctJring
Not in databose
HDH
Remedhl
Not in th€ MadBr li€ft
NHMFC
Unaccounted
Others

0
0

12,471,W
1/ts,So
9€,381

0
o
0

732,(}35

2,W2.gs
s8,1@

I,920,u2
27,570,M

12,?3,5,378
3,188,219

14,878,6/ts
75,742,192
16,@7,4*'

63,192,129
2,302,395

58,1G)
22,620,861
28,623,il4

125,n1,2.4
3,188,2'r9

14,878,6.15
75,742,182
17,429,ffi

0
0

1,821,ffi
2U,%A
736,565

0
0
0
0

0
0

46.1,343
215,SO
4?3,U1

0
0
0
0

0
0

651,725
7?a,90
624,436

0
0
0
0

0
0

285,610
178,630
741,633

0
0
0
0

I
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1.'10 According to Managem€nt the UC classified as "Not in the database" are
payments not c€ptured during the batch processing due to late posting,
especially those coming from LBP. However, as at February 20,2O2O, as
a result of the reconciliation, Management has already posted to the
individual MB ledgers a total of Pl 1.463 million, which is 50.68 per cent of
the December 3'l., 2022 UC balance of P22.621 million classified as "Not
in Database'. Moreover, collections from LBp for the second half of
December ot 2022 amounting to P4,476,000 have already been
accounted and its posting is ongoing. Management also explained that
the syslem that will catel HDH accounts is still having some minor
enhancernent (ledgering, additional loan features), and that the migration
prccess of HDH projeds to Zeus Operation Support lnformation System
(OSIS) was already done, however there are accounts where the loan
data ar6 yet to be encoded.

1.11 Further, payments with abstracl of colledions related issu$ refer to the
LBP and oth6r online partners where the Abstrac{ of Colleclions do not
tally with and actual payments, thus, a reconciliation with consultalion to
the CAs is necessary before posting paymenls to the individual ledger o,
the MBs is made. ln addition, ledger/data from NHMFC accounts have
not yet been provided.

1.12 Despite the eamest efforts of Management to reduce the UC, there is still
a balance of P353,806,866 as at Decembet 31,2022, resulting in the
overstdemenl of both the Payable and Receivable accounts by the same
amount.

1.13 Wo rolbrated our prior yea/s rocommendations and ansgement
agreed to:

Enaurc posung at tho end of the calendar year the cumBr yea/s
collections lodged ln UC; and

b. Requirc the ICTD to hcllttate the enhancement of the database
of HDH ilBs under migrstion and all other accounta not yot in
the database.

a

The rcquirements of tfio Philippine Financial Reporting Standard (PFRS) 9
on Flnancial tns'rumen,s werE not complied with, thus, the balancee of
varioug flnancla! asret accounts btaling p23.1g8 billion a! at December 31,
2022 arc misstated by undetsrmlned amounb.
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We fu lrer rccommonded and management agrced b:
c. lmplement mea3ur€a to prevent or cotrect the causes of the

non-posting of collections; and

d. Revlslt the timellne in Ofnce Oder No. 2,1-1178, the Policy
lmplementing the Distribution/Posting of Amortization
Collecdon8, conslderlng the volume of transactons,

2.



Jo! ecuer o e sso! aq elrrseew eqs llgue ue 'uouudaet
p!l!u! aouls ,fpuecEubts pesedcu, Jou seq l./€lun4sut
ppueuq e uo tlsu tlprc eq 'epp duyodu eq p 'l! 'xxx g.g.g

'uowufuat pglut ea,uts lryscEubs
peseetd4 seq Juewrutsut pE ueuL te.$ uo )tsy
y.pan eq JI sesso, Warc pelo€dxa ew$e$ oq ot pnb€
ynoue ue te y tru$u! Ppueu! e &t ocueao e ssol
etl ernseau ileqs tlgua ue '€rep dugtodu qcea le 'xxx e'g'g

.@)1.2., to (c)L.z.t
'(D)L'Z sqdadued q1m aueptwe ut $dde quew ,nba)
lueuedwt eq qclqr ot lcequ@ esluaen0 plcueug
e pue Juewllww@ ueo, e Jo lesse lce4uo, e 'ene^lecet
eseg, a 'VZ';, )o Z'L't sqda6eted qym aueptuce
u! patnseau s! lealr rasse Ppueu! e uo sasso/ rrp€uc
pa,,E,dxe nl acueao e sso, e esruEoca/ ileqs 4fiua uV

:qoq lo slseq aq uo ssot Jo lgafi qanalq anpt 4e!
to dJl@u, aatsuettretdwoc ru.4o t-tr6notq7 eryet )!e! '1.sac
pesuowe p ,€inseei.a ifiuenb€,sqns se sJessp ppueug
,g/ssero rreqs $gue ue 'seltfie 9'L'b qdaaued *aun

iiiEElEdut uO-

'ssol ro l6ucl qfrruq aryea 4e1 @)
to :€ttt@u! e lsudlerdut@ tago qana4| eryea4E @)

:$oc pesgroure (e)

$ 9'L'?-L'L', sqdaaaed WA queqofue u tesse
pbueug e elrlseew lplts lllrue ue 'uopludaet pa,u, reAV L'Z'g

'llruqet
ppueuq .ro ,esse ppueug e{r, Jo enssl to uoglsnbe
eq ol enetnqwe tw)lp eE pq srsoc uofloesue.,J
'sso1 to 14otd q6not4 enpa rp! p lou fiillqail pfcueug
.ro Jessa plcueug e lo eseJ et4 u 'snuut n snld eryert
Jlel q! le tlillqeil ppueu! .ro lesse plcueug e annseew
ileqs $rua ue 'uogluboce.l pg!u! p 'g'1'9 qdefiaed
JO edOCS eq uwrt^ Serge/treca, epe/4 rc! tclep.x3 L't'g

?essB ,B,!,ueug
eq, Jo scfsgercaeqc oU qsec pwe4ua eq (q)

pue ste6.se lBlcueuueq d46euew bl lqpoll.t sseursrg s,tgue al @)

L'9'9

L'L''

}uatranEilTo

:Uryl ol 'slusurruFul
lepueulJ uo 6 SUJd ;o suo;s4ord pau;ped oql ore 6upno11o3 eq1 t'z

99



2.2

2.3

2.4

that financial instument at an amount egual to l2-month
expec-ted credit losses.

5.5.16 An en6ty may se/ecf /s affiunting plicy for tnde
Eceivables, leasF- rcceivables and contracf assels
inclepedenfly of eadt other.

5.5.17 An enw shall measure expected credit ,osses of a
financial instrument in a way that rcflecb:

(a) an unbiasd and probabiw$eighted amount that is
detemined by evaluating a nnge of possible
outcomes;

(b) the tine value of noney; and
(c) rcasonable and suppoftable inlomalion that is

available without undue cp,st or effoil at the rcpoiling
date about past eyents, cunent condilions and
forecasts of fufure e@nomic @/1,dilions.

Moreover, PAS 1 requires that ftnancial statements must pr$ent faidy the
financial posilion, financial performance and cash flows of an entity. Fair
presentation requires the faithful representation of the efiecls of
transactions, other events and conditions in accordance with the
definitions and recognition criteria for assets, liabilities, income and
expenses set out in the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting.
The application of financial reporting standards, with additional disclosure,
when necessary, is presumed to result in financial statements that
achieve a fair presentation. A fair presentation also requires an entity to
selecl and apply accounting policies in acoordance with PAS 8 on
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Enors. pAS I
sets out a hierarchy of authoritative guidance that managernent considers
in the absence of a PFRS that specifically applies to an item.

As stated under Paragraph 1.1 of PFRS g, the objeciive of the standard is
to establish principles for the financial reporting of financial assets and
financial liabilities that will present relevant and useful information to
users of financial statements for the assessment of the amounts, timing
and uncertainty of an entity's future cash flows.

As at December 31,2022, the Corporation reporled the folloring financial
assets which are recorded at amortized cost in the Staternent of Financial
Position (SFP):

Particulars Amount % over
Total A$ots Remarks

lnvestment in treasury bills
Receivables, cunent
Other current assats
Receivablo, non-current
Olher non-cunent assets

50,000,000
1,20affi,2$
6,963,387,558

14,n1,527,O42
670,552,391

0.16
3.78

21.88
44.95

2.11

B.
A
A
B
A

Forward
23.187.833.199 72.87
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2.5

2.6

Particulars Amount % over
TotalAssets Remarks

Cash and cash equivalents 5,916,658,209 18.58 C
lnvestment in time deposits 60,000,000 0.19 C

Total Assets 3{,819,!913@ 10O
A -SHFC should selecf fs aaounting plicy for tnde rcaivables, /ease receivables and

contnd assefs indepen&ntly of each other and shall recqnize a loss allowance for
expcted credit /osses in aeordena with p't,glraph 5.5.16, PFRS 9.

8 -SHFC should also recognize a loss allowance for expecled credff losses on a frnancial
assef fhaf is measurd in acr,ordance with plc,gnphs 4.1.2 (amorthed cosl), PFRS 9.

B"- SHFC should provide the rcquind dr.sclosures in the Notes to Financial Sfafernenfs
for iE lnwstmant in Trcasury Efills.

C - Iiese amounh should be simflified as low crcdit isk, hence, no ECL

Reviemr of the SHFG's SFP as at December 31, 2022, showed that its
financial assets totaling P23,187,833,199, representingT2.ET per cent of
its total assets amounting to P31,819,597,340 are not compliant with
PFRS 9.

Further review of the accounts disclosed that SHFC continuously
assesses and computes impairment for Mortgage Contmcls Receivable
through loan loss provisioning which was approved under Board
Resolution No. 329 dated May 24,2013, as follows:

Loan Classification Loss Loan Rate (%)
Cunent Accounts
Cunent Accounts - Restruc'tured
Past Due

>3-12 months
>1-3years

Over 3 years
Items in Litigation

0.25
0.25

0.50
0.75
1.00
5.00

2.7 The aforementioned rates were applied in the actua! computation of
impairment loss and allov\rance for impairment loss only forthe MCR as at
December 31,2022, as folloirs:

lmoairment Loss

Amounts in Pesos
Loan Classiftcation Additional

Provision
Recovery/
Reversal

Total

Cunent Accounts
Past Due Accounts

>3-12 Months
>1-3 Years
Over 3 Years

4,295,O14

0
0

7,190,840

0 4,295,014

(2,794,792)
(2,319,2371

0

(2,794,792)
(2,319,2371
7,1W,UO
6,371,825
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Allowance for lmpairment Loss

Loan Classification Loan Losg
Rate (06)

Cunent Accountg
Past Due Accounts

>3-12 Months
>1-3 Years
Over 3 Years

Items in Litigation

3,856,982,460 0.25

1,296,012,943
2,701,360,097
6,371,095,484

93,903,294

9,642,456

6,2180,065
20,260,n1
63,710,955

4,695,164
'1M,788,841

2.8

'Difrarenc]€ ot Pl wd due to nnding ofr-

There are no expected credit losses (ECL) recognized in the books on
these MCR accounts and other financial assats mentioned in paragraph
2.4. The ECL should be recognized, generally, in three stages depending
on the magnitude and extent of credit risks and should no longer be
based on o@urenoe of loss whiclr has been the continuing practice of
SHFC.

2.9 It must be emphasized that Management is responsible for adopting
sound accounting policies and for estauishing and mainlaining intemal
control that will, among other things, initiate, record, process, and report
transe'tions (as well as e\rents and conditions) consistent with
Management's assedions embodied in the financial statements.

2.10 The following should be considered in lhe classification and measurement
of tinancial assets as required in PFRS 9 and in the selec{ion of
accounting policy for the application of these requirementrs:

o The business model at the level of portfolio;
o Classification or designation of financial inslruments;
o Their initial and subsequent measurernents;
. Applicdion of ECL (Expeded Credit Losses) and Crcdil Loss

Allowances, generally, in three stages; and
. Any relevant tainting provisions or derecognitions.

2.11 Likewise, ECL is calculated by: (a) identifying scenarios in which a loan or
receivable defauhs; (b) estimating lhe cash shortfall that would be
incuned in each scenario if a default were to happen; (c) multiplying that
lo$ by the probability of the default happening; and (d) summing the
results of all such possible default events. ECL calculation model should
calculate an unbiased and probability weighted amounl to be presented
as impairment to book value of financial asset in SFP. Since most entities
would have to start from scralch and probably will find as very acceptable
and @nvenient, the aforementioned calculation is presented as:

ECL=EADxLGDxPD
ECL - Expected Credit Losses; EAD - Exposure at Defauft; LGD - Loss
Given Default; and PD - Probability of Default
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Outstanding
Principal Balance

Loan Losg
Provision

0.50
o.75
1.00
5.00



2.12 For the financial assets, SHFC may selecl its accounting policy for
impairment depending on the embedded credit risks and the significance
of its increases as mentioned in paragraphs 5.5.3 and 5.5.5 of PFRS 9.
Further, a provision for a loss alloi/ance and expec{ed credit loss should
be made in accordance with paragraph 5.5.17 of the same Standard.

2.',3 Even though Management has already ftnalized the SHFC Accounting
Manual that adopts the provisions of the Standard, last January 21,2022,
this was not yet applied in the SHFC'S Financial Staternents as at
December 31, 2022, due to the pending approval of the same by the
Board of Direc{ors (BODs). This Manual was submitted to the Office of
the Board Secretary on September 05,2022 to be included in the BOD's
meeting agenda for presentration and approval. The Management further
mentioned that they cannot finalize yet the working papers and the
Journal Enlries (JEs) to adjust the accounts until the said approval is
obtained.

2.15 The non-compliance with the requirernenls of PFRS 9 on Financial
lnslruments resuhed in the misstatement of the balances of various
financial asset accounls totaling P23,187,833,199 as at December 3'1,
2022 by undetermined amounts. ln addition, the reguired disclosures
were not complied with, thus, #eciing the faimess of presentation of the
affected accounls in the financial statements.

2.16 We rstterabd our prlor year's Ecommendagons and anagoment
aglBed to:

Resubmit and make a rcpr€6entation to the BODs to prioritize
the apprcval ofthe SHFC Accounting iianual;

b. Accodingly, apply the policy embedded in the SHFC
Accounting ilanual which should be PFRS compliant on the
pnoper classification, measunement, and impalment of all

. financlal lnstrumonts of SHFC; and

Proyide the disclocures requhud under PFRS 7 ln the Financial
Statements.

a

c

60

2.'l4 Further, the minimum disclosure requiremenls under PFRS 7 which
includes: (1) classes of financial instruments and level of disclosure; (2)
significance of financial instruments for financial position and
performance; (3) nature and exlent of risks arising from financial
instrument (qualitative and quantitative disclosures); and (4) transfers of
financial assets, if any, were not complied because Managernent still
applies PAS 39 in its Financial Statements, and the disclosure
requirements relating to th6e financial instrumenb are still based on
PAS 32, Financial lnstrurnents: Disclosure and Presentation.



3 The accounts Rlght{f-Use of Assots (ROUA} and Loase Payable arE not
recognized in the book3 of SHFC, contrary to the requirumonb of PFRS 16
on Leases, thus, the assets and llabllluos am both understabd, and the
balances of the related accounts .!e all mbstated by undotemined
amounts as at December 3'1,2022.

3.1 As disclosed in the Notes to Financial Statements, SHFC is regarded as a
Lessee and has not yet adopted PFRS 16 on its leases including the
application guidance prescrib€d under COA Circular No. 2021-009 dated
Oc{ober 01, 2021 for all Governrnent Corporations dassmed as
Commercial Public Sedor Entity which shall mandatorily apply the
provisions of the said Standard effedi\re January 1, 2O2O.

3.2 Based on the provisions of the said Standard, the COA Circular
prescribed the entriesr to be considered in the books of the Lessee. For
leases scoped under PFRS 16, ROUA and Lease Payable should be
recognized upon adoption/commencement date. The ROUA shall be
initially measured at cost and the lease liability at the present value of the
lease payments that are not paid at that date. The lease payments shall
be discounted using the inlerest rate imdicit in the lease, if thd rate can
be readily determined. lf that rate cannot be readily determined, the
lessee shall use the lessee's incremental bonowing rate.

3.3 Subsequently, Dep€cistion Expense and the coresponding increase in
Accumulated Deprecialion shall be recognized for ROUA and lnteresl
Expense for Leas€ Payable and its conesponding increase. Cash or cash
in bank shall be debited for payments received on lease liabilities.

3.4 Aside flom the non-recognition of ROUA and Lease Payables, the
following accounts ale decied by the non-adoption of PFRS'16 for CY
2022:

Statement of Financial Position

Account Namo 2022 Remarks
Accumulat€d Depreciation
Retained Earnings
Property and Equipment - Buildings

and Other Structures
Loans Payable - Domestic (Cunent

and Non-qJnent)

1A8,472,952
9,658,691 ,257

94,907,140

2,O30,04

A
B

c

c

, Aho relet to coA arcubt tb. m274o9 doted (xbber 7, m27
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A - Uncla,stated drc to unrccognized cumulativa bpnciation ExFnse.
A - Misstated due to oveotatenBnt of Renyl-eae ExPnses and unrccognked lnlercsl

a nd De p,Eciation Ex,€ nses -
C- Refb,s to the cosl and outgading balance of the offi@ building, pa*ing spacF- and

other *ructul€s aquirad from tho tungko SentE,l ng Pilifinas (BSP). For
rcclassification to ROUA aN Lease Payables.



Statement of Comorehensive lncome

Account Name 2022 Remarks

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10
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RenUleas€ Exp€nses 16,444,757 D
Depreciation Exp€nses 18,670,887 E
lnterest Expenses 337,374 E

D - Owrstated due ,o nonidoplion of PFRS ,6 ,br base conttacls with a Frid of nnrc
than one year

E - Unde6tabd clue to untacqnized Dopreiation and lntead Ex,F.nsE,s.

However, PFRS 16 and the COA Circular provides recognition exemption
for short-term leases or leases for which the underlying asset is d lo\
value when new. For this kind, the lessee shall recognize the lease
payments associatod with those leases as an expense on either a
straighhline basis over the lease term or another systematic basis.

Further validation of the RenULease Expense account tot CY 2022
shored that there are Enlals of office spaces and warehouses of SHFC
that are more than one year. These are not considered shod-term leases
to apply the recognition exemption; henoe, should be recorded as ROUA
and Lease payable.

For the disclosure requirements, the ROU and lease liabilities should be
presented in the Statement of Financial Position sepatdely from other
assets and other liabilities except for right-of-use asset that meet the
definition of lnveslment Property, which shall be pres€nted as lnvestment
Property.

Management has finalized th6 SHFC Accounting Manual on January 21,
2022 and submitted sucfi to the ffice of the Board Secretary on
September 05, 2022 to be included in the BOD's meeting agenda for
presentation and approval, however, lhe sarne is still for apprcval by the
BODs. Thus, the appropriate accounting policy has not yet been applied
in the SHFC's Financial Statements as at Decembet 31, 2022.
Management further mentioned that they cannot finalize yet the working
papers and the Joumal Entries (JEs) to adjust the accounts until the said
approval is obtained.

Thus, the noncompliance with the requirements of PFRS 16 on Leases
resulted in the understaternent of the asset and liabilities for the non-
recognition of ROUA and lease liabilities as at December 31,2022 both
by undetermined amounts. The balances as at Decembet 31,2022
pertaining to Retained Eamings of P9,658,891,257; Accumulated
Deprecietion ot P188,472,952; RenULease Expenses of P16,44,4,757;
Depreciation Epenses of P18,670,887; and lnterest Expenses of
P337,374 are also all misstated by undetermined amounts.

We reiterabd oul pdor yea/s rccommendauon and anagement
agreed to facilitate the apprcyal of the accoundng policy by the
BODs and its suboequent lmplementaUon that ls compllant to the
provbions of PFRS 16, Includlng its dbclosurc rcquirsments on
SHFC'S leases.
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4.4

4.5

4.6

exrenditurc and anstitutes unneessan use of oublic funds
which cannot be ountenanced bv this Commission.
(Underscoring supplied)

On December 24,2008, SHFC and SOHEAI, both represented by their
respective Presidents, executed a Collection Bargaining Agreement
(CBA) for the utmost interest and welfare of both, SHFC and SOHEAI, to
foster and promote a noble and enduring relationship between the
employees and management through the development of harmonious
and sound labour management practices and upholding the principles of
transparency.

Section 5 (b) of Article X: Benefits and Allowances of the said CBA
provides that SHFG, at its expense, shall provide for the health care
services of its ofiicers and employees through the availment of a Heilth
Maintenance Organization (HMO), to wit:

Secfon 5. lnsunnce and Health Benefits - Aside frcm the
mandatolv health covercoe and npdical benefits (SSS.
PhilHealth. etc.t. the following shall be provided to the
employees.

(b) Over and above the said mdical and dental oroonm. the
emolovees shall be prcvided with qnuo lrealth carc seryices
(Health Maintenance Oruanizatioil at the exoqrse ol the
CORPORATTON. The oficials and employees sha// have.the
option to enroll their dependenfs to the said prcgnm at their
expense. (U nderscoring su pplied)

Audit of the disbursements made by SHFC to HMO services through
SOHEAI disclosed a total disbursement in the amount of P15,849,122.02
in CYs 2021 lo 2022, as follows:

Contract Year
Year Pakl DV Number

Check
Number/
Letter of
Aurhofi

Particulars Groes
ArnounfDate Payee

August 2022 202113912
13,2022

to
August
12,2023

August
13,Nn1

to
August
12,2022

2422010302

129351

LOI_2022-
079

11118120?2. SOCIAL Payment of 5,138,121.62
HOUSING hospital and

EMPLOYEES dental allowance
ASSOCIATION, of SHFC

lNC. employees for lhe
contac't year of
August 13, 2022 -
August 12,2023

OA0ts,12022, do- Payment oi 5,331,258.25
hmpita! and
dental allowance
of SHFC
employees for the
contact year of
Argust'13,2U21 -
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DV Number

Chock
Number/
Lgtter of

Aul,torily

Particulars Gtoas
AnpunfOate Paye€

Augu3t 2021 20210r',0973
13. m20

to
Augu3t
12,2021

LOt_2021- O1/o8DO21
035

do- PaynEnt of
hoGpital and
dental allowanoe
of sHFc
employe6 br the
cont"d pedod of
Argust 13, 2020 -
Auqust 12.202'l

5,379,739.15

SUB-TOTAL 5,3r9,739.15
TOTAL 16,E19,122.02

' - lnclusive of Govemnpnt Money Paynr,n1rs (GMP) - Value Added Tax (VAT) and Expanded
Withholdiry Tax EWD.

4.7 We inquircd with Management on the HMO procurement, and they
mentioned that it was in accordance with their CBA. Management further
clarified that the said benefrt was not a roimbursement and reiterated that
it is shouldered by SHFC. Lastly, they added thal such is differenl and
apart from the employees' medical and dental allowance.

4.8 We also observed that, for SHFC, there were no communications to lhe
OP or DBM regading the grant of HMO services. Further, there were no
documents to seek for DBM's recommendation and OP's apprwal, which
is mandatory.

4.9 We acknowledge the intent and purpose of SHFC in prccuring the HMO
which is to promote a noble and enduring relationship between the
employees and managernent through th€ development of sound labour
maneement practices, however, we believe that such practices must
also conform to the government laws, rules and regulations.

4.10 Thus, SHFC should ha\le refrained from procuring health care insurance
from private insurance agency as it would be tantamount to additional
allowance and compensation. The HMO services provided to its officers
and employees through its employees' associalion, SOHEAI, amounting
to a total disbursement of P15,U9,122.02 in CYs 2021 lo 2022, is
contrary to COA Resolution No. 2005-001 in relation to Sec{ion 5 of PD
No. 1597 and Sec{ion 3 of MO No. 20, series ot 2001, and conditutes
inegular expenditure and unnocessary use of public funds.

4.11 We recommended that lranagement:

Stop dlsbuolng funds from SHFC to pay for the ofEcers and
employe$' HilO premiums;

b. Seek for a pGt-fucto apprcval from the OP, othelwlse, refund
the btal amount of Pl5.8rl9 mlllion, which constitutes an
unauthorized benefits and allowances; and

a

G Strictly follow and comply wlth COA Resolution No, 2005{t01,
Section 5 of PD tto. 1597 and Section 3 of tlO No. 20, serios of
2001.

65

Contract Yea.
Year P.kl



5

4.12 Management respectfully comrnented to take excep(ion to the said
observation and request reconsideration on the follo^ring grounds: (a)
SHFC did not directly procure an HMO for its employees and offcers; (b)
Administrative Order No. 402 establishes an annual medical check-up
program; (c) Memorandum Order No. 20, series ot 2OO1 , is not applicable
to medical check-up program; and (d) COA Resolution No. 2005-001
provides for exceptions under the jurisprudence.

The unexpended balance of tho lUarawi Shelter Proiect (tlSP) Fund,
amounfng to P29.451 milllon, that was sourced from the FY20l8 National
Disaster Risk Reduction and anagement (NDRRM) Fund and apprcpriated
for the acquisftion of two (2) lots, sffll remained in the SHFC's depository
account as at December 31, 2022, although the purposo of itE
appropriation was alrcady comploted; hence, it runs counter to the
Nationa! Disastor REk Reduction and Management Councll (tlDRRirC)
lemorandum Citcular (iltc) No. 110, series ot 2021, and deprives the

National Govemment (NG) of fund b finance o0rer priodty prcgrams.

5.1 NDRRMC MC No. 1'10, series d 2021, on the revised guidelines on the
adminislration of the DRRM Fund, prescribes that:

Secfibn 9. Release of Funds and Prcjecl lmplenentafion.

9.4. Unexpended balan@s or sayings frcm the NDRRM fund
rcleased to the implemenfng agencres or LGUs shall be
rcvefied to the National Trcaanry.

5.2 On February 2'l, 2019, the SHFC President wrcte a letter to the
Undersecretary and Administrator, Ofrce of the Civil Defense Executive
Direc{or of the NDRRMC informing thd SHFC has already acquired
property in Marawi with an area of 15.6 hec'tares (156,495 sq meters
more or less) for the initial 900 beneficiaries with the cost of P43,036,125
at P275lsq meters.

5.3 Records show that on Octobor 30, 2019, the ffice of the President
approved the release of funds amounting to P43,036,125 chargeable
against the continuing appropriations for lhe Marawi Recovery,
Rehabilitation, and Reconstruclion Program (MRRRP) under the FY2018
NDRRM Fund, for th€ aquisition of two properties with an area of 15.6
hectares. Details are as follows:
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4.13 As a rejoinder, we stand by our observations and recommenddions
because absence of any proof that the procured HMO seMces were
considercd in lieu of the annual medical check-up under Administrative
Order No. 402 is tanlamount to additional benefit and allovance thd
requires approval by the OP as recommended by the DBM.



Registered
Landowner Area (sqm) Approved

Price per sqm
Tota! Proiect

CosUObligated
Lot OwnerA
Lot Owner B

22,625
133,870

P27Slsqm
P27Slsqm

6,22',1,875
36,814,250

5.4

5.5

TOTAL 156,495 P275lsqm $,036,125

On November 15, 2019, the SHFC President wrote to the Honorable
Secretary of the DBM, requesting for the release of the fund amounting to
P43,036,125 for the acquisition of two (2) properties with an area of 15.6
hectares.

Subsequently, the NG through Department of Budget and Management
(DBM) issued a letter dated November 25,20'|.9, on the release of DRRM
Fund through SARO-BMB-19-0021419 in the amount of P43,036,125
which was sourced from the FY2018 GAA - Continuing Appropriations to
cover the govemment subsidy in the land acquisition on the said shelter
project. On December 17, 2019, SHFC received the funds through NCA
No. BMB-C-19-0024721 from NG to fund the cash requirement of the
mentioned SARO.

Verification of Report on the Receipt and Utilization of Disaster Risk
Reduction and Management Fund (DRRMF) sourced from GAA as at
August 31,2022, revealed that there is an unexpended balance of SARO
No. BMB-19-0021419 for the lot acquisition amounting to P29,451,400,
which remained in the depository bank account of SHFC as at December
31,2022. The savings arise from the reduction of lot area for Property B
from the original area of 133,870 sqm to 26,774 sqm due to the ac{ual
claims of five clans over the subject property. Details are as follows:

Date and Refercnce Partbulars Arnount

5.6

RECEIPT OF FUilD
01t17fr2020
JE\I2020010063

LESS: UTILIZATIOI{
01111t2019
DV:2019-010060

01tl1/2.019
D\r2019-01 0061

o$tuno21
BR No. 925, s.2021

Receipt of tunG for lot acquisition of MSP
Phase I and 2 (SARO No. BMB4-19-
0021419)

Phase 1: PrcpefiA
Purclrase of lot with lot area of 22,625 sqm
@P275lsqm approved per Board Resolution
No. 69rl s. 2018

Phase 2: Prcperty B
Purc-hase of lot with lot area of '133,870 sqm
@P275lsqm approved per Board Resolution
No.691 s.2018

Phase 2: Property I
Adjustnent in lot acquisition price due to
reduction of lot area of Property B pueuant
to BR No. 926, s. 2021. From the original
P36,81,1,250 for lhe 133,870 sqm to

rHt,030,125

6,n1,875

36,814,250

(29,its1,400) 7,362,850

P7

BALANCE 31,2022 29,151,rO0

Based on the reports on initial survey that was conducted on February 20,
2019, on the property of Lot Owner B, Iand surveying shows that only a

5.7

67



portion of the said property with an area ot 67,751 sqm was available for
site development of the MSP Phase 2 due to lhe complaints of third-party
claimants.

5.8 After the Notice to Proceed was issued to the contrac'tor, the lot wes re'
surveyed on January 8,2020, and it has been discovered that only an
area of 26,774 sqm more or less was the available area for house
construction proj€ct instead ol 67 ,751 sqm as indicated in the initial
suNey. Wth the reduced lot area of Rodi property, SHFC's BODs
approved the revised lot acquisition price from P36,814,250 to
P7,362,850 pursuant to BR No. 926, s.2021.

5.9 lnquiry with lhe Management disclosed that they ha\re sought the
approval of the DBM in the utilization of the unexpended balance of
DRRM funds for the lot acquisition to be used in Marawi Shelter Project.
However, DBM responded and darified that the FY 2018 subsidy
released to GOCC'S charged against the National Disaster Risk
Reduction and Management Fund (NDRRMF) can only be utilized until
December 31, 2019, in view of the extension of FY 2018 appropriations
pursuant to Joint Resolution No. 3. Thereafter, any unexpended balance
shall be reverted to the unappropriated surplus of the General Fund
consislent with EO No. 292.

5.10 Since the purpose of SARO No. BMB-1$0021419 is for the purchase of
lhe two lots and has been completed and fully obligated as at Decemb€r
31,202'l, SHFC is compelled to revert the unutilized balance or savings
of the NDRRM Fund amounting to P29,451,400 to the National Treasury
pursuant to NDRRMC MC No. 100, s. 2021, to be used as disaster funds
in the emergency procedures during natural or human-induced calamities.

5.11 We rccommended that iianagement tetum the romainlng DRR
Fund apprcprlated for lot acqubition of Phase I and Phase ll,
amountlng to P29,451,400 a3 demanded by DBil pumuant to
NDRRMC ttlc ilo. 110, s.2021.

5.12 Management commented and humbly rnaintained their position that the
remaining funds can still be utilized for the purchase of another lot
considering that the full amounl released to the Corporation was obligated
in January 2019 prior to December 31, 2019. SHFC simply fufilled its
commitment, the prcject is existent and now nearing completion. Failure
to settle the payment to the landor rners will mean breach of contract and
possible discontinuance and failure of the project.

5.'13 As a lejoinder, we stand on our recommendation for Management to
return the unutilized balance of DRRM fund for the acquisition of phase I

and Phase ll lots amounting to p29.45l million since the purpos€
indicated in the NCA and SARO is very dear that its intended purpoee is
to procure lots to be used in the phase I and phase ll of Mararfli Shetter
Projec{. Further, absence of prior approval from the DBM to utilize the
fund other than for its intended purpose is considered inegular
expendituIe.
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6 Tho SHFC has contracted fior the serylces of 415 institrtional contract of
sewice personnel and 2{ of whom werc assigned managerial and
supewisory positions due to the insufftciency of its workfiorce fior lts
operations, which is not in accordance with Paragraph 7 of the CSC4OA-
DBill Joint Cirrular ilo. I, series of 2017.

6.1 Civil SeMce Commission (CSC) - Commission on Audit (COA) -
Department of Budget and Management (DBM) Joint Circular No. 1 ,

series of 2017, provid$ that:

7. Limitations:

7.1 Hiing under antract of sevice (COS) sha/ be limited to
consu/fanfs, leaming service ptoviders, and/or other technical
expefts to undeftake speoal prcjects of job within a Speci,ic
peiod. The project ot job is not pail of the rcgular funclion of the
agency, or the expeftise is r?o/t available in the agcncy, or it is
impnctical or more expensive for the govemment agency to
dirccily un&ttake the seruie pnvi&d by the inclMdual or
i n stitution al catractor.

7.2 Contnct of Seruie ancl job order wofuers should not, in any
case, 6e made b peiotm functions which ap pstt of the job
de*iption of the agency's existitq egular employees.

7.3 Contnct of seruice and iob oder wofuers should not be
desianated to positions exercisino @ntrcl or superyision over
reoular and cateer emolovees. (Emphasis supplied)

6.2 Records show that the total manpo rer complement of SHFC as at
December 31 , 2022, is 635, of whicfr 220 or 35 per cant sre regular
employees and 415 or 65 per cent are agency-hired contrac{ual
personnel from LBRDC, to wit:

Particulars Head Offica Region Total Pcrcentage
Regular (Plantilla Positions)
Agency Hired

152
243

68
172

20
415

35
65

395 2fr 635 100

6.3 There are 21 SHFC agency-hircd contrac{ual personnel who are
designated to various supeMsory positions such as Head of UniuBranch,
Chief of Division, OIC Managers, Cashier, Executive Assistar(, etc. which
is beyond the duties and responsibilities of the position for which they
were hired, and it is also contrary to Paragraph 7.3 of the CSC-COA-DBM
Joint Circular No. 1, series of 2017.

It is worlhy to note that contrac{ual personnel could be hired if the projec't
or job is not part of the regular func{ions of the agency, or the expertise is
not available in the agency, or it is impractical for the govemment agency
to directly undertake the seMce provided by the institutional contrac{or.

6.4
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6.5

6.6

Although there is no regulation limiting the number of contraciual
personnel to be hired, the worKorce needed for the whole Corporation
and its opeEting units could have been determined considering that 65
per cent of the SHFC workforce are agency-hired personnel.

lnquiry with Management revealed that they are cunently in the process
of reorganization to address the insufftciency of the workforce.

Accordingly, the hiring of 415 agency-hired contractual pelsonnel and
allowing 21 of them lo handle managerial and supervisory position with
control over regular employees is not in accordance with paragraph 7.3 of
the CSC-COA-DBM Joint Circular No. 1, series ot 2Oi7 .

7

6.8 We ocommended and anagemert agrced to fast track the
tEorganizstion to addE3s the insufffclency of the SHFC'S cuflEnt
workforce.

The mode of payment of the cost of land for the SHFC-DOTI Houslng
Project intended as a resefrlement site for the dwefler-famities aftcbd by
the North€outfi Commubr Railway Extension (NSCR-EX) ploject is not
harmonized with the SHFC . CtP Corporate Circular No. 22.058, thua
may result in the delay of conveeion of TCT in the name of the SHFC
because the landowner had alrcady collected 90 per cent of the cost of the
land.

7.1 Item V 3 of CMP Corporate Circular No. 22-05E, series d 2022,
Guidelines on the SHFC-DOTr Housing Proj€ct on the release of
payments to landowners, slates that:

The Coryoration may rclease the prccP.,eds on sf€gtgerEd Dasrs,
as apprcved by the SHFC fuad in the following mannec

3.1 lnitial release of FW F@,6) loan proeeds

The Corponlion may relea*, upon appoval by the Boad, the
initial Fifty (50%) of tt?€ proceeds to help assrbf the landowneB
with the following rcquirunen|s,:

a. Ceftification fom the LGU or LIAC stating that the
prcpefty will be used as fhe /eseffle ment site for the He-
determined MBs;

b. Ceftification from the DOTr - PNR, LGIJ or LIAC stating
that the list of the prc-determined or potentiat
beneficiaries, with or without ofrcial registration as a
Community Asociation or Hougng Coogntive;

c. Ptoof of Registration or Application of the Comnnv
Associalron to DHSUD with at least the minimum
rcguircd numbeohip, for the Accommdafion
Mortgage;

d. Tax clearan@ or rcceipb thereof;
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e. Ownels duplicate copt* of TCTs;
f. Execution or submr-ssion of the Deed of Absolute sale

by the landowner in favor of the CA for ac@mmdation
Moftgage or SHFC for usuftuct anangenents;

C. Letter of Guanntee;
h. Other Documents that maybe eguirecl by the

Corpontion

3.2 Release of the final fiW FeO ban proceeds upon
submrssron ol the following rcquircments

71

a. Ceilificate ot registntion of tl1,e CA for A@mmdation
Moftgage;

b. Subnrislon of the ownels duplicate apy of TCT ancl
RD eilified copy in the name of the CA for
ac@mnpdation mortgage or SHFC for Usufruct
agreement;

c. Annotation of the REM in the CAs TCT for the
Awmmodation Moilgage;

d. Tax &clantion in CA's nar?e for accomfirdation
moftgage or SHFC's nan,p- for usufrucl anangements;

e. Payment ol tnnsfer tat<es, rcgistration tees and
documentary sla,mp taxes shall be for the acaunt of the
landotnnec

f. Other dowments that maybe required by the
Coryontion

7.2 A Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) was entered into in CY 2017 by
and belvyeen the Department of Transportation (DOTr), the Social
Housing Finance Corporation (SHFC), the Housing and Urban
Development Council (now DHSUD), and the Philippine Ndional
Railways (PNR) to cover the implementation of the Resettlement Acdion
Plan for the relocation and ros€tllernent of the duly identified 26,000
more or less dweller-families at the Tutuban-Los Banos segment and the
Calamba-Batangas branchline lhrough a community-dri\ren housing
project

7 .3 A Trust Agreement was entered into be{ween the DOTr [frustor) and the
SHFC (trustee) for the construc{ion of the Micro Medium Rise Building
(MMRB/Community Mortgage Program (CMP) Vertical, regular CMP and
olher communig driven housing prcgrams and shelter solutions that will
primarily benefit the informal settler families (lSFs) living along the
Tutuban-Los Banos segment and Calamba-Batangas branchline (pNR
South Commuter Projec't). As a result, SHFC drafled Guidelines for the
SHFC-DOTr Housing Projed under CMp Corporate Circular No. 22-058
to have a uniform interpretation and detailed prcedures on the
implementation of the Project.

7.4 ln 20'18, the DOTr transfefled a total of P3.00 billion to SHFC to fund the
resettlement component of the NSCR-EX project financed by the Asian



7.5

Development Bank (ADB) and Japan lntemational cooperation Agenry
(JrcA).

Validation of the Dorr Fund disclosed the foflowing
utilization/disbursements for the purchase of lots as relocation of thi
lSFs:

Check Cost of the
Parthulars %of AmountPayee

NoJ
Payee A 103659

10n/2019
169,240,120 reservation fee for the

86,3{7 sqm at P2,E00/sqm
wilh 30% discount on the BSP
Properlies in Carissa Homee,
Tanza Cavite

PayeeA 86666 80% tull payment of lhe 86,317 80 135,392,096
3t1

Payee B 29,219,315 90% proceeds on the land 9(l 6,297
3t14DO22 acquisilion on the 37,094 sqm

at P787.71lsgm in Galamba,
Laguna

90% loan proceede on lhe land
acquisition on the 46,6t12 sqm
at P787.71lzqm in Calamba,

Payee B 36,740,370 90 33,066,333

COST AND
PAYMENT 235,199,E05 228.603.E36

MC 8684
a11no22

7.6

7.7

Review of the Disbursement Vouchers forthe payments made to payee B
disclosed that the initial payments d PS9,368,716 or ninety (90) per cent
of the total cost of the lot was made, which is not in accordance with the
aforementioned cMP circular which requires that only s0 per cent shall
be paid initially.

Board Resolution (BR) No. 971, series of 2022, for the approval of the
grant of Letter of Guaranty on the DOTr South Project, as well as
approval for the release of the land acquisition loan proceeds for the Pilot
Phase amounting to P65,959,685 provides the following:

a. Ninety (90) per cent or P59,363,716 of the loan proceeds wil! be
released upon submission of the following
o Undertaking from the developer
o Commitment letterto redassiff from the LGU
o LIAC resolution requesting the payment of the land, and

commitment to aid/assist in land convercion

b. Ten (10) per cent or P6,595,g69 will be reteased upon submission of
the land conversion clearance certificate.

The documents stated in the BR had been complied with by the
Developer, however, the approval by the Board oi tne 90 pei cent
payment contravenes with the issued circularwhich may cause confuslon

7.8
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and differenl interprotdion of the issued policy defeating the purpose of
uniformity of interpretation of policy acro$ the Corporalion.

7.9 lnspection made by the Audit Team of the Projec{ on September 7, 2022
disclosed that the area is a rice field. The site is adjacent to lhe housing
projects of the National Housing Authority, and it was observed that lhere
is an ongoing site development (drainage and road ne{works) being
undertaken by the Developer.

7.10 Thus, the payment to the landoirner of more than what is provided in the
policy may create confusion and different interprctation aqoss the
Corporalion and may affec{ the conversion of the TCT in the name of
SHFC since the landourner had already collected 90 per cent of the total
cost of the land.

7.11 We recommended and llanagement agned to hamonizo ecdom
with exlsung pollcy to ensurc unlform interprstauon and appllcatlon
of the Circular across the Corporatlon and to safeguatd the
conversion of TCTs in the name of SHFC.

7.12 Management mentioned that they have crafted a financing framework, the
Community Guided Financing (CGF) Framework, to harmonize and
ensure uniform application of policies in all their programs and modalities,
including special projects like the DOTR-projects. The CGF was apprcved
by the BODs on November 28, 2022. lt aims to accelerate lhe financing of
housing projec{s through a more flexible, responsive, and adaptable
approach, which shall be applied to all SHFC program modalities and
special prcjecls.

SHFC was able to utillze/attribute P434.799 milllon, or 98,41 per cen! of its
CY 2A22 GAD Plan and Budget, amounting to P441.804 million, or 9.69 per
cent, of its P4.560 billion DBM-Approved Corporate Operating Budget
(COB); however the GPB initially submitted to the PCW was neither based
on the DBM-approved COB nor the prcpoced COB submitbd to DBtl,
which is contrary to Secuon1.2.2.l,3 of PCW XIC ilo.2021-04.

8.1 The PCW-NEDA-DBM Joint Circular No. 2012-001 provides the
following:

6.1 At least fNe pet@nt (5%) of tlre total agency budget
appropiations authorized under the annual Genenl
Apptopiations Act (GAA) shall @trespond to aclivities
suppding GAD plans and prognms. The GAD budgpt shall
be drawn fiom the agencys maintenance and other opera,ting
expenses (MOOE), capital ouflay (CO), and pelsiona, se/vices
(PS). lt is unde/sitoE,d that the GAD budget does nof
constitute an addilional budget over an agenqs btal budget
appapiations.
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8.2

8.3

The PCW Memorandum Circular No. 2021-04 dated August 24,2021,
Preparation and OnlinE Submission of Fiscal Year (FY) 2022 Gender and
Development Plan and Budgets, provides that:

Secfio,, Aro. 1.2.2. GAD Budget Costing and Aftribution

Xxx

1.2.2,1.3. For GOCCs, the computation of the minimum fwe percent
(5W GPB rcquirement sfia/l De Dased oa their coryore,te o,E,r8,ting
bu@et(COB).

Xxx

4.0 Deadline for GPB Subrasslbn through the GMMS Vedon 2 or 3

Xxx Xxx
15 November 2021 Deadline of encoding and submission to PCW

of FY 2022 GPBs of GOCCs thtough the
GMMS

Records show that out of the CY 2022 DBM-Approved COB of
P4,560,117,000, the amount ol P441,804,400 or 9.69 per cent was
allocated/attributed to GAD Programs, Ac{ivities and Projec{s to comply
with Section 6.1 of PCW-NEDA-DBM Joint Circular No. 2012-01.
Moreover, SHFC was able to utilize/attribute a total of P434,799.,030 or
98.41 per cent of the GPB. Details as follows:

No Programs/ProiecuActivitie3 GAD Budget
Actual

Utlllzltion,
Atkibution

Cliont+oarscd Activillet
1. Conducl of capacity development lrainings and

seminars/conduct periodic mo€tings and
consultations with intemal and extomal clicnts

2. Iniormation dissomination of th€ IEC malerials
3. Conducl of capacily developmont focus on

suslainable economic indop€ndenco.
4. Conducl of cuslomized capacity dov6lopm6nl

focus on per@ived role reveBal of women and
men in lhe communities.

5. Conduc{ of capacity development on digital
litsracy, lhe basics of leaching, and sefe in
digital realms.

6. Conducl of capadv devGlopment to inqaase
knowlodge of MBs in modem tachnologies and
praciicas in edible urban gerdsning for food
sscuriv.

7. Conduct of extensive pro.notion of the
advocacy on women and proteclion

E. Conducl of diferBnt capacity deyelopmert and
forum on women's ompoirefmert

060,000.00
520,000.00

300,000.00

760,000.00

600,000.00

'1,805,301.68

98,567.32

410,000.00

580,000.00

640,000.00
Total 4,/t70,000.00 1,903.669.00
Fqward
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No GAO Budget
Actuel

Utilization/
Attribution

Organizational Focu3ed Activitie3
1. Conducl of capacity d8volopment

training/seminar of different g6ndsr subjecls.
2. Conduct of various aclivities in the celebralion

of women's monlh (Mardl) in line sith thame
"We Make Change Work for V'romon'

3. Conducl of capacity development on various
GAD.related mandeted lau,s, gendor anavsis,
and other deepening session to the GFPS
Commites and champions.

4. Establish/Sot up of lr\rellnass Room and
Breastfoeding Room in SHFC.

5. Conduct of Gender Audit, rBgular meetings,
planning and budgeting with GFPS Committe6
members/condus{ of annual assessment and
evaluation of th6 GFPS Commifte€r'
Establiswset up GAD O{tico in SHFC

6. Conduct of capecity Devalopment Vvtrtoshop in
crafring lhe agency multi-yoar plan of GAD
Agenda.

7. Conducd of various cepacity development on
GAD rclated mandatory aciivities

8. lnstitutionalize male involvement end
engag€msnt Gender Equaliv and wlrmsn
Emporvcrmert.

9. Conducl of capacity deyElopmont on training
lhe trainer on nalural rasourcEs management,
etc.

'10. Conducl of capacity development for thg
intBmel program dsvsloper on sex-
disaggrsgated data colleciion, reporting and
gender analysis

I 1. Hir€ personml that will focus on all corporate
GAD related activities

900,000.00

690,000.00 1aa,774.29

800,000.00

360,000.00

97,812.72

710,000.00 r,800,268.77

300,000.00

360,0oO.00 263,556.19

510,000.00 301,501.00

440,000.00

300,000.00

1,214,400.00

8.4

8.5

993,248.08
Total 6,584,/00.00 3,645,16'1.05
Atttibuted Prcgr.m3

Community Mortgage Progrern/High Density
Housino PrcErams

430,750,000.00 429,250,000.00

Grand Total 441,E04,{P.00't3/t,799,030.05

The GPB was submitled to the PCW through the Gender Mainstreaming
Monitoring System (GMMS) on Nonember 15, 2021, which is within the
prescribed deadline set in lhe PCW MC No. 2021-M.

Review of the GPB inilially submitted to the PCW was neither based on
the DBM-approved COB nor on the proposed COB submitted to DBM,
which is conlrary to Sec{ion 1.2.2.1.3 of PCW MC No. 2021-04.

Management explained that the DBM-approved budget is usually
received afrer the deadline of submission set by pCW, hence, lhey
cannot use it as a basis in the preparation of GpB. They further
explained that the Board-approved COB, which was then available, was
used as a basis for crafting the annual GPB, however, any revisions
made on the Boad-approved COB der the GpB submission was
therefore not refl ected.

8.6
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8.8 lnquiry with management revealed that the exceeding of the budget was
due to the new SHFC guidelines on CMP modatities (tumkey), which
require all new community associations of SHFC to undergo gender-
responsive capactty building, and the unforeseen number of ac'tual
employees who participated in the gender audit.

8.9 Although SHFC promptly submitted the GPB and was able to
utilize/attribute almost 100 per cent of such budget, proper planning and
budgeting are still necessary to come up with an appropriate GPB and to
include ac{ivities that will not only address gender issues but can also be
attained during the year.

8.10 Thus, although the SHFC was able to utilizer/attribute P434,799,030 or
98.41 per cent of its CY 2022 GPB amounting to P441,804,400 or 9.69
per cent of its P4,560,117,000 OBM-approved COB, the submitted GpB
to the PCW is contrary to Sec{ion I .2.2.1.3 of PCW MC No. 2021-04 as il
was neither based on the DBM-appro\/ed COB nor on the proposed COB
submitted to the DBM.

8.1 1 We rccommended 8nd Management agroed to:

a. Use the DBt.approyed COB or the plopo6ed COB submitted to
DBt, whichever is readily available, 8o basli in the preparation
ofthe GPB;

b. lnclude only attalnable GAD.related activities in the GPB; and

StricUy comply with the provisions of SecUon 1.2.2,1.3 FCW ttlG
No.202r4,,f.

COMPLIANCE WITH TAX LAWS

The SHFC consistently withholds taxes on salaries and wages and other benefits
due from its officers and employe€s, as well as procur€ment of goods and
services, and remits the same to lhe Bureau of lnternal Revenue (BlR) within the
prescribed period. For CY 2022, taxes withheld/accrued amounted to pS2.638
million, while the total taxes remitted to the BIR amounted to p44.045 million.
The balance of P8.592 million as at December 31,2022, was remitted in Cy
2023, as shown in the table belor:

c
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Moreover, I 1 activities induded in the GPB were not accordingly
accomplished as shorvn in the GAD Accomplishment Report (AR) for CY
2022. Therc are also two ac{iviti$ which exoeeded the allotted budget,
which includes the conduct of capacity development trainings and the
conduc't of gender audit, regular meetings, planning and budgeting with
GFPS Committee members.

9.



Amount Date Remitted
Value-added tax
Percentage tax
Withholding tax on compensation

2,662,303
1,451,911
3,376,677
1,101,293

01.10.2023
01.20.2A23
01.16.2023
01.10.2023Expanded withhold ing tax

8.592 184

COMPLIANCE WTH THE SSS, PHILHEALTH AND HDiIF LAWS

{0. The SHFC consistently complies with the requirements on the withholding from
its employees' salaries the conesponding contributions to the SSS, PhilHealth
and HDMF and regularly remits to these government agencies the withheld
amounts. Details for CY 2022 remillances are as follors:

Amount
Social Security System
PhilHealth
Home Development Mutual Fund

8,525,500
4,338,134

681,400
13,545,034

11. Status of Suspensions, Disallowances and Charges

The total audit disallourances and settlements are shown below, while there are
no suspensions or charges as at December 31 ,2022:

Particulars Balance,
1tlt2022

lssued
(January to

December 20221

Settlement
(January to Balance,

12t31t2022December
ND 76,468,812 2,481,500 0 78,950,312

a. ND No. 2022-02(2020) dated Oc{ober 'tO, 2022, pertaining to the Cy 2O2O
financial assistance in the amount of P1,526,000.

b. ND No. 2022-01(2020) dated September 12, 2OZZ, pertaining to the Cy
2019 one-time gratuity pay in the amount of P9S5,500, which is under
appealdated March *13,2023,fi1ed by SHFC et al.

c. ND No. 2019-01(2018) dated oc{ober 11,2019, pertaining to the payment of
collective Bargaining Agreement, which is under appea! per CGS Decision
No. 2o2o-12 dated July 30, 2020, has an outstanding balanoe of
P5,280,000. settlement for the year amounting to p377,500 was deducted
from the last salary of retired/resigned employees.

ND No. 2o17-01-clB-TD (2016) dated February 9, 201g, amounting to
P71;o3o,479 pertains to the gamished peso time deposit with DBp, including
bank charges enforced by an Urgent Exparte Motion from case Ac-973:
RCMB-NCR LVA-024-01 titled soHEAl vs. sHFC which is under appeal
with the commission on Audit. sepanately, on october 14, 2020,'the

d.

77

T



e

Supreme Court denied the petition of SOHEAI versus SHFC and ffirmed
the Court of Appeal's Decision dded Juty 21, 2017, in CA-G.R. Sp No.
140975 in annulling Panel of Voluntary Arbitrators' (pVA) Decision and
ordering SOHEAI to redeposit the amount P70,228,467.79 to the depository
bank.

ND issued for the payment of grocery subsidy and ,t 3th rnonth pay is being
settled through salary dedudion. The balance of P158,333 as al December
31, 2022, refeB to the uncollected amount froh the resigned/retired
employees.
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PART III

STATUS OF IMPLEMENTATION OF PRIOR
YEARS' AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS



STATUS OF IMPLEMEilTANON OF PRIOR YEARS' AUDIT RECOi/IMET{DATIONS

Out of 51 audit recommendations for both SHFC and AKPF embodied in the CY 202'l
Annual Audit Report, 18 were implemented, 21 were not implernented six of which were
reiterated in Part ll of this Report, nine were reconsidered, and three are with issued
Notice of Disallo\ryance. Details are presented below:

Reference Audit StatusrActions
TakenObservations Recommendations

A. Social Housing Finance Corporatlon

cY 2021

Observation
No. 1 , page
51

'1. Undistributed Coll€dions
(UC) totaling P413.693 million
remained unposted to the
Mortgage Contrac{
Receivable (MCR) account,
despite the efiorts made by
Management to lower the
accumulated UC and posting
to the individual ledger of the
member beneficiaries (MBs),
thus, overstating both the
Other Payables and the MCR
accounts by the same amount
as at December 31 ,2021.

a. Submit a work
breakdorvn schedule
and to po€it and allocate
UC for CY 2020 and
earlier by at least:

i. 60 per cent by the
end of CY 2022

ii. 40 per cent by the
end of CY 2023;

b. For the curent
yea/s collec'tions lodged
in UC, ensure posting at
the end of the calendar
year; and

c. Require the ICTD to
facilitate the
enhancement of the
database of HDHP MBs
under migration and all
olher accounts not yet in
the database.

Reconsidered

This is rubsurned
in
recommendation
letter a of
Observation No.
1, Part ll of this
Report.

Not implemented

Reiterated with
modifications in
Observation No.
1, Part ll of this
Report.
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Reiterated with
modifications in
Observation No.
1, Pad ll of this
Report.

Not implemented

d. Managernent dosely lmplern€nted
and constantly
coordinates with the
CAs and NHMFC on the
submission of
documents necessary in
the reconciliation of the
UC account.



Observauons RecommendaUons
StatuelActons

Taken
AuditReference

2. The requirerEnts of
PFRS I on Financial
lnstruments werc not
complied with, thus, the
balances of various financial
asset accounts totaling
P21.813 billion as at
December 31, 2021 are
misstated by undetormined
amounts.

3. The present value of
expec{ed payments to co\rer
future retirement benefits of
SHFC'S employees was not
measured, reoognized, and
disclosed regularly in the
books as benefit cost and
benelit obligation, contrary to
PAS 19 on Employee
Benefits, resulting in the
underslatement of both the
expense and liability a@ounts
by undetermined amounts.
This defeats the purpose of
spreading out the expense
over years in service so that
the benefit expense
recognized in the financial
statemonts does not differ
malerially with the benefit
expense at the
reporting/availment period
and which has likevyise an
adverse impac{ on cash flours
for the period.

a. Make a
represer(ation to the
Board of Direclors to
fast track the apprcvel
of the SHFC Accounting
Manual;

b. Accordingly apply
the policy on the proper
dassification,
measurement and
impairment of all
financial instruments of
SHFC; and

Not implemented

Reiterated in
Observation No.
2, Part ll of this
Report.

Not implemented

Reiterded in
Observation No.
2, Part ll of this
Report.

c. Provide the Not implemented
disclosures required
under PFRS 7 in the Reilerated in
FinancialStatements. Observation No.

2, Part ll of this
Report.

a. Recognize in the
books the present value
of expec{ed payments
as expense and liability
pursuant to PAS 19 to
@\,er the firturc
retirement benefits;

b. Disclose in the
Notes to Financial
Statements pertinent
and necessary
information required
under paragraph 135 of
PAS 19 on Employee
benefits; and

c. Closely coordinate
with an Acluary to
facilitate the
measuremsnt of all
mderial post:
employment benefit
obligations to carry out a
detailed valuation of the
obligation before the

Reconsidered

O\rertum€d by
the approval of
lhe CPCS.
Ongoing
discussion vrith
GSIS.

Reconsidered

Overtumed by
the approval of
th€ CPCS.
Ongoing
discussion with
GSIS.

Reconsidered

Overtumed by
the app,oval of
the CPCS.
Ongoing
discussion with
GSIS.
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Observation
No. 2, page
il

Observation
No. 3, page
59



Reference Obseryations Recommendations
StatrsrActions

Taken
Audit

end of the reporting
period.

Observation
No. 4, page
62

Observation
No. 5, page
64

4. The accounts Right-of-
Use Assets (ROUA) and
Lease Payable ate not
recognized in the books of
SHFC, contrary to the
requirements of PFRS 16 on
Leases, thus, the assets and
liabilities ate both
understated, and the balances
of the related ac@unts are
misstated all by undetermined
amounts as at December 31,
2021 and2020.

5. The balance of the Trust
Fund amounting to P7.700
million received from the
Depanment of Social Welfare
and Development (DSVVD) for
the emerg€ncy shelter
assislance of families whose
houses were damaged by
Typhoon Sendong was
applied as loan arnortizdion
payment of member
beneficiaries. This is not in
acxordance with the intended
purpose provided in the
Memorandum of Agreement
(MOA) between DSM/D and
SHFC and is contrary to
Sec{ion 4(3) and Section
84(2) of Presidential Decree
(PD) No. 144 This also
defeats the objective of the
trust fund to prcvide
immediate assislance to
intended beneficiades at the
earliest possible time,

We recommended and
Management agreed to
facilitate the approval by
th6 Board of Directors
and subsequent
implementation of the
accounting policy that is
compliant to the
provisions of PFRS 16,
induding its disclosure
requirements on
SHFC's leases.

We recommended and
Management agrced to
seek a written authority
from the DSI/ID
Sesetary for the
change in the purpos€
of th€ trust fund and
modality of its
distribdion to the MBs
as stipulated in the
MOA. O{heMise, r€tum
the amount of P7.700
million to the DSWD.

a. Submit the requircd
documents to DS\ lD
and secure a written
approval from the
DSWD Seoetary on the
changes in the list of

Not implemented

Reiterated in
ObseNation No.
3, Part ll of this
Report.

Not implemented

On November 9,
2022, SHFC
received the
response of the
DS\l\lD informing
thd it cannot
accomrnodate the
SHFC's request
for conformity.
On No/smb€r 1'l,
2022, SHFC in
reply to the letter
of the DSVI/D
stated their
position and
reiterated its
requesl for the
conformity of the
DSWD on the
utilization of the
Trust Fund.

Not implemented

On November 9,
2022, SHFC
received the
response of the
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Observation 6. ESA amounting to
No.6, page P5.390 million sourced from67 the DSWD trust fund was

granted to seventy-se\ren (77)
substitute MBs urithout
securing prior approval from



Obsen ations Recommendauons
StatrslAcflons

Taken
Audit

Refurence

Observation
No. 7, page
70

DSVVD on the amendment of beneficiaries of the ESA;
the original list of MBs, and
contrary to Sec'tion 1 .1 of
Article lll of the MOA between
DSWD and SHFC- This casts
doubt on the eligibility of the
substitute beneficiaries as the
rightful recipients of the
program.

b. Require the HOA to
submit to SHFC the
documentary
requirements for the
ac{ual recipients of the
ESA, who are
substitutes of those in
the original list of MBs,
to avoid unauthorized
substitution of the
original MBs induding
the certificelion issued
by the LHIAC.

7. The High Density
Housing (HDH) Project for
the Phase ll (Site
Development and Housing
Construction) of a Community
Association (CA) with a
poec{ cost of P222.7Os
million funded by the
Department of the lnterior
and Local Govemment (DILG)
Trust Fund was not
completed within the
scheduled date, contrary to
the provisions of SHFC
Corporate Circular No. 1 3-
026 and Building Construc{ion
and Site Development

a. lnstitute measures to
ensure timely
completion of all
projec{s such as:

. Assign an engineer
for each project who
will monitor its
timely completion
within the agreed
period as stated in
the BCSDA to
prevent additional
loan funding or non-
completion of the
projec:t; and

DSWD informing
that it cannot
accommodate
their request for
conformity. On
November 11,
2022, SHFC in
€ply to the letter
of the OSWD
stated their
position and
reiterded its
request for the
conformity of the
DSVVD on the
utilization of the
Trust Fund.

lmplemented

Reconsidered

Management
assQned a focal
person and
engineeB for
HDH South and
l=lDH North to
.nonitor the
pmjeds.
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Observations Recommendations
StatusrAcuons

Taken
Audit

Refurence

Agreement and Notice to
Proceed, depriving the
intended 546 ISF-
beneficiaries living in
wateMays and danger zones
of dec€nt and afiordable
housing, defe€ting the
objec'tives of the Program
and the possible non-recovery
of funds invested in housing.

r Prospec'tively,
devise a template to
document the
tumover of the
project monitoring
by the peBonnel
assigned who was
reshuffed to
another department,
to include, among
others, the detailed
list of documents
and status of work
to be reviewed and
approved by their
immodiate
supervisor to ensure
continuity of work,
and ordedy and
formal tumover.

b. Require the CA to Not implemented
implement the following
remedies against the
Contractor as provided
in Article XIV of the
BCSDA:

o Give a written notice
to the Contrac{or to
proceed with the
work and to perform
what is in the
agreement; and

. lf the Contractor
fails to perform the
work within seven
days from receipt of
the written nolice,
the CA and SHFC
shall have the
option to proceed
against the bond
and enter the
premises and
employ another
contrac{or to
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Refurence ObservaUons Recommendations
StatuslActions

Taken
Audit

complete the work
at the expense of
Cordractor A.

c. Require the CA to Not implemented
mmpute for and
demand the payment of
liquidated damages f rom
the Contractor, Pursuant
to Article Xll of the
BCSDA;

d- Submit to the Audit
Team updated
Accomplishment Report
of the Contrac{or dulY
validated by the
Department dt
Engineeling of SHFC;
and

lmplemented

e. Require the
Contraclor to submit to
the HDH Team in
charge of the Projec't the
documentation on the
renewal of the
performance bond as
protec'tion of SHFC from
@ncems such as
contrac'tors being
insohrent Hole
finishing the contrac{.

Not implernented

ObseNation
No. I, page
76

L The lands costing
P43.036 million for the Marawi
site de\relopment housing
projec{s tumed over and
arrvarded to the home
partners/beneficiaries are not
yet supported with Transfer
Certificate of Titles OCT)
rcgistered in the name d
SHFC, contrary to MSP
Corporate Circular No. 19-
001, resulting in the delay of
the individualization of tiues
and the risk of loss of funds
invested in housing in case of

a. Facilitate the
transfer of the
o^rnership of the land to
SHFC to hasten the
individualiza{ion of the
tiues in the name of the
qualified horne
partneG/benefi ciaries;

No performance
bond was
submitted.

Not implemented

SHFC is exerting
ils effod to
ensure the
immediate
transfer of the
titles in its name
and subsequetfily
transfer the titl€
to the individual
beneficiaries of
the Prcject.
Management has
already sought
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Reference Obseryations Recommendations
StatuslActlons

Taken
Audit

third-party claimants

9. Unserviceable Property
and Equipment (PEs)
amounting to P12.908 million
which have long been stored
and occupying space in the
warehouse for more than
seven years remain
undisposed, contrary to
Section 79 of PD No. 1445

the assistanoe of
the Local
Govemment
Units to support
the landorners in
the conducl of
relocation survey
and in
compliance with
the other
requirements for
the transfer of
TCT in the name
of the seller and
eventually in the
name of SHFC.

b. Enhance the polisy
guidelines on Marawi
Shelter Projec{ by
providing timeline within
which the
landolner/seller shall
comply to the
requirements stated in
MSP Circular No. 19-
001; and

c. As part of due
diligence for future
purchases of lot
intended for housing
projects, ensure that the
lot to be purchased is
properly inspected
particularly the
boundaries of the lots to
prevent third party
claimants.

a. Direct the lnspec{ion
and Disposal Committee
to facilitate the
immediate and
systematic disposal of
PEs in accordance wilh
existing rules and
regulations in order to
prevent further

Reconsidered

Lot for Marawi
Sheher Project
was already
acquired.

lmplemented

Not implemented

The Disposal
Committee
prepared the draft
guidelines for the
systematic
disposal of PEs
which is still

Observation
No.9, page
81
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Audit
RecommendaUons

StatusIAcflons
TakenReference Observagons

Obs€ruation
No. 10,
page 82

and COA Circular Nos. 202G
06 and 200/t-00E, r€sulting in
further obsolescence and
deterioration of property, non-
use of storage to be oeupied
for other purposes and
foregone possible incom€ that
would have been derived from
disposal.

'10. The approval of the
recommendation in the BAC
Resolution on the avvard ot
contrac{s lot 127 purchases
thru Small Value Pocurcment
as incorporated in the
contrac{s/purchase orders
amounting to P10.289 million
was signed by SHFC Key
Officers other than the
President without explicit
authority, contrary to Board
Resolution No. 847, sedes of
2020, thus said act may not
legally bind SHFC and the
winning suppliers, and further
casts doubt on the regularity
of the transaciions.

deterioration and subierct to the
maximize recoverable approval of
valuesfincome Management.
therefrcm.

b. Capacitate the
Property Officer to
ensure that
documentary
requirements needed for
the disposal are timely
updated and maintained
properly; and

lmplemented

c. Prospec'ti\rely;
ensure thai all
unseMceable PEs are
promptly ac{ed upon by
the Propeily Offcer and
Disposal Committee to
avoid further
deterioration of proPerty
and further non-use of
the storage occupied for
other purposos.

lmplemented

We recommended and
Management agreed to
enaure that only
authorized signatories
will appove the Notice
of Award, Purchase
Order and other elated
documents in
accodance with Boatd
Resolution No. 847, s.
2020.

lmplemented

ObseNation 1 1 . The actual a. Monitor properly the
No. 1 1 , utilization/attribution implementation of the
page 85 amounting to only P267.912 planned GAD PPAS

million or 10.09 of the GAD which should be done

lmplemented
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Audit
Recommendations

StatusrActions
TakenReference Obsewations

Observation
No. ,l2,

page 89

Observation
No. 13,
page 92

Plans and Budge,t (GPB) is
not in compliance with COA
Circular No. 2021-008, and
PCWNEDA/DBM Joint
Circular No. 2012-01, thus,
reducing the opportun'lty of
women and another
concemed parties to
participate and benefit from
GAD PPAs.

12. Changes in the modality
of procurement of office/lT
supplies and office equipment
totaling P1.385 million in the
Amended Annual
Procurement Plan was not
supporled with a BAC
Resolution approved by the
HOPE, contrary to Section 7.2
and Annex H-ltem lV(A) of the
2016 RIRR of RA No. 9'184
thus, cesting doubt on
whether the aciual mode used
provided the most
advantageous proposal or
ofiers for the procurement.

13. A total of 28 POs for the
requisition of ofhce and lT
supplies amounting to P1.363
million were entered into with
various suppliers through SVP
under Negotiated
Procurement mode without
first satisrying the conditions
set forth under Section 53.9

as scheduled within the
budget year as
approved by PCW; and

b. Strictly adherc to the
provisions of
PCWNEDA/DBM Joint
Circular No. 2012-01 on
the guidelines in the
preparation of annual
GPB and
Accomplishment
Reports to implement
the Magna Carta for
Women.

We recommended and
Management agreed to
prospectively ensure
that all procurements
shall be undertaken in
accordan@ with the
approved APP. Any
changes must be
accompanied by a BAC
Resolution providing for
a justification and the
required approval of the
HOPE be{ore
undertaking actual
procurement in
accordance with Section
7.2 ot lhe 2016 RIRR of
RA No. 9184 and said
changes in the APP
shall be submitted to the
GPPB on the timelines
set in Sec.tion 7.4 of the
sarne RIRR.

a. Use appropriately
the SVP as altemative
procurement method for
goods that satisfy the
conditions prcvided in
Sec*ion 53.9 and Annex
H-ltem V(D)(8) of the
2016 RIRR of RA No.
9184: and

lmplemented

lmplemented

lmplemented
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Observations Recommendations
StatuslActions

Taken
Audit

and Annex H-ltem V(DXB) of b. Prospectively, lmplemented
the 2016 RIRR of RA No. ensure thd the suitable
9184, thus affecting the mode of procurement i3
propriety ofthe transaciions. adopted based on_the

specific conditions
prcvided in the same
Ad for all putchases of
SHFC.

Observation
No. 15,
page 99

14. Purchases of 29 units of
lT Equiprnent amounting to
P0.771 million have tailor-
fttting technical specifications,
while 27 units of various
goods amounting to P0.445
million are wilh specific
produd brand indicated in the
procuremenl docurnenb,
contrary to Sec'tion 18 of the
2016 RIRR of RA No. 918{,
which may resuh in undue
advant4e to bidders and
defeats the pdnciple of
faimess and equal
competition in the
procurcment prccess.

We recommended and
Managernent agreed to
stop the pectice of
incorporating ploducl
brand name and/or
specific technical
requirement tailor frtting
the descfiption in the
procurement in any of
the bidding documents
in accordance with the
provisions of Seciion 18
on Reference to Brand
Name of the 2016 RIRR
of RA No. 9184 to
Ensure competitive
bidding among
interesled suppliers.

lmplemented

lmplemented15. Thirty-three (33) units of
property and equiPment and
1 1 semi-expendable supplies
amounting to P1.009 million
were delivered and accepted
by SHFC prior to the start of
the procurement process
through SVP, contrary to
Annex H-ltem V (DX8Xb) of
the 2016 RIRR of RA No.
9184, thus renders doubtful
the legality and proprie{y of
the transaction and depriving
SHFC to get the lowest
possible pric6 from the
supplier.

We recommended and
Management agreed to
complete the
procurement process
before accepting
delivery of goods from
suppliers and stric{y
adhere to the
procurement process
provided for in Annex H
on the Consolidated
Guidelines for
Alternative Methods of
Procurement of the
2016 RIRR of RA No.
9'l &(, specifically ltem
v(DX8Xb).

Observation 16. The Contmci for the a. Cautiously evaluate lmplemented
No. 16, Supply and Delivery of Ofiice the qualitications
page101 Air Purifier amounting to proMded in the proposal

Reference

Observation
No 14, page
94
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Reference Obsewations Recommendations
StatuslActions

Taken
Audit

P0.995 million was awatded
to a Supplier who failed lo
submit the Loivest Calculated
Bid and responsive quotation,
contrary to the 2016 RIRR of
RA No. 91&4, ltem V(DX8Xb)
and Appendix A both of
Annex H, respecli\rely, thus
affecting the legality and
popriety of the prccurement
process and validity of the
Agreement.

17. Accounts Payable - MCR
amounting to P988.&44 million
payable to 490 CAs fior the 50
per cent balance of the cost of
lot, remained outstanding for
a period of two years or more
due to the inability of the CAs
to complete the
documentation required under
SHFC Corporate Circular No.
024, series of2013. This rnay
result in the non/poor
recovery of funds in\rested in
housing and depdves SHFC
the use of the fund for other
housing projects intended for
low-income families.

of the suppliers and
ensure that the winning
supplier is compliant
with the
legal/documentary
requirements of SHFC
and offers the lowest
celculated and
responsive quotation;
and

b. Prospectively,
ensure that necessary
documentary
requirements are
submitted by the
supplier before the
aurarding of contracl as
required under Annex H
of the 2016 RIRR of RA
No.91&4.

a. Follo up with the
CAs the documentary
GquiEments needod for
the payment of the
remaining 50 per cent
cost of lot to the
landoirner; and

lmplemented

Not implemented

The Title
Unitizalion and
Asset
Management
Department
GUAAMD),
together with the
concemed sHFc
branches,
conducled
meetings with the
Community
Associations and
LGUs for the
compliance with
the documentary
r€quirements for
the release of the
final 50 per cent
payment.
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ObseNation
No.6,
page 72

b. lnclude in the lmplemented
Schedule of AP-MCR



Audit
Recommendations

StatuslActions
TakenRefierence

Obseruations

Observation
No.7,
page 75

Observation
No.8,
page 79

18. The grant of onetime
gratuity pay amounting to
P955,500 to 346 DBP Service
Corporation and DBPSC
Security Services
I ncorporated employees hired
by the SHFC through
lnstitutional Contract of
SeMce (ICOS) is not in
accordance with the
provisions of Administrative
Order (AO) No. 20, series of
2020, and CSC, COA and
DBM Joint Circular No. 1,
series o12017.

19. The grant of financial
assistance totaling P1.526
million to 4!4 DBP SeMce
Corpordion and DBPSC
Security SeMoes
lncorporated employees hired
through lnstitutional Contracl
of Service (ICOS) has no
legal basis and is not in
accordance with the
provisions of Sec{ion 5 of the
CSC, COA and DBM Joint
Circular No. 1, series ol 2017,
and Section 4(7) on the
Fundamental principles of
Presidential.Decree (PD) No.

the information on the
approval of the Letter of
Guaranty, cost of lots
and neme of the
landowner/seller to
facilitate the validation
and monitoring of the
accounts.

a. Seek clarification
from the DBM or the
Office of the President
whether the personnel
of institutiona! contract
of service provider
rendering services to
SHFC are entitled to the
gratuity pay authorized
underAO No. 20; and

b. Othenrise, in the
absence of an express
authority or darification
that the gratuity pay
includes those hired
through ICOS, require
the employees of the
DBPSC and DBPSCSSI
to refund the gratuity
pay received from SHFC
in the amount of
P955,500.

Submit legal basis on
the grant of financial
assistance to personnel
of ICOS rendering
servies to SHFC,
othenrise refund the
financial assistance
granted to them in the
absence of legal
authority.

Notice of
Disallorance No.
2022-01 (2020)
dated September
12, 2022 has
been issued for
the amount of
P955,500.

Notice of
Disallorance No.
2O22-O2 (2020)
dated October
10, 2022 has
been issued for
the amount of
P1.526 million.
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Audit
Recommendations

StatuslActions
TakenRefierence

Obseruations

cY 2019

Observation
No.3,
page 59

Observation
No.10,
page 87

1445

20. The variance of P1.077
billion between the balances
of the General Ledger (GL) of
the Mortgage Contracts
Receivable - Community
Mortgage Program (MCR-
CMP) and Subsidiary Ledger
(SL) of the Community
Associations (CAs) account
as at December 31, 2019,
casts doubt on the accuracy,
reliability and validity of the
ac@unt, contnary to Sec'tion
111 of Presidential Decree
(PD) 1445 and Paragraph 15
of PAS 1, affecting the fair
presentation of the account
balance in the financial
statements.

21. The granting by SHFC of
car loans amounting to
P70.831 million to its officers
and Board of Directors
(BODs) is contrary to the Car
Plan approved by the Office of
the President (OP) of the
Philippines for Govemment
Financial lnstitutions (GFls),
as the benefit applies only to
those that do not receive
subsidy from the National
Government (NG), thus
rendering the car plan
inegular. Moreover, loan
balance amounting to P1.794
million of BODs who availed
of the car plan afier the
publication of Executive Order
(EO) No. 24 on February 10,
2011, as amended by the
Governance Commission for
Government-Owned or
Controlled Corpoetions
(GCG) Memorandum Circular

a. Reoncile the lmplemented
variances between SL of
CA and SL of MBs, as
well as SL and GL
balances of P1.077
billion by at least:

65 percent of the
variance by CY
2020

ii. 35 percent of the
variance by CY
2021:and

a. Secure a post-fac{o
approval from the OP,
through the GCG, of
SHFC's Car Plan to its
officers;and

Not implemented

No approvalyet.

Car plan was
already
discontinued

b. Require the three
members of the Board
to immedidely settle the
amount of P1.794
million to comply with
the provisions of GCG
MC No.2016-01

Not implemented

The three Board
of Directors are
paying on
installment the
balance of
P1.794 million of
their car loans,
hen@, as at
December 31,
2022 only the
amount of
P841,788 has not
been collected.

91

I



Audit
Recommendations

StatusrActlons
TakenReference Obse auons

Obseruation
No.12,
page 94

ObseNation
No. 17,
page 1 14

(MC) No.2016-01, still remain
outstanding as at December
31, 2019, but which should
have already been due and
demandable.

22. Excess rctirement
benefts amounting to
P426,215 were paid to two
personnel, due to inclusion in
the computation of seMces
rendered during the period of
edension upon reaching the
compulsory retinament age of
65, contrary to implementing
guidelines of RA No. 7il1 ot
the Retirement Pay Law and
Sec'tion 129 of the 2017
Omnibus Rules on
Appointmenb. Moreover,
other personnel alloranes
were included in the basic
salary as rctirement pay base,
rendering the disbursement
excessive pursuant to COA
Circular No. 2O'12-O3.

23. Funds amounting to
P315.630 million remain idle
since CY 2010 with no
utilization, except for
administrati\re exp€nses,
resulting in the non-attainment
of the objecti\res for which the
Abot-Kaya Pabahay Fund
(AKPF) was crcated,
specifically the arnortization
support and developmental
financing componenl,
pursuant to RA No. 6846, as
amended, defeating the goal
of the Nalional Govemment
(NG) program in addressing
the urgency of the housing
need that caters to lor^r-
income bracket families.

a. Establish a
retirement plan and
formulate policy
guidelines hannonized
with the provisions of
RA No. 76,41 to be
approved by the
goveming Board and
submitted to GCG for its
rEview and approval.

Reconsidered

a. Fast-track the
transfer of the TCTs of
the foreclosed and
dacioned properties in
the narne of SHFC; and

The AKPF
Division is
cunently fast
tracking the
transfer in the
name of SHFC
the TCT ol
foreclosed and
dacioned
prcperties.
However, there
ar€ issues that
are beyond their
control such as
lost RD copy of
TCT, or not in the
system of the RD,
discrepancies of
areas in the Tax
Dedaration,

Overtaken by the
approval of the
CPCS, and
d iscr,rssion on the
transfer from SSS
to GSIS coverage
is ongoing.

Not implemented
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Reference Observations Recom mendations
StatuslActions

Taken
Audit

CY 2017 AAR

Observation 24. CMP accounts totaling
No.3, P88.154 million transfened by
page 48 the NHMFC without the

conesponding supporting
doclments and 638 accounts
with negative balances
amounting to P8.818 million

b. Dispose the
properties already in the
name of SHFC through
public bidding.

Analyze and reconcile
the acoounts with
lapsed MRI premiums
and immediately apply
the negative balanoes to
future periods of
insurance coverage or

discrepancies in
the technical
description,
govemment
expropriated
/auctioned
accounts and
undeclared lots.
These issues are
contributory in the
delay of the
transfer of TCTs.

Not implemented

Appraisal of the
properties ready
for disposal are
being conducted
and the
policies/guideline
s in the disposal
of AKPF acquired
prope(ies had
already been
drafied and for
approval by the
Board. However,
there are also
properties which
were already fully
or a portion had
been taken by the
government due
to some
impediments
which are beyond
the oontrol of
SHFC.

Not implemented

Reconciliation is
ongoing and as of
December 31,
2022, the amount
of P58.723 million
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Obsewations Recommendations
StatuslActions

Takcn
Audit

cast doubts on the ffiuracy to the loan balances or or 66.61 per cent
of the lnsurance Recei\rable- refund to the MBs if loan of the lnsurance
MBs ac@unt balance of is already fully paid. Receivable has
P295.382 million under the been reoonciled
CMP, contrary to paragraph with NHMFC's
15 of PAS 1. records.

Observation
No.6,
Page 54

20,I6 AAR

ObseNation
No. 4,
Page 34

26. Thirty-one Transfer
Certificate of Title CICTS)
under Usufruc't Agreement of
HDH lot acquisition projeci
valued at P392.2U million are
still not transfened in the
name of SHFC, thus, contEry
to Section 6 of Corpomte
Circular No. 14-005 series of
20'14. Likewise, TCT on the lot
acquisition through SHFC Re-
Financing Program of an
LGU, amounting to P16.359
million was not transferred in
the name of the CA and with
no annotation of SHFC
Moilgage while full payment
was already rnade, contrEry to
Seciion 5 of the IRR 2014-
003, thus, may result to non-
recoveryfloss of fund in case
of a third-party claimant.

lf the resull of the soil Not implemented
tesling of the subjed
prcperty is favorable,
demand the contractor
to complete the projecl.

Not implemented

The TCTS for two
projects have
been transfened
in the name of
SHFC while the
requiremenls for
the transfer of the
remaining TCTs
are still being
revievyed as to
technical and
legal aspects.
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Refurence

25. A High-Density Housing
(HDH) project amounting to
P414.049 million was
approved by the Board and
payment amounting to
P100.329 million was made
despite Greater Metro Manila
Area (GMMA) Harard Map
result that the lot is
susceptible to moderate
flooding, within the tsunami
inundated area, susceptible to
moderate liquefaction, thereby
not suitable for relocation
contrary to EO No. 272 and
Corporate Circular No. 1&.
026.

Expedite the transfer of
the subjec{ TCTs in the
name of SHFC for
Usufruci and in the
name of CA for the
refinanced atrK,unt and
annotate the same in
the name of SHFC in
compliance with
Corporate Circular HDH
No. 1+005 series of
2014 and IRR 2014-003.



Observations Recommendations
StatuslActions

Taken
AuditReference

B. Abot-Kaya Pabahay Fund

CY 2OI8 AAR

Obseruation
No.16,
Page 99

CY 2016 AAR

Observation
No,7,
page 43

27. Assets of AKPF
amounting to P260.219 million
were not stated at their fair
value for CY 2018 due to
absence of policy on the
assessment, measurement
and recording of impairment
losses as required under PAS
36 and 39, thus, casting doubt
on the reliability and valuation
of the Fund's assets.

28. There are lapses in
management and
implementation of AKPF
which arc contrary to the Trust
Agreement entered into by
and between the NHMFC and
the SHFC, resulting in the
following deficiencies that
expose SHFC to the non-
recovery of loan exposure.

A total ol 202 TCTs remain
unaccounted and undelivered
by three developers who
availed of the Developmental
Loan Projects in violation of
Sec{ion 3.02 of the Loan
Agreement and Trust
Receipts, thus, posting the
risk that the TCTIs and
Corporation loan exposure
may not be recovered.

Nine developers were able to
avail of a loan amounting to
P134.50 million under AKPF
despite non-complianoe with
schedule of completion for the
land developnrent and
housing construction, contrary
to the Section 4 (4.02) of the

Formulate policy/
guidelines on the
assessment,
measurement and
recording of impairment
losses of its recorded
assets as required
under PAS 36 and 39
forCY 2018.

Determine the persons
liable for the
deficiencies noted and
file appropriate
administrative action for
failure to perform their
functions.

Reconsidered

Overtaken by the
issuance of
PFRS 9.

Reconsidered

The
recommendation
is beyond
SHFC's capacity
to comply due to
unavailability of
supporting
documents.
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Obsewations Recommendations
StatrsrActions

Taken
AuditReference

Memorandum of Agreement
and Section 2.02 of the Loan
Agreernent. Thus, a very low
percentage of development
and the return of investment
on the loan exposure, after
1$21 years remains nil.

The existence of third-party
claimants on the property
mortgaged for a SuMivision
and the foreclos€d properly of
a Subdivision Projecls cast
doubts on the rcco\rery of
capital exposures amounting
to P22 million and P26 million,
respectively, and on the
legality of the rights/ownership
ofthe property.

A total ot 726 TCTS of
acquired properties with loan
amounting to P66 million were
not consolidated in the nam6
of the NHMFC/SHFC
notwithstanding the lapse of
eight to '14 yeaB after the
expiration of one-year
redemption pedd, thus,
resulting in the delay in the
disposal of asset and
exposing the propefty lo
further depreciation or
deterioration.
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PART IV

ABOT.KAYA PABAHAY FUND



ABOT-KAYA PABAHAY FUI{D
SOCIAL HOUSING FINAilCE CORPORATIOT{ (as Trustoe)
AMORTIZATION SUPPORT AND DEVELOPMENTAL FINAI{CING COMPOilENTS
STATEiIEiITS OF FI]{ANCIAL POSITIOiI
Docomber 31, 2022 and 2021
(ln Philippine Peso)

ASSETS

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalenls
Receivables

4
5
6

292,670,723
2,772,993

122,670

291,236,938
2,508,360

0Advances to ofiicers and employees

295,566,386 293,745,298

Non€urrent assets
Receivables, net
Property and equipment

87,4/,1,'121
84,t153

198,845,866

67,441,124
105,085

197,635,751lnvestment property

264,371,43 265,181,960

TOTAL ASSETS 569,937,829 5s8,927,258

-

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALAT{CE

Liabllities
lnter-agency payables
Other cunent liabilities

9 {3,331,201
559,3{3

10,114,466
10 5't8 395

TOTAL LIABILITIES {3,890,514 10,632,861

Fund balance 't1 546,047,315 548,294,397
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 559.937.829 s58,927,258

The Notes on pages '101 to 1 15 form pad of these tinancial statements.
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ABOT.KAYA PABAHAY FUND
SOCIAL HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION (as Trustee)
AMORTIZATION SU PPORT AN D DEVELOPU ENTAL FINANCI NG GOiI PON ENTS
STATEMENTS OF COITiPREHENSTVE NCOITIE
For the Years Ended December 31, 2022 and 2021
(ln Philippine Peso)

Note 2022 2021

INCOME
Service and business income 12 4,656,913 4,552,733

4,656,813 4,552,733

EXPENSES
Personnel services
Maintenance and other operating expenses
Financial expenses
Non-cash expenses

13
14

15
16

3,709,64:l
3,399,337

2,4il
20,q?2

3,586,845
4,232,195

60,456
24,176

7.121.062 7.903,673

LOSS BEFORE OTHER INCOME
Other non-operating income 17

12,464,,2497
10,833

(3,350,940)
18,502

(2,453,416) Gpq?49q)

NET LOSS t2.453.4t61 (3.332.438)

The Notes on pages 101 to 115 form part of these financial statements.
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ABOT.KAYA PABAHAY FUND
SOCIAL HOUSING FIIIANCE CORPORATION (as Trustee)
AITIORTIZATION SUPPORT AND DEVELOPIf, ENTAL FINAI{CING COTPONENTS
STATEMENTS OF CHAilGES IN FUND BAI.ANCE
For the Years Ended Decembet 31 ,2022 and 2021
(ln Philippine Peso)

Balance as at January 1,2022
Prior Yea/s Adiustment

548,294,397
206,334

Net loss
s48,500,731

(2,453,416)
Balance at December 3{, 2022 11 5,t6,047,315

Balance as at January 1, 2021
Net loss

551,626,835
(3,332,438)

Balance at Oecomber 31, 2021 11 548,29'1,397

The Notes on pages 101 to 1 15 form part of these financial statements.
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ABOT-KAYA PABAHAY FUND
SOCI,AL HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION (r3 Trustee)
AiIIORTIZATION SUPPORT AND OEVELOPHENTAL FIT{ANCING COUPONENTS
STATEIf,ENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended Decomb€r 31, 2022 end 2021
(ln Philippine Peso)

Note 2022 2021

5,121,933
182,@1

43,1180.00

239,283

1t,727,2n1
(331,920)
(9{,445)

3,959,247
716,450

0
510

(4,193,169)
0

(24,466,510)
Net cash provided bv/(used in) oDeratino activities 1,a33,785 (23,983,472\

NET INCREASE'(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

1,433,785
291,236,938

(23,983,472)
315,220,410

cAsH At{D CASH EQU|VALEi{TS AT END OF YEAR 4 292,870,723 291,236,938

The Notes on pages 101 to 1 15 form part of these financial statements.
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIV]TIES
Collection of rEceivables
lnterest income received
Refund of cash advance
Other receipts
Payment of realty tax
Paymont of cash advance
Payment of operating expenses



ABOT-KAYA PABAHAY FUilO
SOCIAL HOUSIi{G FINANCE CORPORAION (as Trusbe)
AMORT|ZANON SUPFORT Al{D DEVELOPTEilTAL FII{A]{CI]{G COTPOTIEITTS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEI{ENTS
(Amounts in Philippine Peso)

,1. GENERALINFORTTIATION

The Abot-Kaya Pabahay Fund (AKPF) was created under Republic Act (RA) No. 6846
under the trusteeship ot the National Home Mortgage Finance Corporation (NHMFC)
and was amended under RA No. 7835. The Fund shall be used exdusively for
enhancing the afiordability of low-cost housing by lo income families thru the
amottization support component and by providing de\relopmental financing for loir-cos{
housing projecis.

ln Oclober 2005, the Amortization Support and De\relopmental Financing Components
(ASDFC) of AKPF was transfened to the Social Housing Financo Corporation (SHFC), a
wholly-orned subsidiary of the NHMFC, created by virtue of Executir,e Order (EO) No.
272 vthich was signed and approved by the President of the Republic of the Philippines
on January 20,2OO4.

2, SIGNIFICANTACCOUT{TINGPOLICIES

The recording of the Fund's financial transac{ions is centralized in the SHFC'S Finance
and Controllership Department. The Fund submits a monthly summary of transactions
duly reviewed, certified and approved by its responsible officers to lh€ Finance and
Controllership Department for journal entry voucher prepamtion and recording in the
books of accounts.

2.1 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

a. Statement of Compliance with Philippine Financial Repoiing Sfandards

The financial statements of the Fund have been preparcd in accordance with the
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS).

The financial statements have been prepared using the measurement bases
specitied by PFRS for each type of asset, liability, inoome and expense.

b. Prcsentation of Financial Statenants

The financial stalements are presented in acc,ordance with Philippine Accounting
Standards (PAS) 1, Pasrlntation of Financiat Sfaferrents. The Fund presents ait
items of incone and expenses in a single statement of comprehensive income.

c. Functional and Presentation Cunency

These financial statements are presented in Philippine Peso, the Fund's
functional and presentalion currency.
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2.2 Adoption of New and Amended PFRS

a. Effective in 2o22lhal ar? rdevanl to the AKPF:

(i) Amenclment fo PFRS 16, Prcpety, Plant and EquipnEnt P/ocE,eds
beforc lntended Use

The amendments prohibit Corporation deduc,ting from the cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment, any proceeds from selling items produced
while bringing that asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner inlended by managernent. lnstead, the
CorpoEtion recognizes the pDceeds from selling such items, and the costs
of producing those items, in profit or loss.

(iil Arnendments fo PFRS 9, Financial lnstruments, Fees in the'10 per cent'
test for derecognition of financial liabilities

The amendment clarifies the fees that the Corporation indudes when
assessing whether the terms of a new or modified financial liability are
substantially different from the lerms of the original financial liability. These
fees include only thGe paid or received between the bonower and the
lender, including fees paid or received by either the borower or lender on
the othe/s behalf.

b. New Accounting Standards, lntorprctations and Amondments Efiective
Subsequent to December 3'l, 2022

Pronouncements issued but not yet effective are listed belour. Unless
othenrise indicated, AKPF does not expect that the future adoption of the
said pronouncements will have a significant impacl on its financial
statements. AKPF intends to adopt the follouring pronouncements when
they become etr€ctive.

(0 Efredive beginning on or after January 1, 2023
r Amendments to PAS 12, Defened To< relaled to Assels and

Liabilities arising from a Single Transadion
o Amendments to PAS 8, Definition of Accounting Estimates
o Amendments to PAS 1 and PFRS Prac'tice Statement 2,

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

(ii) Effective beginning on or afrer January 1, 2024
o Amendments to PAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as Cunent or

Non-cunent

(iii) Effective beginning on or afier January 1, 2025
o PFRS '17 , lnsurane Contracts
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c. Defened efiecttvw

PFRS 10 (Amendments), Consdidated Financiat Sfaternenfs, and pAS 28
(Amendments), ,nyest nents ,n Assooates and Joint Ventues - Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an lnvestor and ifs Assoo'ates or Joint
Venture (efutive date defenecl indefinitely). The amendments address the
conflict betuveen PFRS 10 and PAS 28 in dealing with the loss of control of a
subsidiary that is sold or contributed to an associde or joint venture. The
amendments clarify that a full gain or loss is recognized when a transfer to
an associde or joint venturc involves a business as defined in lhe PFRS 3.
Any gain or loss resulting from the sale or contribution of assets that does
not constitute a business hon/ever, is recognized only to the extent of
unrelated investors' interests in the associate or joint venture.

On January 13, 2016, the Financial Reporting Standards Council defened
the original effective dat6 of January 1, 2016 of the said amendments until
the IASB completes its broader revie\ of the research projed on equity
accounting thd may result in the simplification of accounting for such
transactions and of other aspects of accounting for associates and joint
ventures.

Under the prevailing circumslan@6, the adoption of the foregoing new and
amended PFRSs is not expecled to have any material efieci on the financial
slatements of the Fund.

2.3 Financial Assets

A financial asset is any asset that is:

a, Cash;
b. An equity insitrurnent of another agency;
c. A contractual dght to receive cash or another financial asset;
d. A contractual right to exchange financial assets or liabililies with another

entity on potentially fa\orable terms; or
e. A contrac{ that will or may be settled in the Corporation's o/n equity

instruments and is a nonderivatiw for which the Corporation is or may be
obliged to receive a variable number of the Corporation's orvn equity
instrument; a derivative that will or may be settled other than by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the Corporation's own equity instruments. For this purpose, the
Corporation's own equity instrurnents do not indude puttable financial
insitruments classified as equity instruments.

Recog nition an d Me asurcme nt

Financial assets are recognized in lhe Statement of Financial Position when, and
only when, the Corporation becomes a party to the contractual provisions of lhe
inslrument. At initial recognition, the Corporation measures its financial assets at
fair value plus, in lhe case of financial assets not at fair value through profit or
loss, transac{ion costs that are direc'tly aftributable to the acquisition of the
financial assets. Afler initial recognition, the Corporation measures its financial
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Classification

A more detailed description of the categories of financial assets relevant to the
authority are as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the Statement of Financial position
at cost. Cash includes c.rsh on hand and in bank. Cash equivalents are
short-term, highly liquid investmenls that are readily convertible to cash and
or at a very near maturity that they pEsent insignificant risk of changes in
value because of dtanges in interest rdes. Cash is measured at face value.

Loans and receivables are none derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and malu.ities that are not quoted in an ac{i\re
market. They are not er ered into with the intention of immediate or short-
term resale and are not designated as or financial assets at Fair Value
Through Other Comprehensive lncome (FVOCD or financial assets at Fair
Value Through Profit and Loss (FVPL).

Subsequent to initial measurement, loans and receivables are caried at
amortized cost using the etrective interesl rale method, less impairment in
value, if any. Any interest eamed on loans and receivables shsll be
recognized as part d'lnterest income" in the Statement of Comprehensive
lncome. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees that are integral part of the etrecii\€ interest
rate. The periodic amortization is also included as pafi of intercst income.
Gains or losses are recognized in profit or loss when loans and receivables
are derecognized or impaired, as well as through the amortization process.

Allowance for impairment is maintained at a level considered adequate for
potentially uncollec{ible receivables. The level of allowance is based on
historical colledion, cunent economic trends, and changes in the custorner
payment terms, age status of receivables and other fac{ors that may affect
collectability. The allovyance is established by charg$ to income in the form
of provision of doubtful a@ounls (nor referred to as impairment).

2.4 Prooertv and Equioment

a

a

a

Property and equipment are canied at cost less accumulated depreciation.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase prioe and direcily attilbutable costs
of bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use. Expenditures for
additions and major improvements are capitalized; expenditurgs for lepails and
maintenance are charged to expense as incuned.
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Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method orer the estimated
useful lives of the assots as folloirs:

Years
Leasehold improvemenls
Furniture and FixtuEs
Office Equipment
lT Equipment

Fully depreciated assets are retained in the accounts until they are no longer in
use and no further charge for depreciation is made in respect to those assets.

2.5 lnvestmentPropertv

An investrnent property is a property held to eam rental incorne and/or for capital
appreciation potential, but not for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in
the prcduction or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes.
lnvestment property is initially canied at acquisition cost plus costs incurred for
site development and home building. Subsequent to initial recogniilon,
investment property is consistently measured using the cost model which is cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any, in accordance with PAS
16's requirements. However, AKPF'S in\restment property only represents land
which is valued at cost with no accumulated depreciation.

lnvestmenl property is derecognized upon disposal or when permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expecied ftom its disposal.

Financial liabilities are contraclual obligations to deliver cash or another financial
asset or to exchange financial instrurnents with another agency on potentially
unfavorable terms. Financial liabilities are recognized when the AKPF becomes a
party to the contractual terms of the instrument. All interest related charges ale
recognized as an expense in prcfit or loss under the caption Financial Expenses
in the Statement of Comprehensive lncome.

Trade and other payables, due to related parties and other non-cunenl liabilities
are recognized initially at their fair values and subsequenUy measurcd at
amortized cosl, using effec{ive interest method for matu,ities beyond one year,
less settlement p€yments.

Financial liabilities are classified as cunent liabilities il payment is due to be
settled within one year or less after the end of the reporting period (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business, if longer), or AKPF does not have an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the end of the reporting period. Otherwise, these are presented as non-
cunent liabilities.

Financial liabilities are derccognized from lhe Statement of Financial Position
only when the obligations are extinguished either through discharge, cancellation
or expiration. The difference between the carrying arnount of the financial liability

10
't0
5
5
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derecognized and the consideration paid or payable is recognized in profit or
loss.

2.7 Revenue and Expense Recoonition

When economic benefits are expec{ed to arise over seveEl accounting periods
and the association with income can only be indirectly de{ermined, expenses are
recognized in the prolit or loss on the basis of rational allocation procedures. This
is often necessary in recognizing the expenses associated with the using up of
assets. These allocation prccedures are intended to rocognize expenses in the
accounting periods in which the accounting benefits associated with these it6ms
are consumed.

An expense is recognized immediately in the Stalement of Comprehensive
lncome when expenditure prcduces no future economic benefits or when future
economic benefits do not qualiff or cease to qualify for remgnition in the
Statement of Financial Position as an asse{.

Cost and expenses are also recognized upon utilization of services or d the date
they are incuned. AII costs are reported in the Statement of Comprehensive
lncome on an accrual basis.

The employees of the AKPF are membors of the Social Seorrity System (SSS)
which povides life and relirement insurance coverage.
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Revenue comprises revenue from rendedng of seMces neasurcd by reference
to the fair value of consideration received or receivable by AKPF for services
rendered.

Re\renue is recognized to the extent that the revenue can be measured reliably; it
is probable that future economic b€nefits will floli, to AKPF; and lhe costs
incuned or to be incuned can be measurcd reliably. ln efiec{, the rBoognition of
an income occurs simultaneously with the recognition of a decrease in liabilities
or an increase in assets. ln addition, interest income on special savings is
accrued on a time prcportion basis, by reference to the principal amount
outstanding and at the interest rates applicable.

Cost and expenses are r€cognized in the Statement of Comprehensive lncome
when a decrease in future economic benelits related to a decrease in an asset or
an increase in a liability has arisen that can be measurcd reliably. This means, in
effec{, that recognition of expenses occurs simultaneously with the recognition of
an increase in liabilities or a decrease in assets.

2.8 Emplovee Benefits

The Corporation recognizes the undiscounted amount of shorl-term employee
beneftts, like salaries, wages, bonuses, allol ance, etc., as expense unless
capitalized, and as a liabilig after deduc;ting the amount paid.



The Corporation recognizes expenses for accumulating eamed leaves. Non-
accumulating compensated ahsences, like special leave privileges, are not
recognized.

Any post year-end event that provides additional information about AKPF'S
financial position d the end of the reporting period (adjusting event) is reflected in
the financial statements. Post-year-end events that are not adjusting events, if
any, are disclosed when material to the financial statements.

3. SIGNIFICAI{T ACCOUI{TING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The follorrring are the key assumptions conceming the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the repofling period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next repoiling period:

i. lmpairment of Tncb and Other Receivables

An adequate amour of allo^rance for impairment is provided for specific and
groups of a@ounts, where objec{ive evidence of impairment exists. AKPF
evaluates the amount of alloirance for impairment based on available facis
and circumstances afiec{ing the collec{ability of the accounts, including, but
not limited to, the length of AKPF'S relationship with the customers, the
customers' cunent credit stalus, the average age of accounts, colleclion
experience and historical loss experience.
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2.9 Evenls after the End of the Reporlino Period

The preparation of AKPF'S financial statements in accodance with PFRS requires
management to make judgments and eslimates that afiect the amounts reported in the
financial statements and related notes. Judgments and estimates are continually
evaluated and are based on historical experience and other fac{ors, induding
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. Actual resulls may ultimately difier from these estimdes.

a. Re@gnition of Prcvisions and Contingencies

Judgment is exercised by rnanagonunt to distinguish be{t}€en prcvisions and
contingencies.

b. Key Sources of Estimation Unceilainu

ii. Estimation of Useful Lives of Pmpefty aN Equipment

AKPF estimates the useful lives of property and equipment and intangible
assets based on the period over whictr the assets are expec{ed to be
available for use. The eslimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets are rcvia^red p€riodically and are updated if
expectations differ from previous estimates due to physical wear and tear,



technical or commercial obsolescence and legal or other limits on the use of
the assets.

The carrying amounts of property and equipment and intangible assets are
analyzed in Note 7. Based on Management's assessment as at December
31, 2022 and 2021, there is no change in estimated useful lives of those
assets during those years.Actual results, however, may vary due to changes
in estimates brought about by changes in factors mentioned above.

4. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

This account consists of:

2022 2021
Cash in bank
lnvestment in treasury bills - local

20,263,179
272.407.544

16,931,938
274,305.000

292,670,723 291,236,938

4.1 Cash in bank

4.2

This account consists of cunent savings account with govemment banks that
eams interest at prevailing interest rates 0.05 per cent per annum.

lnvestment in treasurv bills - local

This account represents investment in time deposits classified as highly liquid
investments maturing from 60 days up to gl days or not more than three months
from date of placements.

5. RECEIVABLES, NET

This account consists of:

2022 2021
Cument:
lnterest receivable 2,772,993 2,508,360

Non+urrent:
Loan receivable - others
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts

89,921,499
22,480,375

99,921,499
22,480,375

67,44|,124 67,441,124

5.1 lnterestReceivable

This account consists of accrued interest on Special Savings Deposits (SSD)
with the Development Bank of the Philippines. The investment in SSD eams
interest at the prevailing rates of 1.525 per cent to 1.70 per cent
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5.2 Loans Receivable - Others

This account peflains lo accounts previously classilied as past Due Receivable -
DevelopnEntal Loans and ltems - in - Litigation.

Rive n H eights Subdivi siona

This was endorsed to Legal Department on June 24,2007 due to the unrctumed
282 titles. lt was again endorsed to Legal Department forthe foredosure by LGU-
Bataan on November 29, 2007 due to non-payment of realty taxes. However, the
negotiation did not push lhrough because of the claim of the Authority for
Freeport Area of Bataan (AFAB) on the property by virtue of Prodamation No.
740, series of 1970, and amended by Prcdamation No. 900, series of 1971. An
initial meeting was held on September 9, 2016 to discuss the issue.

A Technical Working Group for the renegotidion with the province of Bataan for
the repurchase of Rivera Heights Subdivision was conslituted per Office Order
No. 18-0852.

The TWG convened last August 23,20'1'8 to discuss some pcsible ac.tions for
the repurchase of Rivera Heights Subdivision for presentation to Management for
approval.

The AKPF was tasked by the TWG to secure a copy of the new title already in
the name of Province of Bataan and to \rerify back titles with annotation of mode
of transfer. On December 6, 2019, AKPF was able to seolre a photocbpy of 1

neur title in the name of the Province of Bdaan. The certified true copy of this
title and back titles are still for scanning. Afier lhis, the TWG will con\rene again.

b. Villa Alejandrea Subdivisron

This was endorsed to Legal Department due to missing otvne/s copy of title no.
1-274150 as mortgaged collateral with a total area of '120,000 square meteB
(sqm), ho,ve\€r, only the e-copy of the said title (T-274150) is in SHFG's
possession.

Based on the site inspec{ion/verification report dated February 1 1 , 2005
undertaken by NHMFC, it was revealed that G-Camel sunendered to NHMFC as
security for the loan, a title which was nol the ac{ual property that was developed
and improved out of the developmental loan acquircd from NHMFC.

The representative of G-Carmel offerEd to substitute the collateral property with
the property actually de\reloped out of the AKPF loan. The property wes
allegedly covered by TCT No. T-284306 with an ar€a of 97,545 sqmunder his
name but was found spurious.

On November 20,2019, SHFC wrote to LRA requesting for investigation of lost
collateral title. This letter was alrcady fonrarded to the investigaling unit of the
LRA on December 16,2019.
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Per follonv up on ths case on February 7,2o2O, the Task Force Titulong Malinis
(TFTM) wrote the Registry of Oeeds in the province of lsabela to ask for cenified
copies of titles used as collateral for this projec{, holvever, the TFTM has not
received any as of this time.

c. Palao Country Homes

This was endorsed to Legal Department for foreclosure on March 30, 2015 and
still awaiting for the resolution of the case filed by GNP Construdion against
SHFC before Regional Trial Court (RTC) of Quezon City assailing SHFC'S
decision of disapproval of requested waiver of interest prior to filing of
foreclosure.

SHFC has already completed its presentation of evidence and filed a Formal
Offer of Evidence as manifested during the compliance hearing on May 27, 2019.

6, ADVANCES TO OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES

This account pertains to amount advanced to fficers and Employees for fficial travel
totaling to Php122,670.00 as at December 31, 2022.

The gross carrying amounts and accumulded depreciation of property and equipment at
the beginning and end ol 2022 and 202'l are shoivn below:

lnfometio[ and
Communlcatlon

Technology

Fumltur€ and
Fixtu106

Lea3od Arsots
lmprovernont, Total

Buildinq
Cost
January 1,2022
Additions/Deductions

46't,376
0

34,815
0

99,235
0

193,243
0

788,669
0

34,815 99.235
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December 31, 2022 t161,376 193,243 788,669

The case was submitted to RTC for resolution. The compliance hearing was set
on December 9, 2019.

On Dec€mber 9, 2019, Plaintiff requested for extension to file its memoranda,
hence, compliance hearing was reset on January 27 ,2O2O.

On August 26, 2020, a Decision was issued by the Court resolving the issues
presented in the case. ln the decision, the Court dismissed the pe{ition/case filed
against SHFC. A Motion for Reconsideration was filed by Petitioner in November
2020.

On May 17 , 2021, the RTC issued a Resolution denying the Petitione/s Motion
for Reconsideration.

7, PROPERWANDEQUIPMENT

Office
Equipment



Office
Equipment

lnformation and
Gommunication Fumiture and

Fixhrres

Leased Assets
lmprcvement Total

Accumulated
Depreciation

January 01,2022
Deoreciation

(457,792)
o

(115,947) (683,584)
QO.632l

(31,333)
0

(78,512)
(3.240) 17

December 31. 2022 (457.792\ (3 333) (.81.752\ n1 0u.216\
Net Book Value
December 31,2022 3,594 3.482 17,483 59.904 84,453
Cost
January 1,2021
Additions/Deductions

461,376
0

34,8 1 99,2355
0

193,243
0

788,669
00

December 31
Accumulated

Depreciation
January 01,2021

Depreciation

2021 461 376 u 5 235 ,l

(454,248)
(3.5214)

(31,333)
0

(75,272)
(3.240\

(98,555) (659,408)
Q4.176\n 7

December 31.2021 G57. 792 (31.333) 121 (115.9471 (683,584)
Net Book Value
December 31,2021 3,594 3,82 20,723 77.296 105,085

8. INVESTMENT PROPERTY

This account pertains to the costs of eight (8) foreclosed properties and fi\re (S) projects
acquired from the settlement of accounts through Dacion en Pago totaling P196,44S,866
and P197,635,751 as of Deoember 31,2022 and 2021, respectively. These assets were
previously reclassified from Acquired Assets to Foreclosed Properties/Assets in
compliance with the Revised Chart of Accounts (RCA) and were later reclassified to
lnvestment Property.

The net decrease of P789,885 pertains to the payment of Bases Conversion and
Development Authority (BCDA) of Php901,600.00 as just compensation on the twelve
(12) lots of Evergreen Subdivision affected by Subic-Clark-Tarlac Expressway (SCTEX)
and the payment of Registration fee with RD for the project, Olympia Village, for the
transfer of titles to the SHFC's name in the amount of phpl 11,T1Sj,O:

9. INTER.AGENCY PAYABLES'INTRA-AGENCY PAYABLES

This account consists of:

2022 2021
Due to other funds
Due to LGUs

8,117,973
5,213,229

3,775j39
6,339,327

{3,331 ,201 10,114,466

Due to Other Funds

This account represents personal services and other administrative expenses
advanced by SHFC.
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9.2 Due to LGUs

This account represents unpaid real property taxes due on AKPF Projects.

IO. OTHER CURRENT LIAHLMES

This account consists of other payables representing taxes withheld from interest
income on lnvestment in SSD with DBP amounting to P559,313 and P518,395 as of
December 31, 2022 and 2021, respeclively.

1I. FUND BALANCE

,12. SERVICE AND BUSINESS INCOME

2022 2021
lnterest income - investments
lnterest income - sales contract

receivable
Fines and penalties - business

income

4,858,813

0

0
4,656,913 4 ,733

13. PERSONNEL SERVICES

This account consists of:

2022 2021
Salaries and wages - regular
Other compensation

Year-end bonus
Personnel economic relief allowance
Transportation allowance
Representation allowance
Clothi ng/uniform allowance
Cash gift
Other bonuses and allorances

1,882,fi0 1,862,520

157,615
72,000
67,200
60,000
19,000
15,000

906,253

155,210
72,000
67,307
60,000
18,000
15,000

885,955
3,178,468 3,135,992

Foward
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The Retained eamings account comprises of the prior yea/s adjustments on Taxes,
Duties and Licenses due to reimbursement made by BCDA for the Real Property Tax
paid on the 12 lots affected by SCTEX and adjustments on lnterest lncome - Sales
Contract Receivable due to recasting as at December 31 ,2022 and 2021, respec{ively.

4,537,510

4,U4

10,879



Personnel benefrt contributions
Provident/welfare fund contributions
Retirement and life insurance premiums
PhilHealth contributions
Pag-lBlG contributions
Employees compensation insurance premiums

282,360
76,500
25,853

3,600
1,080

279,378
74,925
25,781
3,600
1,080

389,393 384,764
Other personnel benefits

Terminal leave benefits
Birthqeysll

132,782
9,000

57,089
9,000

14. MAINTENANCE AND OTHER OPERATTNG EXPENSES

This account consists of:

2022 2021
Taxes, insurance premiums and other fees

Taxes, duties and licenses
lnsurance expense
Fidelity bond premiums

2,481,771
103,747

3.000

2$82,il7
0
0

2,588,518 2',88ail7
Genenalservices

Other general seMces
Security services
Janitorial seMces

177,913
96,026
16,430

786,492
96,026
16,430

290,369 898,948
Traveling expense

Traveling expenses - local 137,032 38,586
137,O32 38,586

Utility expenses
Electricity expenses
Water expenses

83"149 81'116
8,485 8,516

91,934 89,632
Supplies and materials expenses

Qfftce gupplies expenses 6,000 52,988
6,000 52,988

Communication expenses
Telephone expenses 11,379 32,569

11,379 32,569
Other maintenance and operating expenses

RenUlease expenses
Documentary stamps expenses

Foruard

233,325
1,260

233,325
1,480
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2022 2021

{4{,782 66,089
3,709,643 3,586,845



2021
Printing and publication expenses
Other maintenance and operating expenses

184
28,336

0
2,120

263,{05 236,925
3,388,337 4,232,195

15, FINANCIAL EXPENSES

This account consists of:

2022 2021
Management SupeMsionff rusteeship Fees
Bank charges

0
2,450

59,456
1,000

2,450 60,456

16. NONCASH EXPENSES

This account consists of:

2022 2021
Depreciation

Depreciation - leased assets improvements
Depreciation - machinery and equipment
Depreciation - fumiture, fixtures and books

17,392
0

3.240

17,392
3,544
3,240

20,632 24,176

17. OTHER NON - OPERATING INCOME

This account consists of interest income frcm bank deposits amounting to P10,833 and
P18,502 for the year 2022 and 2021, respec{ively.

18. COMPLTANCE WITH TAX LAWS

Su polementarv I nformation Required Under Revenue Requlations 1 5-201 0

On November 25, 2010, the BIR issued RR No. 15-2010 amending certain prcvisions of
RR No. 21-2002, as amended and implementing Sec{ion 6 (H) of the Tax Code of 1997
which authorize the Commissioner of lntemal Revenue to prescfibe additional
procedural and/or documentary requirements in connection with the preparation and
submission of financial statements accompanying the tax retums. These regulations
require that additional disclosures in the notes to financia! staternents shall be made to
include information on taxes and license fees paid or accrued during the taxable year.
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ln compliance with the requirements set forth in Revenue Regulation No. '15- 2010,
hereunder are the information on taxes, licenses and fees paid or accrued during the
taxable year.

2022 2021

Taxes and licenses
Finaltax paid on incorne 1,W,A2 1,971,y4
Real tax 911

547
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